NOVOSTE CORP /FL/ Form DEFM14A August 04, 2005 Table of Contents

SCHEDULE 14A INFORMATION

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

File	d by the Registrant x
File	d by a Party other than the Registrant "
	Preliminary Proxy Statement
	Confidential For Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
x	Definitive Proxy Statement
	Soliciting Material Pursuant to Rule 14a-12
	NOVOSTE CORPORATION
	(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)
	(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)
Payı	ment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):
	No Fee required
x	Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.
	(1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:

		stock and Series A preferred stock of ONI Medical Systems, Inc. (ONI) to be acquired by Novoste Corporation (Novoste) in for shares of Novoste's common stock
	(2)	Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
of O	NI s	shares of ONI s common stock, options and warrants to purchase 3,144,940 shares of ONI s common stock and 9,147,285 shares Series A preferred stock to be acquired by Novoste in exchange for up to 32,951,560 shares of Novoste s common stock pursuant rger of a wholly owned subsidiary of Novoste with and into ONI
	(3)	Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (Set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
one	third	of \$0.01, which is one third of the par value per share of each of the ONI common stock and the ONI Series A preferred stock
	(4)	Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction: \$60,741
	(5)	Total fee paid: \$8.00
x	Fee]	paid previously with preliminary materials.
		ck box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.
	(1)	Amount Previously Paid:
	(2)	Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No. :
	(3)	Filing Party:

(4) Date Filed:

Novoste Corporation

4350 International Boulevard

Norcross, Georgia 30093

(770) 717-0904

August 4, 2005

MERGER PROPOSED YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT

Dear	Share	h∧l	der
Dear	Dilaic	\mathbf{n}	uci.

You are cordially invited to attend a special meeting of shareholders in lieu of an annual meeting to be held at 9:00 a.m., local time, on September 14, 2005 at the JW Marriott Hotel Buckhead Atlanta, 3300 Lenox Road, Atlanta, Georgia.

At the special meeting, among other things, you will be asked to approve (a) the issuance of shares of our common stock to the shareholders of ONI Medical Systems, Inc., a privately held Delaware corporation, pursuant to the terms of an agreement and plan of merger that we have entered into with ONI under which ONI will become our wholly owned subsidiary and (b) an amendment to our articles of incorporation to increase the authorized number of shares of our common stock from 25,000,000 to 75,000,000.

After careful consideration, our board of directors has unanimously (with one director recused from the matters) determined that the merger with ONI and the related merger agreement are advisable, fair to and in the best interests of our shareholders, has approved the merger agreement, the share issuance and the two amendments to our articles of incorporation described in the accompanying proxy statement, and has recommended that you vote for these proposals. Our board believes that, although the merger with ONI represents a complete change in the nature of our business, the merger affords our existing shareholders an opportunity for future value that the board believes is currently unavailable given our existing technology. ONI develops, manufactures and markets dedicated-purpose magnetic resonance imaging systems, which, if the merger is consummated, will become the business of Novoste. Our financial advisor, Asanté Partners LLC, has delivered to the board of directors an opinion that the merger consideration to be paid by Novoste in the transaction is fair to us from a financial point of view. We anticipate that completion of the merger will result in the current holders of ONI s equity securities owning a majority of our common stock.

The accompanying proxy statement provides a detailed description of the proposed merger, and a copy of the merger agreement is attached to the proxy statement as *Annex A*. In addition, the proxy statement provides you with important information regarding our board of directors and the other proposals that require your vote. I urge you to read the proxy statement materials in their entirety and consider them carefully. Please pay particular attention to the Risk Factors beginning on page 13 for a discussion of the risks related to the merger.

It is important that your shares be represented at the special meeting, regardless of the size of your holdings. Accordingly, whether or not you expect to attend the special meeting, I urge you to vote promptly by returning the enclosed proxy card. You may revoke your proxy at any time

pefore it has been voted.	
look forward to seeing you on September 14, 2005.	
Sincerely,	
Alfred J. Novak	
President and Chief Executive Officer	

The accompanying proxy statement is first being mailed or $% \left(x\right) =\left(x\right) +\left(x\right)$

delivered to shareholders on or about August 8, 2005.

Novoste Corporation

4350 International Boulevard

Norcross, Georgia 30093

(770) 717-0904

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

IN LIEU OF AN ANNUAL MEETING

TO BE HELD ON SEPTEMBER 14, 2005

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on September 14, 2005, Novoste Corporation will hold a special meeting of shareholders in lieu of an annual meeting at the JW Marriott Hotel Buckhead Atlanta, 3300 Lenox Road, Atlanta, Georgia. The meeting will begin at 9:00 a.m., local time.

At the special meeting, we will consider:

- 1. The issuance of shares of our common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, to the holders of equity securities of ONI Medical Systems, Inc., a privately held Delaware corporation, pursuant to the terms of an Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among us, ONIA Acquisition Corp. and ONI, dated May 18, 2005, under which ONI will become our wholly owned subsidiary;
- 2. An amendment to our amended and restated articles of incorporation to increase the authorized number of shares of our common stock from 25,000,000 to 75,000,000;
- 3. An amendment to our amended and restated articles of incorporation to change our name from Novoste Corporation to ONI Medical Systems, Inc.;
- 4. The election of two directors to our board of directors:
- 5. A proposal to adjourn the meeting to permit further solicitation of proxies; and
- 6. Any other business properly presented at the special meeting or any postponements or adjournments thereof.

The foregoing items of business are more fully described in the proxy statement accompanying this notice.

Pursuant to our by-laws, our board of directors has fixed July 15, 2005 as the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the special meeting and at all postponements or adjournments thereof. Only shareholders of record at the close of business on

that date and eligible to vote will be entitled to vote at the special meeting and any postponements or adjournments thereof. A list of all shareholders entitled to vote at the special meeting will be open for examination by shareholders for any purpose related to the special meeting during ordinary business hours for a period of ten (10) days before the special meeting at our offices, located at 4350 International Boulevard, Norcross, Georgia, 30093.

Whether or not you plan to attend the special meeting, please complete and return the enclosed proxy card. If you sign and return your procured without specifying a choice, your shares will be voted in accordance with the recommendations of our board of directors. You may, if you wish, revoke your proxy at any time before it is voted by filing with the Corporate Secretary of Novoste a written revocation or a duly executed proxy bearing a later date, or by attending the special meeting and voting in person.
August 4, 2005
Norcross, Georgia
Corporate Secretary
Daniel G. Hall
By Order of the Board of Directors,

TABLE OF CONTENTS

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE SPECIAL MEETING AND THE MERGER	1
SUMMARY TERM SHEET	6
Summary Historical Consolidated Financial Data of Novoste	9
Summary Historical Financial Data of ONI	10
Summary Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Financial Data of ONI and Novoste	11
Comparative Per Share Data	12
RISK FACTORS	13
CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	27
SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS	28
Purposes of the Meeting	28
Recommendation of our Board of Directors	28
Record Date: Shares Entitled to Vote: Quorum Requirement	28
Required Vote; Broker Voting Procedures	29
Voting by Directors and Executive Officers	29
Voting	29
Revocation of Proxies	30
Solicitation of Proxies	30
Assistance	31
APPROVAL OF ISSUANCE OF SHARES IN THE ONI MERGER (PROPOSAL 1)	32
General Control of the Control of th	32
Nasdag Requirement for Shareholder Approval	32
Potential De-Listing of our Common Stock from the Nasdaq National Market	32
Required Vote	33
Background of the Merger	33
Recommendation of our Board of Directors and Reasons for the Merger	41
Opinion of our Financial Advisor	43
Terms of the Merger Agreement	52
Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger	61
Interests of Certain Novoste and ONI Persons in the Merger	62
Pro Forma Security Ownership of Novoste After the Merger	64
BUSINESS OF NOVOSTE	66
MARKET FOR NOVOSTE S COMMON STOCK	75
SELECTED HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA OF NOVOSTE	76
NOVOSTE MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS	77
INFORMATION ABOUT ONI	92
Business of ONI	92
ONI s Reasons for the Merger	103
Executive Officers and Directors of ONI	106
Compensation of ONI s Directors and Executive Officers	109
Certain Relationships and Related-Party Transactions	112
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management of ONI Before the Merger	112
Market Price of and Dividends on the ONI Common Equity and Related Shareholder Matters	115
SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA OF ONI	116
ONI MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS	117
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA OF ONI AND NOVOSTE	130
APPROVAL OF THE NOVOSTE SHARE INCREASE AMENDMENT (PROPOSAL 2)	136
Description of Amendment	136
Vote Required	136
Reasons for the Amendment; Effect of the Amendment	130
Recommendation of our Board of Directors	137

Table of Conter

APPROVAL OF THE NOVOSTE NAME CHANGE AMENDMENT (PROPOSAL 3)	138
Description of Amendment	138
Vote Required	138
Reasons for the Amendment; Effect of the Amendment	138
Recommendation of our Board of Directors	138
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS (PROPOSAL 4)	139
Vote Required	139
Changes to our Board if the Merger is Approved and Consummated	139
Information as to Nominees and Continuing Directors	139
Governance of Novoste	141
Executive Compensation and Other Information	144
Stock Performance Graph	151
Principal Holders of Novoste Voting Securities	152
Security Ownership of Novoste Management	153
Audit Committee Matters	154
THE ADJOURNMENT PROPOSAL (PROPOSAL 5)	156
Vote Required	156
Recommendation of our Board of Directors	156
SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE	157
<u>OTHER BUSINESS</u>	157
IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING DELIVERY OF SHAREHOLDER DOCUMENTS	157
ELECTRONIC ACCESS TO ANNUAL MEETING MATERIALS	158
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	158
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	E 1

ANNEXES

Annex A	Agreement and Plan of Merger
Annex B	Opinion of Asanté Partners LLC
Annex C	Novoste Share Increase Amendment
Annex D	Novoste Name Change Amendment

ONI (and Design) and OrthOne are registered trademarks of ONI Medical Systems, Inc. oNI Medical Systems, Inc. is a trademark of ONI Medical Systems, Inc.

Table of Contents

The following are some of the questions that you, as a shareholder of Novoste, may have and answers to those questions. These questions and answers, as well as the following summary, are not meant to be a substitute for the information contained in the remainder of this proxy statement, and this information is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed descriptions and explanations contained elsewhere in this proxy statement. We urge you to read this proxy statement in its entirety before making any decision as to your Novoste common stock.

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT

THE SPECIAL MEETING AND THE MERGER

Q: Why am I receiving this proxy statement?

A: You are receiving this proxy statement for a special meeting of shareholders for two reasons. First, we have agreed to a business combination with ONI pursuant to the terms of the merger agreement that is described in this proxy statement. A copy of the merger agreement is attached to this proxy statement as *Annex A*. Second, the special meeting also is being held in lieu of our 2005 annual meeting of shareholders and, as such, you will be asked to elect two Class III directors and we will conduct at the special meeting such other business as would otherwise be conducted at our annual meeting.

In order to complete the merger, our shareholders must vote to approve (1) the issuance of our common stock pursuant to the merger agreement, (2) an amendment to our articles of incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares of our common stock, and (3) an amendment to our articles of incorporation to change our name from Novoste Corporation to ONI Medical Systems, Inc.

This proxy statement contains important information about the merger, the issuance of our common stock pursuant to the merger agreement, the proposed amendments to our articles of incorporation and the election of two class III directors. You should read it carefully.

Your vote is important. We encourage you to vote as soon as possible.

Q: Has the Novoste board of directors made any recommendation regarding how to vote?

A: Yes. Our board of directors has unanimously (with one director recused from the matters) determined that the merger with ONI and the related merger agreement are advisable, fair to and in the best interests of our shareholders, and has recommended that you vote in favor of the share issuance and the two amendments to our articles of incorporation. The reasons why our board recommends these proposals are discussed in greater detail in the section entitled Approval of Issuance of Shares in the ONI Merger Recommendation of our Board of Directors and Reasons for the Merger.

Our full board of directors has further unanimously approved, and recommended to you, the election of two Class III directors and the approval of the adjournment proposal.

Q: Why is Novoste proposing the merger with ONI?

A: In February 2005, we announced that our board of directors had determined that our vascular brachytherapy, or VBT, business, our only business line, was no longer viable and, as a result, the board had authorized a staged wind-down of the business. The board of directors also authorized the sale of the VBT business, which sale process is currently ongoing. The board determined that this decision was necessary in order to preserve the company s cash resources. While the sale process continues, Novoste will continue to actively sell its VBT products to its physician customers and accept new contracts. The board also announced in February 2005 that it was seeking new product opportunities, as well as a merger, business combination or other disposition of our business or assets. The merger agreement with ONI is the culmination of those efforts. We believe that the combination of Novoste and ONI affords our existing shareholders an

1

Table of Contents

opportunity for future value that in the board s opinion is currently unavailable given our existing technology. ONI is engaged in the development, manufacturing and marketing of dedicated-purpose magnetic resonance imaging systems, which, if the merger is completed, will become the business of Novoste.

- Q: When and where is the special meeting of shareholders and who is entitled to vote?
- A: The special meeting of shareholders will take place at 9:00 a.m., local time, on September 14, 2005, at the JW Marriott Hotel Buckhead Atlanta, 3300 Lenox Road, Atlanta, Georgia. Holders of record of our common stock as of the close of business on July 15, 2005 are entitled to vote at the special meeting.
- Q: What shareholder approvals are required to approve the share issuance in the ONI merger and the two amendments to Novoste s articles of incorporation?
- A: The affirmative vote of a majority of the total votes cast is required to approve the share issuance in the ONI merger. The approval of each of the two amendments to our articles of incorporation requires that the number of votes cast by shareholders at the special meeting in favor of the proposal exceed the number of votes cast against the proposal.
- Q: What will happen in the ONI merger?
- A: Before entering into the merger agreement, we formed ONIA Acquisition Corp., which we refer to as Merger Sub. Merger Sub will merge with and into ONI, and ONI will continue as the surviving company. The surviving company will be our wholly owned subsidiary. Upon completion of the merger, each outstanding share of ONI common and preferred stock will be canceled and converted into the right to receive the number of shares of our common stock determined in accordance with the formulas set forth in the merger agreement. In addition, all outstanding and unexercised options and warrants to purchase shares of ONI equity securities will be assumed by us and be converted and become options and warrants to acquire shares of our common stock, also determined in accordance with these formulas.

The total number of shares of our common stock to be issued pursuant to the merger agreement (including upon exercise of assumed ONI options and warrants) will be determined at the time of the closing of the merger based on a formula that values us at the value of our net cash assets at closing and values ONI at \$20,000,000 (solely for purposes of this calculation). We anticipate that completion of the merger will result in the current holders of ONI s equity securities owning a majority of our common stock.

Based on 16,334,780 shares of our common stock outstanding on the record date, and assuming that the value of our net cash assets at closing provides for a Novoste valuation of \$12,500,000, we currently expect to issue an aggregate of 22,720,304 shares of our common stock and to assume options and warrants to purchase an aggregate of 3,640,944 shares of our common stock if the merger is completed. Accordingly, we anticipate that the current holders of ONI s equity securities will have voting power sufficient to control all major corporate decisions immediately after the merger. See Approval of Issuance of Shares in the ONI Merger Terms of the Merger Agreement Merger Consideration.

- Q: What will be the composition of Novoste s board of directors after the merger?
- A: Immediately following the merger, our board of directors will consist of nine directors, five of whom have been designated by ONI and four of whom have been or will be designated by us. One of the five ONI designees will be Alfred J. Novak, who is currently our chief executive officer and one of our directors. Mr. Novak will resign from his management position at the closing of the merger. One of our four designees will be Stephen I. Shapiro, who is currently a director of both Novoste and ONI. See Approval of Issuance of Shares in the ONI Merger Terms of the Merger Agreement Board of Directors of the Combined Company.

Table of Contents

Q: Who will be Novoste s largest shareholder after the merger?

A: Based on 16,334,780 shares of Novoste common stock outstanding on the record date, and assuming that the value of our net cash assets at closing provides for a Novoste valuation of \$12,500,000, we expect that Galen Partners IV, LP and affiliated entities, who are currently shareholders of ONI, will beneficially own approximately 31% of our common stock outstanding immediately after the merger. For information about the percentage ownership our largest shareholders will have in the combined company, see Approval of Issuance of Shares in the ONI Merger Pro Forma Security Ownership of Novoste Following the Merger.

Q: What will I receive for my shares in the merger?

- A: Our shareholders will not be exchanging their shares in the merger. Upon completion of the merger, you will continue to own the same number of shares of our common stock that you owned immediately before the merger. Because we will issue shares to the current holders of ONI s equity securities, however, the percentage ownership interest that your shares represent in us will be reduced.
- Q: What are the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the merger to me?
- A: We and ONI intend for the merger to qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. As a result, the merger is not expected to have any U.S. federal income tax consequences for our current shareholders. See Approval of Issuance of the Shares in the ONI Merger Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger.
- Q: Why am I being asked to approve amendments to Novoste s articles of incorporation?
- A: The amendments to our articles of incorporation are necessary in order for us to complete the merger. For example, if our shareholders do not approve the share increase proposal, we will not have enough shares authorized to issue our common stock to ONI s shareholders as contemplated by the merger agreement.
- Q: Are there risks I should consider in deciding whether to vote to approve the issuance of Novoste shares pursuant to the merger agreement?
- A: Yes. In evaluating the issuance of shares of our common stock pursuant to the merger agreement, you should carefully consider the factors discussed in Risk Factors beginning on page 13 and the other matters discussed in this proxy statement.
- Q: How do I cast my vote if I am a holder of record?
- A: After carefully reading and considering the information contained in this proxy statement, if you are a holder of record, you may vote in person at the special meeting or by submitting a proxy for the meeting. You can submit your proxy by completing, signing, dating and returning the enclosed proxy card in the accompanying pre-addressed, postage-paid envelope.

IF YOU SIGN, DATE AND SEND YOUR PROXY AND DO NOT INDICATE HOW YOU WANT TO VOTE, YOUR PROXY WILL BE VOTED FOR EACH PROPOSAL DESCRIBED IN THIS DOCUMENT, INCLUDING THE ISSUANCE OF SHARES OF OUR COMMON STOCK PURSUANT TO THE MERGER AGREEMENT AND THE AMENDMENTS TO OUR ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION.

- Q: If my shares are held in street name, will someone else vote my shares for me?
- A: If you hold your shares in street name, which means your shares are held of record by a broker, bank or nominee, you must provide the record holder of your shares with instructions on how to vote your shares. If you do not provide your broker, bank or nominee with instructions on how to vote your shares, such person or entity may not be permitted to vote your shares.

3

Table of Contents

- Q: Can I change my vote after I have delivered my proxy?
- A: Yes. If you are a record holder, you can change your vote at any time before your proxy is voted at the special meeting by delivering a later-dated, signed proxy card to our company secretary before the meeting or by attending the meeting and voting in person. You also may revoke your proxy by delivering, before the date of the meeting, a notice of revocation to our company secretary at 4350 International Boulevard, Norcross, Georgia 30093 (attn: Daniel Hall, Esq.).
- Q: What should I do if I receive more than one set of voting materials?
- A: You may receive more than one set of voting materials, including multiple copies of this document and multiple proxy cards or voting instruction cards. For example, if you hold your shares in more than one brokerage account, you will receive a separate voting instruction card for each brokerage account in which you hold shares. If you are a holder of record and your shares are registered in more than one name, you will receive more than one proxy card. Please complete, sign, date and return each proxy card and voting instruction card that you receive.
- Q: Where will my shares of common stock be listed after completion of the merger?
- A: Our common stock is currently listed on the Nasdaq National Market. However, on April 21, 2005, we received a notice from Nasdaq indicating that we were not in compliance with the Nasdaq Stock Market s requirements for continued listing because, for the previous 30 consecutive business days, the bid price of our common stock had closed below the minimum \$1.00 per share requirement for continued inclusion under Nasdaq Marketplace Rule 4450(a)(5). We have until October 18, 2005, to achieve compliance with the minimum requirements for continued listing. If we do not regain compliance with the minimum requirements for continued listing by October 18, 2005, the Nasdaq staff will provide us with written notification that our common stock will be delisted from the Nasdaq National Market.

In addition, we have been preliminarily informed by the Nasdaq staff that our merger with ONI will constitute a change of control transaction, or reverse merger, requiring us to meet the Nasdaq National Market s initial listing requirements at the time of closing. These requirements include that our shareholders equity immediately after the merger exceeds \$30 million, and that our common stock satisfies a \$5 per share minimum bid price immediately after closing. We have determined that our shareholders equity immediately after the merger would not satisfy this requirement. As a result, if we are unable to convince the Nasdaq staff that the merger does not constitute a reverse merger, we anticipate that our common stock will be unable to remain listed on the Nasdaq National Market after the merger. If we are unable to retain the listing of our common stock on the Nasdaq National Market, we and ONI intend to attempt to obtain a new listing on the Nasdaq SmallCap Market or American Stock Exchange, or alternatively, the NASD s OTC Bulletin Board.

- Q: When does Novoste expect to complete the merger?
- A: We currently expect to complete the merger during the third calendar quarter of 2005.
- Q: Should I send in my share certificates?
- A: No. Your share certificates will not be exchanged in connection with the merger.
- Q: Do I have appraisal rights?
- A: No. Our shareholders do not have appraisal rights under Florida law in connection with the merger.

Q: Who can help answer my questions?

A: If you have any questions about the merger, the issuance of shares pursuant to the merger agreement, the amendments to our articles of incorporation or any of the other proposals, or about how to submit your

4

Table of Contents

proxy, or if you need additional copies of this document or the enclosed proxy card, you should contact either:

Novoste Corporation Morrow & Co., Inc.

4350 International Boulevard 445 Park Avenue

Norcross, Georgia 30093 or New York, New York 10022

Attention: Daniel G. Hall, Esq., General Counsel Phone: (800) 654-2468

Phone: (770) 717-0904

Q: Where can I find more information about the companies?

A: You can find more information about us from various sources described under Where You Can Find More Information. Because ONI is a private company that does not file reports with the SEC, there is limited information publicly available about ONI, other than what has been provided in this proxy statement.

Q: How may this proxy be solicited and who is bearing the cost of this proxy solicitation?

A: Proxies may be solicited on behalf of our board of directors by mail, telephone, facsimile or electronic communication or in person and we will pay the solicitation costs, which include the cost of printing and distributing proxy materials and soliciting of votes. Our directors, officers and employees may solicit proxies by such methods without additional compensation. In addition, we have retained Morrow & Co., Inc. to assist us in the solicitation of proxies at an estimated cost of up to \$50,000 plus expenses. We also will reimburse brokerage houses and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses for forwarding proxy and solicitation materials to shareholders.

* * * * *

5

SUMMARY TERM SHEET

Annual Meeting Time and Date 9:00 a.m., local time, on September 14, 2005

Annual Meeting Location JW Marriott Hotel Buckhead Atlanta

3300 Lenox Road Atlanta, Georgia

Record Date July 15, 2005

Proposal 1 The Issuance of Shares in the ONI Merger

The ONI Merger

Our wholly owned subsidiary, ONIA Acquisition Corp., will merge with and into ONI Medical Systems, Inc. As a result, ONI will become our wholly owned subsidiary.

The Share Issuance

We are asking our shareholders to approve the issuance of shares of our common stock to the holders of ONI capital stock, as well as the issuance of shares of our common stock upon the exercise of the options and warrants that we will assume from ONI. The total number of shares of our common stock to be issued if the merger is completed (including upon exercise of assumed ONI options and warrants) will be determined at the time of the closing of the merger based on a formula that values us at the value of our net cash assets at closing and values ONI at \$20,000,000 (solely for purposes of this calculation). We anticipate that completion of the merger will result in the current holders of ONI s equity securities owning a majority of our common stock.

Based on 16,334,780 shares of our common stock outstanding on the record date, and assuming that the value of our net cash assets at closing provides for a Novoste valuation of \$12,500,000, we currently expect to issue an aggregate of 22,720,304 shares of our common stock, and to assume options and warrants to purchase an aggregate of 3,640,944 shares of our common stock, if the merger is completed. Accordingly, we anticipate that the current holders of ONI s equity securities will have voting power sufficient to control all major corporate decisions immediately after the merger. See Approval of Issuance of Shares in the ONI Merger Terms of the Merger Agreement Merger Consideration.

We have been preliminarily informed by the Nasdaq staff that our merger with ONI will constitute a change of control transaction, or reverse merger, requiring us to meet the Nasdaq National Market s initial listing requirements at the time of closing. These requirements include that our shareholders equity immediately after the merger exceeds \$30 million, and that our common stock satisfies a \$5 per share minimum bid price immediately after closing. We have determined that our shareholders equity immediately after the merger would not satisfy this requirement. As a result, if we are unable to

6

convince the Nasdaq staff that the merger does not constitute a reverse merger, we anticipate that our common stock will be unable to remain listed on the Nasdaq National Market after the merger. If we are unable to retain the listing of our common stock on the Nasdaq National Market, we and ONI intend to attempt to obtain a new listing on the Nasdaq SmallCap Market or American Stock Exchange, or alternatively, the NASD s OTC Bulletin Board.

Required Vote

The affirmative vote of a majority of the total votes cast is required to approve the issuance of our shares pursuant to the merger agreement. See 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders Required Vote; Broker Voting Procedures.

Conditions to Closing

The conditions to the ONI merger include the approval by our shareholders of the issuance of shares of our common stock pursuant to the merger agreement, an amendment to our articles of incorporation to increase our authorized common stock, an amendment to our articles of incorporation to change our name from Novoste Corporation to ONI Medical Systems, Inc., and other conditions described in Approval of Issuance of Shares in the ONI Merger Terms of the Merger Agreement Conditions to Complete the Merger.

Fairness Opinion

Asanté Partners LLC, an investment banking firm, has given its opinion, dated May 16, 2005, to our board of directors that the consideration to be paid in connection with the ONI merger is fair from a financial point of view to us. See Approval of Issuance of Shares in the ONI Merger Opinion of our Financial Advisor.

U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences

We and ONI intend for the merger to qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. As a result, the merger will have no U.S. federal income tax consequences for us or our current shareholders. See Approval of Issuance of Shares in the ONI Merger Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger.

Business of Novoste After the Merger

Upon completion of the merger, our business will be ONI s business, namely, the development, manufacturing and marketing of dedicated-purpose magnetic resonance imaging systems.

The Board of Directors and Management of Novoste after the Merger

Upon completion of the merger, the existing management of ONI will become our management and our board of directors will consist of nine directors, five of whom have been designated by ONI and four of whom have been or will be designated by us.

Proposal 2 An Increase in the Number of Authorized Shares of Novoste Common Stock In order for us to issue the shares of our common stock to the holders of ONI capital stock at closing and to reserve a sufficient number of

7

shares for issuance upon the exercise of options and warrants we will assume if the merger is completed, we must first amend our articles of incorporation to increase the number of shares of common stock that we are authorized to issue. Our board of directors is recommending that our shareholders approve the proposed amendment to increase the number of authorized shares of common stock from 25,000,000 to 75,000,000

Required Vote

In order to approve the proposal to increase the number of authorized shares of our common stock, the number of votes cast by shareholders at the special meeting in favor of the proposal must exceed the number of votes cast against the proposal.

Proposal 3 A Change in the Name of Novoste Corporation to ONI Medical Systems, Inc.

The ONI merger represents a complete change in the nature of our business. Because of this change, we agreed in the merger agreement that our name after the merger should be ONI Medical Systems, Inc. Our board of directors is recommending that our shareholders approve the proposed amendment to our articles of incorporation to change our name from Novoste Corporation to ONI Medical Systems, Inc.

Required Vote

In order to approve the proposal to change our name to ONI Medical Systems, Inc., the number of votes cast by shareholders at the special meeting in favor of the proposal must exceed the number of votes cast against the proposal.

Proposal 4 Election of Two Directors to our Board of Directors

Our board of directors has nominated Thomas D. Weldon and Charles E. Larsen, whose terms will expire at the special meeting in lieu of an annual meeting, for re-election to our board of directors as Class III directors for terms expiring at the annual meeting in 2008. If we complete the ONI merger, however, Mr. Weldon and two of our other directors, J. Stephen Holmes and William E. Whitmer, will resign and five new directors will be added to our board as described in Approval of Issuance of Shares in the ONI Merger Terms of the Merger Agreement Board of Directors of the Combined Company.

Required Vote

A plurality of the total votes cast is required to elect each of the two directors.

Proposal 5 The Adjournment Proposal

We are asking our shareholders to authorize the holder of the proxy solicited by our board of directors to vote in favor of adjourning the special meeting to a future date in order to enable our board of directors to solicit additional proxies in favor of the share issuance and the two proposed amendments to our articles of incorporation if such a proposal is presented at the special meeting.

Required Vote

In order to approve this proposal, the number of votes cast by shareholders at the special meeting in favor of the proposal must exceed the number of votes cast against the proposal.

8

SUMMARY HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA OF NOVOSTE

The summary consolidated financial data shown below for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, have been taken or derived from our audited financial statements included in this proxy statement. The summary consolidated financial data shown below for the fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, and as of March 31, 2005, have been taken or derived from our unaudited financial statements included in this proxy statement. In the opinion of management, the unaudited financial statements contain all adjustments (all of which were considered normal and recurring) necessary to present fairly the results of the interim periods. Operating results for the three months ended March 31, 2005 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the entire year ending December 31, 2005. The summary consolidated financial data shown below for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, and as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, have been derived from our financial statements for those years, which are not included in this proxy statement. The summary consolidated financial data shown below should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes of Novoste and with Novoste Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, which are included elsewhere in this proxy statement.

	Three Mor			Year 1	ber 31	· 31	
	2005 (1)	2004	2004	2003	2002	2001	2000
			(In thousands	, except per s	hare amounts))	
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:							
Net sales	\$ 3,413	\$ 7,025	\$ 23,268	\$ 62,901	\$ 69,030	\$ 69,908	\$ 6,530
Cost and expenses:							
Cost of sales	4,118	3,953	16,111	24,315	27,313	19,164	4,258
Impairment and related charges			9,349		6,900		
Research and development	434	2,475	4,633	11,986	13,300	12,756	17,119
Sales and marketing	2,702	3,489	12,558	19,485	26,875	35,868	15,651
General and administrative	2,878	1,800	8,036	8,237	8,335	9,324	6,321
Loss from operations	(6,719)	(4,692)	(27,419)	(1,122)	(13,693)	(7,204)	(36,819)
Other income	165	78	498	254	642	2,095	3,746
Net loss	\$ (6,554)	\$ (4,614)	\$ (26,921)	\$ (868)	\$ (13,051)	\$ (5,109)	\$ (33,073)
Basic and diluted net loss per share	\$ (0.40)	\$ (0.28)	\$ (1.65)	\$ (0.05)	\$ (0.80)	\$ (0.32)	\$ (2.13)
Weighted average shares outstanding	16,335	16,331	16,333	16,313	16,268	16,152	15,517

	At March 31,		At December 31							
	2005 (1)	2004	2003	2002	2001	2000				
			(In thou	ısands)						
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:										
Working capital	\$ 19,618	\$ 25,753	\$ 39,364	\$ 30,496	\$ 40,482	\$ 53,742				
Total assets	27,043	33,702	61,407	67,520	82,911	77,073				
Long-term liabilities				5	203	401				
Accumulated deficit	(168,777)	(162,223)	(135,302)	(134,434)	(121,384)	(116,275)				
Total shareholders equity	19,806	26,454	53,244	52,765	64,728	67,042				

(1) On February 22, 2005, we announced that our board of directors had determined that our vascular brachytherapy business, which is our only business line, is no longer viable and, as a result, had authorized a staged wind-down of the business. As described in the notes to our financial statements, assets have been stated at estimated net realizable value and accruals have been recorded to reflect the business assumptions of the wind-down in accordance with FAS 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.

9

SUMMARY HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA OF ONI

The summary financial data shown below for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, have been taken or derived from ONI s audited financial statements included in this proxy statement. The summary financial data shown below for the fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, and as of March 31, 2005, have been taken or derived from ONI s unaudited financial statements included in this proxy statement. In the opinion of ONI s management, the unaudited financial statements contain all adjustments (all of which were considered normal and recurring) necessary to present fairly the results of the interim periods. Operating results for the three months ended March 31, 2005 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the entire year ending December 31, 2005. The summary financial data shown below for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, and as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, have been derived from ONI s financial statements for those years, which are not included in this proxy statement. The summary financial data shown below should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and related notes of ONI and with ONI Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, which are included elsewhere in this proxy statement.

	Three Months Ended March 31		Year Ended December 31				
	2005	2004	2004	2003	2002	2001	2000
		(1	n thousands	, except per s	hare amount	s)	
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:				• •			
Total revenue	\$ 2,629	\$ 655	\$ 8,887	\$ 8,297	\$ 6,276	\$ 725	\$
Total cost of revenue	2,125	758	7,826	5,761	4,752	1,358	
Gross profit (loss)	504	(103)	1,061	2,536	1,524	(633)	
Research and development	602	466	1,843	1,783	2,328	1,766	1,534
Sales and marketing	977	963	3,392	2,291	1,894	1,300	234
General and administrative	515	443	1,822	1,314	1,255	1,242	936
Loss from operations	(1,590)	(1,975)	(5,996)	(2,852)	(3,953)	(4,941)	(2,704)
Other income (expense)		25	(4)	(206)	(188)	67	90
Net loss	\$ (1,590)	\$ (1,950)	\$ (6,000)	\$ (3,058)	\$ (4,141)	\$ (4,874)	\$ (2,614)
Basic and diluted net loss per share	\$ (0.27)	\$ (0.33)	\$ (1.01)	\$ (0.90)	\$ (2.06)	\$ (4.81)	\$ (2.86)
Weighted average shares outstanding	5,930	5,930	5,930	3,408	2,013	1,014	914

	At March 31, 2005	At December 31					
		2004	2003	2002	2001	2000	
		(In thousands)					
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:							
Working capital (deficit)	\$ (1,794)	\$ 153	\$ 2,844	\$ (1,064)	\$ (290)	\$ (100)	
Total assets	7,064	7,829	6,906	5,113	3,667	3,113	
Long-term liabilities	660	397					
Redeemable convertible preferred stock	11,800	11,800	8,500				
Accumulated deficit	(25,397)	(23,807)	(17,806)	(14,552)	(10,411)	(5,537)	
Total shareholder s equity (deficit)	(12,438)	(10,848)	(4,646)	88	758	552	

SUMMARY UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA OF ONI AND NOVOSTE

The following summary unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial data have been derived from and should be read together with the unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial statements and related notes on pages 130 through 135, which are preliminary and have been prepared solely for purposes of developing the pro forma information. This information is based on our historical consolidated balance sheets and related historical consolidated statements of operations and those of ONI, and gives effect to the merger using the purchase method of accounting for business combinations, with ONI as the acquiring entity. Our historical statements of operations have been adjusted for the pro forma impact of the disposition or wind-down of our VBT business.

The following summary unaudited pro forma combined financial data are intended to provide you with a better description of what our operating results might have been had we completed the merger and disposed of or wound-down our VBT business as of January 1, 2004 for the statement of continuing operations data and as of March 31, 2005 for the balance sheet data. The data are for illustrative purposes only. Novoste and ONI may have performed differently had we always been combined. Further, the summary unaudited pro forma combined financial data do not reflect the full effect of restructuring charges that we will incur or costs related to the exiting of the VBT business. You should not rely on the summary unaudited pro forma combined financial data as being indicative of the historical results that would have been achieved had the companies always been combined or the financial position and operating results that the combined company will experience after the merger.

	Three Months Ended	Year End	ded		
	March 31, 2005	December 31, 2004			
	(In thousands, exc	(In thousands, except per share amounts)			
Statement of Continuing Operations Data:					
Revenues	\$ 2,629	\$	8,887		
Net loss	(1,850)	((7,214)		
Net loss per share basic and diluted	(0.05)		(0.18)		
Balance Sheet Data:					
Working capital	\$ 12,754				
Total assets	32,140				
Long-term liabilities	660				
Accumulated deficit	(30,606)				
Total shareholders equity	13,691				

11

COMPARATIVE PER SHARE DATA

Set forth below are net loss and book value per common share amounts for Novoste and ONI on a historical basis, for the combined company on a pro forma combined basis per Novoste common share and for the combined company on a pro forma combined basis per equivalent ONI common share. Neither we nor ONI paid a cash dividend during any of the periods presented below.

The pro forma combined data were derived by combining the adjusted historical consolidated financial information of Novoste and ONI using the purchase method of accounting for business combinations as described under Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Financial Data of ONI and Novoste.

You should read the information below together with the consolidated financial statements and related notes of Novoste and ONI, Novoste Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, ONI Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Selected Historical Consolidated Financial Data of Novoste and Selected Historical Financial Data of ONI included elsewhere in this proxy statement. The unaudited pro forma combined data below are for illustrative purposes only. The financial results may have been different had the companies always been combined. You should not rely on this information to be indicative of the historical results that would have been achieved had the companies always been combined or the future results that the combined company will experience after the merger.

	March 31, 2005		Year Ended December 31, 2004	
Novoste historical data, per common share:				
Net loss basic and diluted	\$	(0.40)	\$	(1.65)
Book value at end of period		1.21		1.62
ONI historical data, per common share:				
Net loss basic and diluted	\$	(0.27)	\$	(1.01)
Book value at end of period		(2.10)		(1.83)
Combined consolidated pro forma data, per Novoste common share:				
Net loss basic and diluted	\$	(0.05)	\$	(0.18)
Book value at end of period		0.35		
Combined consolidated pro forma data, per equivalent ONI common share:				
Net loss basic and diluted	\$	(0.06)	\$	(0.21)
Book value at end of period		0.41		

12

RISK FACTORS

In connection with the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, set forth below are cautionary statements identifying important factors that could cause actual events or results to differ materially from any forward-looking statements made by us or on our behalf, whether oral or written. We wish to ensure that any forward-looking statements are accompanied by meaningful cautionary statements in order to maximize to the fullest extent possible the protections of the safe harbor established in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Accordingly, any such statements are qualified in their entirety by reference to, and are accompanied by, the following important factors that could cause actual events or results to differ materially from our forward-looking statements.

In addition to the other information included in this proxy statement (including the matters addressed in Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements), you should consider carefully the matters described below in evaluating the proposed merger and the other proposals on which the merger is contingent, as well as our business, the business of ONI and the proposed business of the combined company. Additional risks and uncertainties that are not presently known to us or ONI or that we do not currently believe to be important to you also may adversely affect our respective businesses, the merger or the combined business following the merger.

Risks Related to the Merger and the Combined Company

The market price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly, and may be less than the market price of our common stock as of the date of the merger agreement, this proxy statement or the special meeting.

At the closing of the merger, all ONI equity securities will be converted into the right to receive shares of our common stock. The ratios at which ONI equity securities will be converted will not be adjusted for changes in the value of ONI or the market price of our common stock. We cannot abandon the merger or resolicit the vote of our shareholders solely because of changes in the value of ONI or the market price of our common stock.

The market price and trading volume of our common stock may vary significantly between the dates of the merger agreement, this proxy statement, the special meeting and the completion of the merger. These variations may be caused by, among other factors, responses to the risk factors described in this proxy statement, market expectations of the likelihood that the merger will be completed and the timing of its completion, the market s perception of the merits of the merger, or the prospects for our post-merger operations, or for reasons unrelated to our performance, such as reports by industry analysts, investor perceptions, or announcements by our or ONI s customers, competitors or suppliers regarding their own performance, as well as general economic and industry conditions. Accordingly, the trading price of our common stock now or on the date of the special meeting may not be indicative of the price of our common stock after the merger is completed. There can be no assurance that the market price or the trading volume of our common stock after the merger will be at or above the market price and trading volume of our common stock on the date of the merger agreement, this proxy statement, the special meeting or the closing.

We and ONI will incur significant costs in connection with the merger, whether or not we complete it.

We and ONI expect to incur significant costs related to the merger. These expenses include financial advisory, legal and accounting fees and expenses, severance and employee benefit related expenses, filing fees, printing expenses, proxy solicitation and other related charges. We and ONI may also incur additional unanticipated expenses in connection with the merger. A portion of the costs related to the merger, such as legal

and accounting fees, will be incurred regardless of whether the merger is completed. These expenses will reduce the assets that the combined company will have to operate its business after the merger.

Completion of the merger will result in substantial and immediate dilution to the voting power and equity interests of our current shareholders.

The issuance of shares of our common stock and options and warrants to purchase shares of our common stock to the holders of ONI equity securities if the merger is completed will significantly dilute the voting power

13

Table of Contents

and ownership percentage of our existing shareholders. The total number of shares of our common stock to be issued if the merger is completed (including upon exercise of assumed ONI options and warrants) will be determined at the closing based on a formula that values us at the value of our net cash assets at closing and values ONI at \$20,000,000 (solely for purposes of this calculation). We anticipate that completion of the merger will result in the current holders of ONI s equity securities owning a majority of our common stock.

Based on 16,334,780 shares of our common stock outstanding on the record date, and assuming that the value of our net cash assets at closing provides for a Novoste valuation of \$12,500,000, we currently expect to issue an aggregate of 22,720,304 shares of our common stock at closing and to assume options and warrants to purchase an aggregate of 3,640,944 shares of our common stock. Accordingly, we anticipate that the current holders of ONI sequity securities will have voting power sufficient to control all major corporate decisions immediately after the merger. See Approval of Issuance of Shares in the ONI Merger Terms of the Merger Agreement Merger Consideration.

If the combined company continues to experience losses after the merger, it could experience difficulty meeting its business plan, and our stock price could be negatively affected.

During 2004 we had net losses of \$26.9 million and negative cash flow from operations of \$6.3 million, and ONI had net losses of \$6.0 million and negative cash flow from operations of \$5.2 million. After the merger, it is expected that the combined company will continue to experience operating losses and negative cash flow from operations. Any failure to achieve and then maintain profitability and positive cash flow could negatively impact the market price of our common stock and our ability to continue as a going concern. ONI has not been profitable or cash flow positive on a quarterly or annual basis. As a result, the combined company will need to generate significant quarterly revenues if it is to achieve profitability and positive cash flow. A failure to achieve profitability or positive cash flow could make it difficult or impossible for the combined company to grow its business. If its business strategy is not successful, it may not generate significant revenues or achieve profitability.

The combined company may need additional funds which, if available, could result in increased interest expenses or additional dilution to our shareholders. If additional funds are needed and are not available, the business of the combined company could be negatively impacted.

If we need to raise additional funds, we may not be able to do so on terms favorable to us, or at all. The combined company may need to seek higher-priced financing, modify or abandon its growth strategy or eliminate product and service offerings, any of which could negatively impact the combined company s financial position. If funds are raised through the issuance of equity securities, the percentage ownership of our then-current shareholders will be reduced and the holders of new equity securities may have rights, preferences or privileges senior to those of the holders of our common stock. If additional funds are raised through a bank credit facility or the issuance of debt securities, the holder of such indebtedness would have rights senior to the rights of common shareholders and the terms of such indebtedness could impose restrictions on our operations.

After the merger, our board of directors will consider the filing of a registration statement with the SEC to register the resale of the shares of our common stock issued under the merger agreement, and the availability of these shares for sale in the public markets may cause a significant drop in the market price of our common stock.

Based on 16,334,780 shares of our common stock outstanding on the record date, and assuming that the value of our net cash assets at closing provides for a Novoste valuation of \$12,500,000, we currently expect to issue an aggregate of 22,720,304 shares of our common stock at closing and to assume options and warrants to purchase an aggregate of 3,640,944 shares of our common stock. After the merger, our board of directors will consider the filing of a registration statement with the SEC to register for resale in the public markets shares of our common stock issued under the merger agreement, as well as one or more registration statements on Form S-8 to register shares of our common stock issuable

pursuant to assumed options. Sales of a substantial number of these shares of our common stock, or the perception that such sales could occur, could adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

14

After the merger, the former principal shareholders of ONI will have significant influence over Novoste.

Based on assumptions described elsewhere in this proxy statement, including the assumption that the value of our net cash assets at closing provides for a Novoste valuation of \$12,500,000, we anticipate that Galen Partners IV, LP and its affiliates, who currently control ONI, will beneficially own approximately 31% of our common stock outstanding immediately after the merger. As a result, these principal shareholders of ONI will possess significant influence over our affairs after the merger. Under the merger agreement, Bruce F. Wesson and Srini Conjeevaram, the managing director and general partner of Galen Partners IV, LP, respectively, will become members of our board of directors after the merger. In addition, Stephen I. Shapiro, an independent consultant to Galen Partners IV, LP, will continue as a member of our board of directors after the merger. Galen Partners stock ownership and relationships with members of our board of directors may have the effect of delaying or preventing a future change in control, impeding a merger, consolidation, takeover or other business combination or discouraging a potential acquirer from making a tender offer or otherwise attempting to obtain control of us, which in turn could materially and adversely affect the market price of our common stock. If our net cash assets are \$11,750,000 or less at closing, we currently anticipate that Galen Partners IV, LP and its affiliates will beneficially own between approximately 32% and 34% of our common stock outstanding immediately after the merger.

We may be unable to maintain an established public trading market after the merger, which would adversely affect your ability to sell your shares.

Although our common stock is currently listed on the Nasdaq National Market, a regular trading market for our common stock may not exist or be sustained in the future, in which case you should consider your investment in our common stock illiquid. On April 21, 2005, we received a notice from the Nasdaq Stock Market indicating that we were not in compliance with the Nasdaq Stock Market is requirements for continued listing because, for the previous 30 consecutive business days, the bid price of our common stock had closed below the minimum \$1.00 per share requirement for continued inclusion under Nasdaq Marketplace Rule 4450(a)(5). We have until October 18, 2005, to achieve compliance with the minimum requirements for continued listing. If we do not regain compliance with the minimum requirements for continued listing by October 18, 2005, the Nasdaq staff will provide us with written notification that our common stock will be delisted from the Nasdaq National Market. In addition, we have been preliminarily informed by Nasdaq staff that our merger with ONI will constitute a change of control transaction, or reverse merger, requiring us to meet Nasdaq s initial listing requirements at the time of closing. These requirements include that our shareholders equity immediately after the merger exceeds \$30 million, and that our common stock satisfies a \$5 per share minimum bid price immediately after closing. We have determined that our shareholders equity immediately after the merger would not satisfy this requirement. As a result, if we are unable to convince Nasdaq staff that the merger does not constitute a reverse merger, we anticipate that our common stock will be unable to remain listed on the Nasdaq National Market after the merger.

If we are unable to retain the listing of our common stock on the Nasdaq National Market, we and ONI intend to attempt to obtain a new listing on the Nasdaq SmallCap Market or American Stock Exchange. To obtain a new listing on the Nasdaq SmallCap Market, we anticipate that our common stock will need to satisfy a \$4 per share minimum bid price requirement immediately after closing. To obtain a new listing on the American Stock Exchange, we anticipate that our common stock will need to satisfy either a \$3 per share minimum bid price requirement or a \$50 million market capitalization requirement immediately after closing. Based on the recent trading price of our common stock, we do not anticipate that our common stock would be able to satisfy either of these requirements unless we completed a reverse share split, in which shares of our common stock would be combined to increase the percentage ownership interest that each share represents. Our board of directors is permitted under Florida law to authorize a reverse share split without the approval of our shareholders, and may consider authorizing such a split to obtain a listing on the Nasdaq SmallCap Market or American Stock Exchange.

If we are unable to retain our listing on the Nasdaq National Market, or obtain a new listing on the Nasdaq SmallCap Market or American Stock Exchange, we may seek to have our stock quoted on the NASD s OTC

15

Table of Contents

Bulletin Board, which is an inter-dealer, over-the-counter market that provides significantly less liquidity than the Nasdaq National Market, Nasdaq SmallCap Market or American Stock Exchange. Quotes for stocks included on the OTC Bulletin Board are not as widely listed in the financial sections of newspapers as are those for the Nasdaq National Market. Therefore, prices for securities traded solely on the OTC Bulletin Board may be difficult to obtain and holders of our common stock may be unable to resell their securities at any price.

If we move trading of our common stock to the NASD's OTC Bulletin Board, our common stock will be a penny stock and may be difficult to sell.

If we move trading of our common stock to the NASD s OTC Bulletin Board, our common stock will a penny stock under Rule 3a51-1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Compliance with the penny stock requirements would make it more difficult for you to resell your shares to third parties or to dispose of them in the public market or otherwise. Securities broker-dealers would not be permitted to recommend our common stock and would be required trade in it on an unsolicited basis. Additionally, Section 15(g) of the Exchange Act and Rule 15g-2 require broker-dealers dealing in penny stocks to provide potential investors with a document disclosing the risks of penny stocks and to obtain a manually signed and dated written receipt of the document before effecting any transaction in a penny stock for the investor s account. Moreover, Rule 15g-9 requires broker-dealers in penny stocks to approve the account of any investor for transactions in such stocks before selling any penny stock to that investor. This procedure requires the broker-dealer to:

obtain from the investor information concerning his or her financial situation, investment experience and investment objectives;

reasonably determine, based on that information, that transactions in penny stocks are suitable for the investor and that the investor has sufficient knowledge and experience as to be reasonably capable of evaluating the risks of penny stock transactions;

provide the investor with a written statement setting forth the basis on which the broker-dealer made this determination; and

receive a signed and dated copy of this statement from the investor, confirming that it accurately reflects the investor s financial situation, investment experience and investment objectives.

ONI is a private company and has not been subject to the same corporate governance standards as stock exchange or Nasdaq-listed companies, which may adversely affect the willingness of investors to buy or hold shares of the combined company s common stock.

As a private company, ONI has not been subject to the enhanced corporate governance requirements applicable to companies whose securities are listed on a national securities exchange or with the Nasdaq Stock Market. Investors may lack confidence in the management of the combined company as management establishes and implements the enhanced corporate governance requirements of a public company. A lack of confidence in the combined company s management could lead to a substantial stock price decline.

After the merger, the financial statements of the combined company will reflect substantially larger costs associated with compliance with laws and regulations affecting public companies, which will adversely affect the combined company s results of operations.

For accounting purposes, ONI will be treated as the acquiring entity in the merger and, as a result, its historical financial statements will become the financial statements of the combined company. Because ONI has operated as a private company, it has not previously incurred the substantial accounting, legal and other expenses that the combined company will incur as a public company. After the merger, the financial statements of the combined company will reflect these substantial expenses, including costs associated with periodic reporting requirements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and costs associated with corporate governance requirements, including requirements under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The expenses generally incurred by public companies for reporting and corporate governance purposes have been increasing. We expect that the

16

Table of Contents

rules and regulations applicable to public companies will increase the combined company s legal and financial compliance costs and will make some activities more time-consuming and costly, although we are currently unable to estimate these costs with any degree of certainty.

After the merger, ONI will be required for the first time to evaluate its internal control over financial reporting under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and any adverse results from such evaluation could result in a loss of investor confidence in the combined company s financial reports and lead to a substantial stock price decline.

After the merger, the combined company will be required to furnish a report by its management on its internal control over financial reporting, including ONI s internal control over financial reporting. The report will contain, among other matters, an assessment of the effectiveness of ONI s internal control over financial reporting as of the end of the fiscal year, including a statement as to whether or not ONI s internal control over financial reporting is effective. This assessment must include disclosure of any material weaknesses in ONI s internal control over financial reporting identified by management. The report must also contain a statement that the combined company s independent auditors have issued an attestation report on management s assessment of such internal controls.

ONI has not yet begun the process of analyzing its internal controls and preparing for the evaluation needed to comply with Section 404. During this process, if management identifies one or more material weaknesses in ONI s internal control over financial reporting that are not remediated, the combined company will be unable to assert that its internal control is effective. Any failure to have effective internal control over financial reporting could cause investors to lose confidence in the accuracy and completeness of the combined company s financial reports, which could lead to a substantial stock price decline.

Management of the combined company does not intend to pay dividends.

Neither Novoste nor ONI have ever declared or paid any cash dividends on its capital stock. The combined company anticipates that it will retain all future earnings, if any, to support its operations and to finance the growth and development of its business and therefore does not expect to pay cash dividends. Any return on an investment in the combined company will only be as a result of stock price appreciation, if any.

The combined company could be the subject of securities class action litigation as a result of future stock price volatility, which could divert management s attention and adversely affect its results of operations.

The stock market in general, and market prices for the securities of small medical device companies like ONI in particular, have from time to time experienced volatility that often has been unrelated to the operating performance of the underlying companies. We and ONI expect that the merger itself will create a certain degree of stock price volatility. These broad market and industry fluctuations may adversely affect the market price of the combined company s common stock, regardless of its operating performance. In several recent situations where the market price of a stock has been volatile, holders of that stock have instituted securities class action litigation against the issuer. If any of the combined company s shareholders were to bring a lawsuit against it, the defense and disposition of the lawsuit could be costly and divert the time and attention of its management and harm its business.

Risks Related to Novoste s Business

If the merger with ONI is not completed, Novoste will have no continuing business operations.

Our board of directors has authorized the staged wind-down of our VBT business, which is our only business line. We are currently implementing the wind-down, which we expect to complete before the end of the 2005. Should our shareholders not approve the proposals to allow us to complete the merger, we will have no ongoing business operations and our board of directors will need to consider other alternatives, including liquidation and dissolution.

17

Difficulties efficiently implementing our staged wind-down of business operations could reduce the amount of our remaining corporate assets.

Our board has authorized the staged wind-down of our VBT business to preserve our cash resources. During the wind-down of our business, we will need to negotiate the orderly extinguishment of our obligations to creditors. Effectively implementing the wind-down of our business will depend on our ability to maximize the consideration we receive for our assets, minimize the amount we must expend to settle our debts and other liabilities, minimize our contingent liabilities, minimize our operating expenses during the wind-down process and expedite the wind-down process. If we are unable to efficiently implement the wind-down of our business, our corporate assets may be further depleted.

If the merger with ONI is not completed and we were to liquidate and dissolve, any cash amount distributed to shareholders could be significantly lower than prices at which our common stock has traded in the recent past.

If the merger with ONI is not completed and we were to liquidate and dissolve, we cannot predict when, or if, we would be able to make a distribution to our shareholders. However, if one or more cash distributions were made after dissolution, we expect that the amount distributed could be significantly lower than some prices at which our common stock has traded in the recent past, and there can be no assurance that such amount, if any, would equal the prices at which our common stock could trade in the future.

If we liquidate and dissolve and have assets available to distribute to shareholders, our board will need to make provision for the satisfaction of all of our known and unknown liabilities, which could substantially delay or limit our ability to make any distribution to shareholders.

If we liquidate and dissolve, our board of directors will be required to make adequate provision to satisfy our liabilities, including known and unknown claims against us, before authorizing any distributions to shareholders after dissolution. The process of accounting for our liabilities, including those that are presently unknown, may involve difficult valuation decisions, which could adversely impact the board's ability to make any such distribution after dissolution in a timely manner. Substantial time may be required for us to determine the extent of our liabilities to known and unknown third party creditors and claimants. Furthermore, pursuant to the Florida Business Corporations Act, we may be liable for known and unknown claims for a substantial period of time in the future. As a result, there can be no assurance that we would have sufficient cash available to make any distributions to shareholders after dissolution. If we were to have sufficient remaining cash, a substantial period may elapse after dissolution before we would be able to make any such distribution to shareholders, and such distribution, if any, may be made in more than one installment over an extended period of time.

If we make one or more distributions after dissolution, our shareholders could be liable to the extent of distributions received if contingent reserves are insufficient to satisfy our liabilities.

In the event of our liquidation and dissolution, if we fail to create an adequate contingency reserve for payment of our expenses and liabilities, each shareholder receiving a distribution after dissolution could be held liable for the payment to creditors of such shareholder s *pro rata* portion of any shortfall, limited to the amounts previously received by the shareholder in distributions from Novoste.

If a court holds at any time that we have failed to make adequate provision for our expenses and liabilities or if the amount ultimately required to be paid in respect of such liabilities exceeds the amount available from the contingency reserve, our creditors could seek an injunction against the making of distributions after dissolution on the grounds that the amounts to be distributed are needed to provide for the payment of our

expenses and liabilities. Any such action could delay or substantially diminish the amount of any cash distributions to shareholders after dissolution.

We may continue to incur the expense of complying with public company reporting requirements.

We have an obligation to continue to comply with the applicable reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 even though compliance with such reporting requirements is economically burdensome. If

18

Table of Contents

the merger with ONI is not completed and we were to liquidate and dissolve, then in order to curtail such expenses, after filing our certificate of dissolution upon shareholder approval of a plan of liquidation, we might seek relief from the SEC for a substantial portion of the periodic reporting requirements under that Act. There can be no assurance that we would be able to obtain such relief.

Product liability suits against us could result in expensive and time-consuming litigation and the payment of substantial damages.

The past and future sale and use of our products could lead to the filing of product liability claims if someone were to allege that one of our products contained a design or manufacturing defect. A product liability claim could result in substantial damages and be costly and time-consuming to defend, either of which could materially harm our business or financial condition. We cannot assure that our product liability insurance would protect our assets from the financial impact of defending a product liability claim.

We have substantially reduced our workforce as part of our wind-down of operations.

We currently have extremely limited personnel resources. During 2004, we engaged in a restructuring of our management organization and significantly reduced our work force. In February 2005, we announced that we were reducing our remaining United States workforce in the first quarter of 2005 by 52 employees, from 81 employees, and terminating the 16 employees we had outside the U.S. in accordance with their contracts and the relevant country s employment regulations. We currently have 26 employees, 2 of whom are employed outside the U.S. If the merger with ONI is not completed, it may be difficult for us to efficiently implement the staged wind-down of our business.

We are highly dependent on key management personnel.

We are currently highly dependent on the principal members of our management staff, particularly our President and Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and General Counsel. As a result of the staged wind-down of our business, it may be difficult for us to provide adequate incentives for these employees to remain employed with us. The loss of any of these employees could cause a material adverse effect on our ability to efficiently implement the staged wind-down of our business.

Risks Related to ONI s Business

ONI has had and continues to experience significant losses.

ONI has incurred operating losses since its inception and had an accumulated deficit of approximately \$25.4 million as of March 31, 2005. ONI incurred net losses of approximately \$3.1 million in 2003, \$6.0 million in 2004 and \$1.6 million in the three months ended March 31, 2005. ONI expects to continue to incur losses in the near future, and the amount of future losses is uncertain. There is no assurance that ONI will operate profitably in the foreseeable future or at all.

ONI intends to continue to make substantial investments in internal expansion, infrastructure, sales and marketing efforts and potential acquisitions. If ONI is revenues fail to grow at a sufficiently rapid pace to offset planned increases in expenses, or if ONI is unable to curb its losses and achieve profitability, its future growth could be seriously harmed.

ONI has a limited operating history, which makes prediction of future results of operations difficult or impossible.

ONI was incorporated in June 1997. ONI sold its first OrthOne® MRI system in the later half of 2001. As of June 30, 2005, ONI has sold and installed a total of only 70 OrthOne systems. Accordingly, ONI has a very limited operating history, which makes prediction of future results of operations difficult or impossible.

Ernst & Young LLP, ONI s independent registered public accounting firm, issued its 2004 audit report with a going concern qualification, which raises substantial doubt about ONI s continued viability if ONI does not raise additional capital to fund its operations for the next twelve months.

The audit report of ONI s independent auditors on ONI s 2004 financial statements included an explanatory paragraph expressing substantial doubt about ONI s ability to continue as a going concern. As of March 31,

19

2005, ONI had negative working capital of approximately \$1.8 million and an accumulated deficit of approximately \$25.4 million, which reflect ONI s continued operating losses. ONI s financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be necessary to reflect this uncertainty accurately.

Fluctuations in ONI s quarterly results make financial forecasting difficult and could lead to a substantial stock price decline.

ONI has experienced significant fluctuations in its revenues and results of operations from one quarter to the next. ONI s quarterly revenue generally comprises only a small number of individual customer orders, and the timing of customer site readiness and revenue recognition for a single order can cause substantial fluctuations in ONI s quarterly results. Its future revenues and results of operations could vary significantly from quarter to quarter due to a number of factors, many of which are outside its control. These factors include changes in demand, customer site readiness and ONI s ability to deliver and install systems in a timely manner, warranty and service claims, the introduction of competing systems, customer budgetary cycles, sales incentives and other competitive pricing pressures. Accordingly, quarter-to-quarter comparisons of ONI s results of operations are not reliable indications of future performance. ONI s revenues or results of operations in a quarter may fall below the expectations of securities analysts or investors, which could lead to a substantial stock price decline.

ONI s business depends on the successful commercialization of one product, the OrthOne 1.0 Tesla MRI system, and the market for high-field MRI systems for extremities is unproven.

ONI s success depends on its ability to create a market for dedicated MRI systems for extremities. There may be limited market acceptance of such systems in general, or ONI s system in particular, among orthopedic practices, diagnostic imaging centers and hospitals. ONI s products may not enjoy commercial acceptance or success, which would adversely affect its revenues and results of operations. Because of the early stage of both ONI and the market for extremity MRI systems, it is likely that ONI s evaluation of the potential market demand for these products will vary materially with time. In addition, the introduction by other companies of new products or technologies that compete with ONI s system could reduce market acceptance or make ONI s system obsolete. ONI cannot assure that any significant or profitable market will develop for ONI s extremity MRI systems.

ONI may not be able to compete effectively because ONI s competitors have far greater resources than ONI.

ONI is a relatively new entrant in an intensely competitive market that is dominated by a small number of large, well-known companies. ONI s competitors have significantly greater financial, technical, manufacturing, marketing and managerial resources than ONI and might be perceived by customers as offering greater financial and operational stability than ONI. In the orthopedic market, ONI competes primarily with Esaote SpA, an Italian manufacturer of low-field extremity systems. In the hospital and diagnostic imaging center market, ONI competes with manufacturers of whole-body systems, including GE Medical Systems, Hitachi Corporation, Philips N.V., Siemens A.G. and Toshiba Corporation. There can be no assurance that these manufacturers of whole-body systems will not enter the market for extremity MRI systems. ONI may be unable to compete successfully against its current or future competitors, and competition may have a material adverse effect on ONI s business, results of operations and financial condition. ONI s competitors could develop MRI systems that are superior to that of ONI or that achieve greater market acceptance than ONI s system.

ONI depends heavily on third-party suppliers, which makes it vulnerable to component part failures and to interruptions in supply.

ONI relies on third-party suppliers for all key components used in its product, including the OrthOne magnet and certain software used to operate the OrthOne system. Relying on third-party suppliers makes ONI vulnerable to interruptions in supply, which could materially impair its ability to ship its product to customers on a timely basis and generate revenue. Generally, ONI does not have long-term supply agreements with its suppliers. Instead, ONI obtains supplies on a purchase-order basis. Lead times to receive ordered components

20

vary and can exceed six months or more. If ONI expands its manufacturing capacity, it cannot be sure that its suppliers will furnish the required components when needed. These factors could make it more difficult for ONI to effectively and efficiently manufacture its product. As a result, ONI s sales may suffer.

GE Medical Systems is currently ONI s sole supplier of the OrthOne magnet, and the loss of GE Medical Systems as a supplier could seriously harm ONI s revenues and results of operations.

At present, ONI has only one supplier for the OrthOne magnet, GE Medical Systems. The manufacture of the OrthOne magnet is complex, and it would be difficult for ONI to identify, qualify, engage and train a new supplier in a short period of time. Under the agreement between ONI and GE Medical Systems, GE Medical Systems may cease accepting orders for the OrthOne magnet by providing ONI with at least 12 months written notice, in which case ONI would be entitled to place a final order for up to 1-½ times the number of magnets taken in the 12 months before the notice. After April 1, 2006, GE Medical Systems need not provide advance notice of cancellation. If GE Medical Systems were to cancel its supply agreement with ONI and at the time of cancellation ONI had no other supplier for the OrthOne magnet, ONI could face a shortage of OrthOne magnets, which would have a material adverse effect on ONI s ability to generate revenues. Moreover, ONI may be unable to negotiate favorable pricing with any new supplier, which could have a material adverse effect on ONI s results of operations and overall profitability. Finally, because GE Medical Systems, rather than ONI, has been manufacturing the OrthOne magnet for more than four years, ONI may encounter difficulties and delays in training another supplier to manufacture the magnet as efficiently and effectively as GE Medical Systems without its assistance.

There is currently no ACR accreditation program for extremity MRI facilities, and some third-party payers may not offer reimbursement for MRI scans performed on the OrthOne system.

The American College of Radiology, or ACR, a medical society for radiologists, has administered an accreditation program for whole-body MRI imaging systems since 1996. Several third-party payers have recognized the ACR accreditation program as a method of demonstrating quality in MRI scanning and reading of images, and require ACR accreditation for providers of MRI services. There is currently no ACR accreditation program for extremity MRI systems, and some third-party payers may not provide reimbursement for MRI scans performed on the OrthOne system, which could limit demand. More widespread adoption of the ACR accreditation program as a requirement for reimbursement could further limit demand and seriously harm our revenues and results of operations. Moreover, the ACR has endorsed the recommendations of the Medicare Payment Advisory Commission to set national standards for performing and interpreting diagnostic imaging studies covered by Medicare. The adoption of any such standards could make it more difficult for physicians other than radiologists to receive reimbursement for performing and interpreting diagnostic imaging studies, which could reduce demand for the OrthOne system and thereby reduce our revenues and results of operations.

ONI may be unable to keep pace with the rapid technological changes in the MRI industry.

The industry for magnetic resonance imaging equipment is characterized by extensive research and technological developments and advancements. Any failure by ONI to develop new or enhanced products for the medical marketplace could have a material adverse effect on its financial condition and results of operations. Development by other companies of new or improved products, processes or technologies may make the OrthOne system obsolete or less competitive. ONI s business could be seriously harmed by the introduction of extremity MRI systems with more attractive features, such as higher field strength, lower cost or smaller size. ONI will be required to devote material financial resources to develop and commercialize new products and technologies and to enhance the existing OrthOne system.

ONI may not meet applicable regulatory requirements, and the failure to comply with any regulation could have serious consequences for ONI s ability to continue to operate its business.

The manufacture and sale of medical diagnostic devices such as the OrthOne system are subject to extensive government regulation in the United States and in other countries. Federal, state and foreign laws and regulations

21

Table of Contents

impose numerous requirements on each aspect of the testing, manufacture, labeling, storage, recordkeeping, approval, advertising and promotion of the OrthOne system. Any enforcement action arising from ONI s failure to comply with any government regulation could result in warning letters, judicially and administratively imposed fines and penalties, suspensions of approvals, recalls of OrthOne systems, repairs, replacements, refunds, seizures, operating restrictions, denials of future approvals, withdrawals or suspensions of current product applications, and criminal prosecutions and could affect the manufacturing and marketing of the OrthOne system. Any of these outcomes could seriously harm ONI s reputation, revenues and results of operations, including a potential shutdown of ONI s operations.

Products such as the OrthOne system may be subject to government-mandated or voluntary recall for unforeseen reasons, including component failures, manufacturing errors or design defects. This risk exists even with respect to products with regulatory approval for commercial sale. Claims may be made by customers, patients, distributors, government regulators or others. ONI does not maintain any insurance relating to potential recalls.

The United States Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, as well as foreign regulatory agencies, continue to review products even after they have received initial regulatory approval. The manufacturing and marketing of these products will be subject to continuing regulation, including compliance with current Quality Systems Regulations and Good Manufacturing Practices, known as QSRs and GMPs, adverse event reporting requirements and prohibitions on promoting a product for unapproved uses. ONI s third-party suppliers of product components are also subject to compliance with the FDA requirements for QSR/GMP and other requirements. The FDA could withdraw a previously approved product such as the OrthOne system from the market upon receipt of newly discovered information, including a failure to comply with regulatory requirements, the occurrence of unanticipated problems with products following approval, or other reasons, any of which could adversely affect ONI s reputation, revenues, results of operations and financial condition.

If ONI fails to obtain or maintain necessary FDA clearances for the OrthOne system or similar clearances in non-U.S. markets, or if such clearances are delayed, ONI will be unable to commercially distribute and market the OrthOne system.

Before marketing any medical device in the United States, ONI must generally first receive clearance from the FDA, which is referred to as 510(k) clearance. This clearance process can be lengthy and expensive. The FDA s 510(k) clearance process generally takes less than six months from the date the application is submitted, but can take longer. Although ONI has obtained 510(k) clearance for the OrthOne system, its 510(k) clearance can be revoked if safety or effectiveness problems develop. ONI expects that its product currently under development will require 510(k) clearance. ONI may be unable to obtain additional clearances in a timely fashion or at all. Delays in obtaining clearance or the revocation of existing clearances could seriously harm ONI s revenues and profitability.

In many foreign countries in which ONI markets the OrthOne system, ONI is subject to regulations affecting, among other things, product standards, packaging requirements, labeling requirements, import restrictions, tariff regulations, duties and tax requirements. Many of these regulations are similar to those of the FDA. In addition, in many countries the national health or social security organizations require ONI s products to be qualified before procedures performed using its products become eligible for reimbursement. Failure to receive, or delays in the receipt of, relevant foreign qualifications could have a material adverse effect on ONI s business, financial condition and results of operations. Due to the evolving harmonization of standards in the European Union, ONI expects a changing regulatory environment in Europe characterized by a shift from a country-by-country regulatory system to a European Union-wide single regulatory system. ONI cannot predict changes of this harmonization and its effect on ONI. Adapting ONI s business to changing regulatory systems could have a material adverse effect on ONI s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Modifications to the OrthOne system may require new FDA clearance or similar clearances in non-U.S. markets or require ONI to cease marketing or recall the modified OrthOne system until these clearances are obtained.

Any modification to a medical device that could significantly affect its safety or effectiveness, or that would constitute a major change in its intended use, generally requires a new FDA 510(k) clearance. Other countries have comparable regulatory requirements. The FDA requires every manufacturer to make this determination, but the FDA can review any such determination. ONI may make modifications to the OrthOne system, and in appropriate circumstances, determine that new clearance is unnecessary. The FDA may not agree with the decision not to seek new clearance. If the FDA requires that ONI seek 510(k) clearance for any modification not previously cleared, ONI may be required to cease marketing or recall the modified device until it obtains this clearance, which could seriously harm ONI s reputation, revenues and results of operations. Also, in some circumstances, such as the FDA s disagreement with the decision not to seek new clearance, ONI may be subject to significant regulatory fines or penalties.

Reductions in third-party reimbursement may reduce market acceptance of ONI s products, resulting in lower sales in the United States and abroad.

There has been a consistent downward trend for MRI reimbursement rates, and ONI anticipates that the trend will continue for the foreseeable future. This trend may result in lower sales in the United States and abroad.

ONI depends on third-party reimbursement to its customers for market acceptance of its products. Failure of third-party payors, such as the government or private health insurers, to provide appropriate levels of reimbursement for use of ONI s products would harm ONI s business and prospects. In the United States, Medicare reimbursement rates are established by the United States Department for Health and Human Services Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, or CMS, the government agency that administers Medicare and Medicaid. The actual reimbursement amounts are determined by individual state Medicare carriers and, for non-Medicare and Medicaid patients, by private insurance carriers. There are often delays between the reimbursement approvals by CMS and by a state Medicare carrier and private insurance carriers. Moreover, states as well as private insurance carriers may choose not to follow the CMS reimbursement guidelines.

The use of ONI s products outside the United States is similarly affected by reimbursement policies adopted by foreign regulatory and insurance carriers. A reduction or other adverse change in reimbursement policies for the use of ONI s products could harm ONI s business and prospects.

The time needed to modify a customer facility may cause delays in shipping ONI s products and in recognizing revenue from sales of the products.

The OrthOne system generally requires each customer to make some modifications to its facility before ONI installs the system. The cost and the amount of time needed to make the necessary modifications to a customer facility varies widely and depends completely on the customer. Historically, site preparation has taken from as little as one month to longer than one year. Delays in shipping and in revenue recognition resulting from site readiness could adversely affect ONI s revenues, results of operations and financial condition.

ONI relies on distributors for its international sales, and ONI s failure to manage successfully its relationships with these distributors could cause its revenue to decline and harm its business.

ONI relies on a number of distributors for its international sales, including sales in the European Union and Canada. These distributors also fulfill warranty and service obligations to customers outside the United States (except Canada). The activities of these distributors are not within ONI s direct control. ONI s failure to manage its relationships with these distributors effectively could impair the effectiveness of ONI s international sales, marketing and customer support strategy. A reduction in the sales efforts, technical capabilities or financial viability of these distributors, a misalignment of interest between ONI and them, or the termination of ONI s relationship with a distributor could adversely affect ONI s sales, financial results and ability to support its

23

Table of Contents

customers. ONI s distributors are engaged under long-term contracts, which typically have an initial term of four years. It generally takes three to six months for a distributor to become educated about ONI s products and capable of providing quality sales and technical support to ONI s customers. If any distribution relationship were to terminate, sales to current and prospective customers could be disrupted or delayed, and ONI could experience a diversion of time and resources as it seeks to identify, qualify, engage and train a replacement.

ONI s business is highly dependent on its ability to successfully manufacture and assemble its products.

ONI has manufactured and installed an aggregate of 70 units as of June 30, 2005, all of which require precise, high-quality manufacturing. Failure to achieve and maintain high manufacturing standards, including the incidence of manufacturing errors, design defects or component failures, could result in patient injury, product recalls or withdrawals, delays or failures in product testing or delivery, cost overruns or other problems that could seriously hurt ONI s business.

Despite its efforts, ONI cannot completely eliminate the risk of errors, defects or failures. The manufacturing of products is and will continue to be complex and costly, requiring a number of separate processes and components and skill and diligence by ONI s personnel and third-party suppliers. ONI may experience difficulties in manufacturing its product, including problems related to quality control and assurance, component and service availability, adequacy of control policies and procedures, and lack of skilled personnel. If ONI is unable to hire, train and retain enough experienced and capable scientific, technical and manufacturing workers, it may be unable to manufacture sufficient quantities of its products at an acceptable cost and on time, which could limit market acceptance of its products or otherwise damage ONI s financial performance and prospects.

Significant unanticipated warranty or service claims could substantially increase ONI s costs and generate additional losses.

If ONI experiences an increase in warranty or service claims, it could incur unanticipated expenditures for parts and service, which would adversely affect its results of operations. ONI generally warrants each of its products against defects in materials and workmanship for a period of one year. ONI has also entered into long-term service maintenance agreements with certain customers pursuant to which it has agreed to provide all necessary maintenance and services for a fixed fee. Although ONI has established reserves for its product warranty obligations, unforeseen warranty exposure in excess of those reserves could adversely affect its results of operations. In addition, any non-routine defects or operating problems could seriously damage ONI s reputation and goodwill in the market for MRI systems.

ONI may be unable to retain its key personnel, which could adversely affect its ability to conduct its operations.

ONI depends heavily on the principal members of its management and scientific staff. ONI does not have any employment agreements with any of its personnel. Accordingly, any of ONI s key personnel could resign immediately without notice to ONI, which could seriously harm ONI s ability to conduct its operations.

ONI depends upon the continued services of Robert L. Kwolyk, its co-founder and President and Chief Executive Officer since inception. Loss of his services could seriously harm ONI s business and prospects and its ability to market and sell the OrthOne system. Similarly, the services of Dr. Peter B. Roemer, the co-founder of ONI and its Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Officer, are integral to ONI s product development efforts. Loss of his services could result in material delay in ONI s development of new products.

ONI may be unable to hire and retain the skilled personnel it needs to expand its operations.

To meet its growth objectives, ONI must attract and retain additional highly skilled sales and marketing, managerial and technical personnel. If it fails to attract and retain the necessary personnel, it may be unable to achieve its business objectives and may lose its competitive position, which could lead to a significant decline in revenue. ONI faces significant competition for these skilled professionals from other companies and organizations.

In certain states, MRI systems can only be purchased through a Certificate of Need program, which may prohibit potential customers from purchasing the OrthOne system.

Certificate of Need programs vary from state to state and are designed to ensure that new healthcare services and facilities are developed only as needed, based on publicly-developed measures of cost effectiveness, quality of care, and geographic and financial access to care. If state governments begin to make the acquisition of a Certificate of Need more difficult for ONI s potential customers or discourage sales of the OrthOne system in areas already served, ONI s sales will suffer, which could have a material adverse effect on ONI s revenues and results of operations.

The market for used or refurbished whole-body MRI systems may limit ONI s growth.

ONI relies on, among other things, its competitive pricing advantage when competing with whole-body MRI companies. It could become increasingly difficult for ONI to sell its products if other vendors expand their efforts to sell used or refurbished systems to ONI s potential customers. The continued growth of such a secondary market in used or refurbished MRI systems could seriously harm ONI s business, prospects and results of operations.

ONI may enter into fee-for-scan programs, and the inability or refusal of any customer to pay required fees could adversely affect ONI s revenues and results of operations.

On a limited basis, ONI offers a fee-for-scan program to selected customers. Under this program, customers have the option of paying for the OrthOne system on a per-scan basis. Non-payment by customers under this program could adversely affect ONI s financial results. ONI retains ownership of the system until all required payments are made. ONI has only a limited ability to evaluate potential customers and their creditworthiness. In the event of a breach of the agreement, ONI may encounter difficulties or significant expenses in attempting to repossess its systems. ONI may also have to accept the return of systems under this program.

ONI has only limited protection for its intellectual property, and competitors could circumvent those protections.

ONI s ability to compete effectively depends in part on its ability to protect the design of the OrthOne system and its other proprietary technology. The steps ONI has taken to protect its proprietary technology may be inadequate to prevent others from using what ONI regards as its technology to compete with ONI. Any misappropriation of ONI s technology or the development of competing technology could seriously harm ONI s competitive position, which could lead to a substantial reduction in revenue. ONI does not have any patents. ONI seeks to protect its proprietary technology primarily under laws affording protection for trade secrets and also seeks copyright and trademark protection for its products and developments where appropriate. These laws provide only limited protection. Confidentiality agreements with employees, consultants and other parties could be breached, ONI may not have adequate remedies for any breach, and ONI s trade secrets and other proprietary information could otherwise become known. In addition, other companies could independently develop technologies that are similar or superior to ONI s technology or reverse engineer its products. Moreover, the laws of foreign countries in which ONI sells its products may afford little or no protection to its intellectual property rights, which could increase the likelihood of misappropriation.

ONI may have to take legal action to protect its trade secrets or other proprietary information. Any legal action of that type could be burdensome, disruptive and expensive and distract the attention of management, and ONI might not prevail.

Claims by others that ONI infringes their intellectual property rights could seriously harm ONI s business and financial condition.

The medical device industry has been characterized by extensive litigation regarding patents and other intellectual property rights. Any claim of infringement against ONI could cause it to incur substantial costs

25

Table of Contents

defending against the claim, even if the claim is invalid, and could distract the attention of ONI s management. If ONI s products or technology is found to violate third-party proprietary rights, ONI may be required to pay substantial damages. In addition, ONI may be required to re-engineer its products or seek to obtain licenses from third parties to continue to offer its products. Any efforts to re-engineer its products or obtain licenses on commercially reasonable terms may not be successful, which would prevent ONI from selling its products, and, in any case, could substantially increase its costs and have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.

ONI does not conduct comprehensive patent searches to determine whether other persons may have patents or patent applications that cover any portion of ONI s products or technology. In an evolving technological environment, product development is inherently uncertain, and there may be pending patent applications that may cover ONI s products or technology. Accordingly, other persons may have or obtain patents that will prevent, limit or interfere with ONI s ability to make, use or sell its products in the United States or international markets.

If ONI is unable to maintain adequate product liability insurance, it may have to pay significant monetary damages in a successful product liability claim.

The manufacture and sale of any diagnostic medical device such as the OrthOne system entail an inherent risk of product liability, including claims of injury from use of the system or the failure to detect a disorder. If ONI is exposed to product liability claims for which it has insufficient insurance, it may be required to pay significant damages, which could seriously harm its financial condition and results of operations. Product liability insurance is generally expensive for companies such as ONI. Accordingly, ONI maintains only limited product liability insurance coverage. ONI s current levels of insurance or any insurance it may subsequently obtain may not provide adequate coverage against potential claims. In addition, ONI may be unable to renew its policies on commercially reasonable terms or obtain additional product liability insurance on acceptable terms, if at all. Any product liability claim brought against ONI, regardless of merit, could increase ONI s product liability insurance rates or prevent ONI from securing insurance coverage in the future.

ONI s international sales may be limited by complex regulatory, economic, business, insurance and other factors.

ONI expects that a portion of its revenues will be derived from sales to customers outside the United States. These sales may be less profitable for ONI than domestic sales and may cause ONI to incur substantial expenses without corresponding benefit. As a medical device, the OrthOne system is subject to rigorous and varying regulation in international markets, and sales into new international markets may require compliance with additional burdensome regulations, which could be costly. Because ONI s international distributors fulfill customers warranty and service needs, ONI does not obtain service maintenance contracts for OrthOne systems sold outside the United States and therefore derives no ongoing service revenue with respect to those systems. In addition, international sales may involve longer sales cycles and greater difficulties in collecting accounts receivable, and any increase in international sales could magnify any adverse consequences arising from currency fluctuations, political or economic instability in foreign markets, or changes in trading policies, reimbursement practices, regulatory requirements, tariffs, or other barriers.

ONI may have difficulty in identifying and competing for acquisition opportunities.

ONI s business strategy includes the pursuit of strategic acquisitions to broaden its product line and otherwise improve its business prospects. Although ONI currently does not have any commitments or agreements with respect to any acquisitions, it intends to explore potential acquisitions of strategically complementary product lines, business divisions or companies. ONI may be unable to identify suitable acquisition candidates. In addition, ONI expects to face competition from other companies for acquisition candidates, making it more difficult to acquire suitable companies on favorable terms.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The forward-looking statements in this proxy statement are made under the safe harbor provisions of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Our operating results and financial condition have varied and may in the future vary significantly depending on a number of factors. Statements in this proxy statement which are not strictly historical statements, including, without limitation, statements regarding management s expectations regarding the ONI merger, the future business of ONI, the staged wind-down of our VBT business, future strategic transactions, if any, possible liquidation and dissolution and future revenues from the sale of our VBT products, as well as statements regarding our strategy and plans, constitute forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. In some cases these forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of words such as may, project, predict, potential or the negative of these w will, should, expect, comparable words. The factors listed under Risk Factors beginning on page 13, among others, could cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in forward-looking statements made in this proxy statement and presented elsewhere by management from time to time. These factors, among others, may have a material adverse effect upon our business, financial condition, and results of operations. We undertake no obligation to update publicly or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. Accordingly, you are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date on which they are made.

27

SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

This proxy statement and the accompanying form of proxy are being furnished to holders of record of our common stock on July 15, 2005 in connection with the solicitation of proxies by our board of directors for use at a special meeting of shareholders in lieu of an annual meeting, to be held on September 14, 2005, at the JW Marriott Hotel Buckhead Atlanta, 3300 Lenox Road, Atlanta, Georgia, commencing at 9:00 a.m., local time, and at any adjournment or postponement of that meeting.

Purposes of the Meeting

At the special meeting, we are asking holders of record of our common stock to consider and vote on the following proposals:

- 1. The issuance of shares of our common stock to the holders of equity securities of ONI Medical Systems, Inc., a privately held Delaware corporation, pursuant to the terms of a merger agreement with ONI under which ONI will become our wholly owned subsidiary;
- 2. An amendment to our amended and restated articles of incorporation to increase the authorized number of shares of our common stock from 25,000,000 to 75,000,000;
- 3. An amendment to our amended and restated articles of incorporation to change our name from Novoste Corporation to ONI Medical Systems, Inc.;
- 4. The election of two directors to our board of directors;
- 5. A proposal to adjourn the meeting to permit further solicitation of proxies; and
- 6. Any other business properly presented at the special meeting or any postponements or adjournments thereof.

Approval of proposal 1 is conditioned on the approval of proposals 2 and 3. Further, if the merger described in proposal 1 is not consummated, then the amendment to authorize additional shares described in proposal 2 and the name change of Novoste described in proposal 3 will not be effected. Therefore, you should consider proposals 1, 2 and 3 together. If any of proposals 1, 2 or 3 is not approved, none of them will be implemented. The merger cannot be completed unless our shareholders approve it. Your vote is very important.

Recommendation of our Board of Directors

Our board of directors has unanimously (with one director recused from the matters) determined that our merger with ONI and the related merger agreement are advisable, fair to and in the best interests of our shareholders, has approved the merger agreement, the share issuance and

the two amendments to our articles of incorporation, and has recommended that you vote FOR the share issuance and the two amendments. Our full board of directors has further unanimously approved, and recommended that you vote FOR, the other proposals described in this proxy statement.

Record Date; Shares Entitled to Vote; Quorum Requirement

Our board of directors has fixed the close of business on July 15, 2005 as the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the special meeting. Accordingly, only holders of record of shares of our common stock at the close of business on the record date will be entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the special meeting. At the close of business on the record date, there were 16,334,780 shares of our common stock outstanding and entitled to vote, held by approximately 85 record holders.

Each record holder of shares of our common stock on the record date is entitled to cast one vote per share on each proposal properly submitted for the vote of shareholders at the special meeting. Votes may be cast either in person or by properly executed proxy.

28

Table of Contents

The presence in person or by properly executed proxy of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of common stock on the record date is necessary to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at the special meeting. If a quorum is not present at the meeting, the shareholders present may adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice, other than by announcement at the meeting, until a quorum is present or represented. Shares represented by proxies that are marked ABSTAIN and broker non-votes will be counted as present for the purpose of determining the presence or absence of a quorum at the meeting. A broker non-vote occurs when a broker holding shares for a beneficial owner does not vote those shares on a particular proposal because the broker does not have discretionary voting power for that particular item and has not received instructions from the beneficial owner.

Required Vote; Broker Voting Procedures

The approval of proposal 1 (the issuance of shares of our common stock pursuant to the merger agreement) requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the total votes cast on the proposal. Only shares that are voted FOR or AGAINST the proposal will be counted towards the vote requirement. Thus, shares represented at the meeting that are marked ABSTAIN, and broker non-votes, if any, will not be counted towards the vote requirement. Additionally, if you do not complete and return a proxy card and do not vote in person, there will be no effect on the outcome of the vote on the proposal.

The approval of each of proposals 2 and 3 (the amendments to our articles of incorporation to increase the authorized number of shares of our common stock and to change our name from Novoste Corporation to ONI Medical Systems, Inc.) requires that the number of votes cast by the shareholders at the special meeting in favor of the applicable proposal exceed the number of votes cast against the proposal. Only shares that are voted FOR or AGAINST the proposal will be counted towards the vote requirement. Thus, shares represented at the meeting that are marked ABSTAIN, and broker non-votes, if any, will not be counted towards the vote requirement. Additionally, if you do not complete and return a proxy card and do not vote in person, there will be no effect on the outcome of the vote on either proposal.

A plurality of the total votes cast by the holders of our common stock is required to elect each of the two directors (proposal 4). You may vote FOR each director nominee or you may WITHHOLD AUTHORITY for each director nominee separately. Only shares that are voted in favor of a particular nominee will be counted towards that nominee s achievement of a plurality. Thus, shares represented at the meeting that are not voted for a particular nominee, shares present in person or represented by proxy where the shareholder properly withholds authority to vote for the nominee, and broker non-votes, if any, will not be counted towards the nominee s achievement of a plurality.

The approval of proposal 5 (the proposal to adjourn the meeting to permit further solicitation of proxies) requires that the number of votes cast by the shareholders at the special meeting in favor of the proposal exceed the number of votes cast against the proposal. Only shares that are voted FOR or AGAINST the proposal will be counted towards the vote requirement. Thus, shares represented at the meeting that are marked ABSTAIN, and broker non-votes, if any, will not be counted towards the vote requirement. Additionally, if you do not complete and return a proxy card and do not attend the special meeting and vote in person, there will be no effect on the outcome of the vote on the proposal.

Voting by Directors and Executive Officers

At the close of business on the record date, our current directors and executive officers beneficially owned and were entitled to vote approximately 8.3% of our common stock outstanding on that date. Each of our current directors and executive officers has entered into a voting agreement with ONI pursuant to which he or she has agreed to vote his or her shares in favor of proposals 1, 2 and 3.

Voting

As described below, you may vote by proxy or in person at the special meeting.

29

Table of Contents

Voting in Person

If you plan to attend the special meeting and wish to vote in person, you will be given a ballot at the meeting. Please note, however, that if your shares are held in street name, which means your shares are held of record by a broker, bank or other nominee, and you wish to vote at the meeting, you must bring to the meeting a proxy from the record holder of the shares authorizing you to vote at the meeting.

Voting by Proxy

Shares of our stock represented by properly executed proxies received at or before the meeting and not revoked will be voted in the manner specified on such proxies. Properly executed proxies that do not contain voting instructions will be voted FOR each of the proposals. If any other matters are properly brought before the special meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in the enclosed proxy card to vote the proxy in accordance with their best judgment. Properly executed proxies marked ABSTAIN, although counted for purposes of determining whether there is a quorum at the meeting, will not be voted.

The enclosed proxy provides that you may vote your shares of common stock FOR the director nominees or you may WITHHOLD AUTHORITY for the nominees, and that you may vote FOR, AGAINST or ABSTAIN from voting with respect to each of the other proposals. The board of directors recommends that you vote FOR each of the two (2) director nominees named in this proxy statement and FOR each of the other proposals.

Revocation of Proxies

A shareholder giving a proxy has the power to revoke it at any time before the vote is taken at the special meeting by:

submitting to our secretary a written instrument revoking the proxy;

submitting a duly executed proxy bearing a later date; or

voting in person at the meeting.

Any written notice of revocation or subsequent proxy should be sent so that it is delivered to us at 4350 International Boulevard, Norcross, Georgia, 30093, Attention: Secretary, or hand-delivered to our secretary at that address, at or before the taking of the vote at the special meeting.

Solicitation of Proxies

Proxies are being solicited on behalf of our board of directors. We will pay the costs and expenses incurred in connection with the printing and mailing of this proxy statement and the solicitation of the enclosed proxy. In addition to solicitation by mail, our directors, officers and employees may solicit proxies in person or by other means of communication. Our directors, officers and employees will receive no additional compensation for such services, but we may reimburse them for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses in connection with such solicitation. Some of these directors and executive officers may have interests in the proposed merger that differ from yours, as described in Approval of Issuance of Shares in the ONI Merger Interests of Certain Novoste and ONI Persons in the Merger. Brokers, custodians, nominees and fiduciaries will be requested to forward proxy solicitation materials to the beneficial owners of shares held of record by them, and we will reimburse them for the reasonable, out-of-pocket expenses they incur in doing so. We have also retained Morrow & Co., Inc., to aid in the proxy solicitation at an estimated cost of up to \$50,000, plus expenses.

30

31

Table of Contents

Assistance

If you need assistance in completing your proxy card or have questions regarding the special meeting, please contact:

Novoste Corporation 4350 International Boulevard Norcross, Georgia 30093 Attention: Daniel G. Hall, Esq., General Counsel

Phone: (770) 717-0904

Morrow & Co., Inc. 445 Park Avenue New York, New York 10022 Phone: (800) 654-2468

or

APPROVAL OF ISSUANCE OF SHARES IN THE ONI MERGER

(Proposal 1)

We entered into the merger agreement with ONI on May 18, 2005. ONI is engaged in the development, manufacturing and marketing of dedicated-purpose magnetic resonance imaging systems. You are being asked to consider and vote on the issuance of shares of our common stock to the holders of ONI capital stock, options and warrants pursuant to the merger agreement as consideration for our acquisition of all of ONI s equity securities pursuant to the terms of the merger agreement.

The following is a description of the material aspects of the merger. Although we believe that this description covers the material terms of the merger, the description may not contain all of the information that is important to you. We encourage you to read carefully this entire proxy statement, including the merger agreement attached to this document as *Annex A*, for a more complete understanding of the merger. The following description is subject to, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, the merger agreement.

General

If the merger is completed, we will acquire all of the outstanding equity securities of ONI. As consideration for this acquisition, we will issue shares of our common stock to the holders of ONI s common and Series A preferred stock, and options and warrants to purchase ONI common and Series A preferred stock will be converted into options and warrants to purchase our common stock.

The merger agreement provides that, at the time of the merger, our wholly owned subsidiary, ONIA Acquisition Corp., will merge with and into ONI, whereupon ONI will become our wholly owned subsidiary and the outstanding equity securities of ONI will be converted into the right to receive shares of our common stock. The total number of shares of our common stock to be issued if the merger is completed (including upon exercise of assumed ONI options and warrants) will be determined at the time of closing based on a formula that values us at the value of our net cash assets at closing and values ONI at \$20,000,000 (solely for purposes of this calculation). We anticipate that completion of the merger will result in the current holders of ONI s equity securities owning a majority of our common stock.

Nasdaq Requirement for Shareholder Approval

The Nasdaq Stock Market s regulations require that we obtain the approval of our shareholders in connection with any transaction, other than a public offering, involving the sale or issuance by us of common stock (or securities convertible into, or exercisable for, common stock) equal to 20% or more of the common stock, or 20% or more of the voting power of our securities, outstanding before the issuance of the common stock in connection with that transaction. As a result, even though the share issuance is not required to be approved by our shareholders under the terms of the Florida Business Corporations Act, shareholder approval is required under the Nasdaq regulations.

Potential De-Listing of our Common Stock from the Nasdaq National Market

Although our common stock is currently listed on the Nasdaq National Market, a regular trading market for our common stock may not exist or be sustained in the future, in which case you should consider your investment in our common stock illiquid. On April 21, 2005, we received a notice from the Nasdaq Stock Market indicating that we were not in compliance with the Nasdaq Stock Market s requirements for continued listing because, for the previous 30 consecutive business days, the bid price of our common stock had closed below the minimum \$1.00 per share requirement for continued inclusion under Nasdaq Marketplace Rule 4450(a)(5). We have until October 18, 2005, to achieve compliance with the minimum requirements for continued listing. If we do not regain compliance with the minimum requirements for continued listing by October 18, 2005, the Nasdaq staff will provide us with written notification that our common stock will be delisted from the Nasdaq National Market.

Table of Contents

In addition, we have been preliminarily informed by Nasdaq staff that our merger with ONI will constitute a change of control transaction, or reverse merger, requiring us to meet Nasdaq s initial listing requirements at the time of closing. These requirements include that our shareholder equity immediately after the merger exceeds \$30 million, and that our common stock satisfies a \$5 per share minimum bid price immediately after closing. We have determined that our shareholder equity immediately after the merger would not satisfy this requirement. As a result, if we are unable to convince Nasdaq staff that the merger does not constitute a reverse merger, we anticipate that our common stock will be unable to remain listed on the Nasdaq National Market after the merger.

If we are unable to retain the listing of our common stock on the Nasdaq National Market, we and ONI intend to attempt to obtain a new listing on the Nasdaq SmallCap Market or American Stock Exchange. To obtain a new listing on the Nasdaq SmallCap Market, we anticipate that our common stock will need to satisfy a \$4 per share minimum bid price requirement immediately after closing. To obtain a new listing on the American Stock Exchange, we anticipate that our common stock will need to satisfy either a \$3 per share minimum bid price requirement or a \$50 million market capitalization requirement immediately after closing. Based on the recent trading price of our common stock, we do not anticipate that our common stock would be able to satisfy either of these requirements unless we completed a reverse share split, in which shares of our common stock would be combined to increase the percentage ownership interest that each share represents. Our board of directors is permitted under Florida law to authorize a reverse share split without the approval of our shareholders, and may consider authorizing such a split to obtain a listing on the Nasdaq SmallCap Market or American Stock Exchange.

If we are unable to retain our listing on the Nasdaq National Market, or obtain a new listing on the Nasdaq SmallCap Market or American Stock Exchange, we may seek to have our stock quoted on the NASD s OTC Bulletin Board, which is an inter-dealer, over-the-counter market that provides significantly less liquidity than the Nasdaq National Market, Nasdaq SmallCap Market or American Stock Exchange. Quotes for stocks included on the OTC Bulletin Board are not as widely listed in the financial sections of newspapers as are those for the Nasdaq National Market. Therefore, prices for securities traded solely on the OTC Bulletin Board may be difficult to obtain and holders of our common stock may be unable to resell their securities at any price. See Risk Factors Risks Related to the Combined Company.

Required Vote

The approval of the share issuance requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the total votes cast on the proposal. Only shares that are voted FOR or AGAINST the proposal will be counted towards the vote requirement. Thus, shares represented at the meeting that are marked ABSTAIN, and broker non-votes, if any, will not be counted towards the vote requirement. Additionally, if you do not complete and return a proxy card and do not attend the special meeting, there will be no effect on the outcome of the vote on the proposal.

Background of the Merger

For several years, our board of directors had been considering various strategic alternatives in anticipation of the potential impact should drug-eluting stents come to market. In the latter part of 2000, the board considered various opportunities to sell Novoste to strategic buyers, merge with potential partners or acquire other technologies which could leverage our distribution and organizational strengths. Throughout 2001 and 2002, the board considered more than 70 companies after organizing a team composed of several board members and senior managers to screen opportunities. During this period, the board also considered various development projects within Novoste and the likelihood of successful introduction into the market.

Our business and revenues began a steady and rapid decline during 2003 due to, we believe, the approval by the FDA in April 2003 of the market release of drug-eluting stents. In anticipation of this new product technology, our management and board of directors accelerated our

exploration and review of various strategic opportunities and alliances available to us, as well as restructuring activities, shortly after the appointment in October 2002 of Mr. Novak as our President and Chief Executive Officer. In April 2003, we engaged a financial

Table of Contents

advisor to assist us in our review of the strategic alternatives that were available to us and to assist us in our bid for a medical device company that was offered for sale. We were unsuccessful in our bid and we allowed our engagement with this financial advisor to expire. In addition, in anticipation of the impact of drug-eluting stents upon our business, we engaged during 2003 in a restructuring of our organization and significantly reduced our work force over the course of three separate staff reductions. As a result, by the end of 2003, nearly 30% of our workforce had been terminated. Our cost reduction program continued into the first and second quarters of 2004 and included, among other things, the consolidation of all our U.S. operations into a single building. Specifically, at the end of the first quarter of 2004, we implemented a reduction in force, eliminating 84 positions across all functions. This reduction lowered annual operating costs by approximately \$6,000,000. During the first quarter of 2004, approximately 59 of the individuals left Novoste, with the remaining individuals leaving during the second and third quarters. In February 2005, we announced that we were reducing our remaining United States workforce in the first quarter of 2005 by 52 employees, from 81 employees, and terminating the 16 employees we had at that time outside the U.S. in accordance with their contracts and the relevant country s employment regulations. We currently have 26 employees, two of whom are employed outside the U.S.

In April 2004, our board of directors, upon the recommendation of management, approved the engagement of Asanté Partners as our investment banking and strategic financial advisor to assist us with our efforts to identify and implement strategic and financial alternatives.

Since April 2004, we and Asanté Partners have identified over 75 businesses as potential candidates for a business combination transaction with us and preliminarily evaluated the merits and likelihood of entering a transaction with each such entity. Novoste and Asanté Partners contacted 67 of those entities to determine their interest in a strategic transaction and held substantial discussions with 10 of those companies.

In September 2004, we and our advisors had engaged in discussions with a European company in the radiation business. The European company had expressed an interest in acquiring our VBT business to complement its other businesses in the United States. The initial proposal submitted by the European company was for it to make a tender offer for all of our outstanding common stock. Before the commencement of its due diligence efforts on our VBT business, the European company had proposed a preliminary per share tender offer price of \$1.05 per share.

We subsequently expanded our search for strategic alternatives outside the cardiology, vascular and radiation therapy fields. On December 14, 2004, Mr. Stephen Shapiro, a member of our board of directors, met with Mr. Novak and advised him of a potential opportunity for us with ONI, a company headquartered in Wilmington, Massachusetts that develops, manufactures and markets dedicated-purpose magnetic resonance imaging systems. Mr. Shapiro is also a director of ONI. Mr. Novak also was informed that Galen Partners IV, LP, to which Mr. Shapiro has provided independent consulting services in the past, is a controlling shareholder of ONI. On December 14, 2004, Mr. Shapiro called Mr. Bruce Wesson, the chairman of the ONI board of directors and the managing director of Galen Partners IV, LP, which at the time owned approximately 38.5% of ONI s common stock on a fully diluted basis. During the call, Mr. Shapiro proposed that the companies explore a potential business combination.

On December 15, 2004, Mr. Novak advised our board of Mr. Shapiro s communication and provided our board with basic information about ONI.

Also on December 15, 2004, Mr. Wesson contacted Mr. Robert Kwolyk and Ms. Darlene Deptula-Hicks, the chief executive officer and chief financial officer of ONI, respectively, to discuss his conversations with Mr. Shapiro and solicited Mr. Kwolyk s and Ms. Deptula-Hicks views concerning a possible business combination between ONI and Novoste. During the call, Mr. Wesson suggested that ONI engage a financial advisor to assist senior management with their evaluation of any possible transaction. The potential engagement of First Albany Capital Inc. as a financial advisor was discussed at length because First Albany had a prior working relationship with a member of ONI s senior management and because of its substantial experience in similar transactions.

34

Table of Contents

Later that day, Ms. Deptula-Hicks contacted Jeff Barlow of First Albany to discuss the potential engagement of First Albany to assist ONI management in its analysis of a potential combination with Novoste.

On December 16, 2004, Mr. Kwolyk and Ms. Deptula-Hicks held a conference call with First Albany and ONI s legal counsel, Foley Hoag LLP, to discuss their preliminary assessment of the potential risks and liabilities and strategic and financial benefits of a business combination with Novoste. During this call, the parties discussed potential structures for a transaction and the expected valuations for each company.

At a December 17, 2004 meeting of the Novoste board of directors, Mr. Novak reported to our board, in more detail, regarding the ONI opportunity. Mr. Novak advised the board, among other things, that ONI currently had a commercial product, but was in need of cash for further development and market expansion.

In addition, Mr. James McLaren of Asanté Partners reported to the Novoste board at the December 17, 2004 meeting that during the prior week, he had engaged in conversations with Mr. Shapiro and Mr. Wesson and had confirmed that Galen Partners and ONI management were interested in pursuing a strategic transaction between ONI and Novoste. He advised the board that ONI was a relatively small business, but that it had generated revenues selling its dedicated-purpose magnetic resonance imaging system and that Galen Partners believed the market for the system could be substantial in the United States. He reported further that the founders of ONI were former executives of General Electric Company, who had significant experience in the magnetic resonance imaging industry.

Mr. Novak visited the offices and facilities of ONI on December 20 and 21, 2004. During these visits Mr. Novak met with ONI s management and the individuals at ONI responsible for the development of new products and toured the facilities. Mr. Novak engaged in discussions with ONI s management regarding a potential strategic transaction involving the two companies as well as the interest of ONI s management in such a strategic transaction.

On December 19, 2004, Ms. Deptula-Hicks had discussions with Ernst & Young LLP to discuss a potential engagement to assist ONI with due diligence in connection with a possible transaction with Novoste. Ernst & Young has been ONI s independent auditor since 2002 and also has been our independent auditor since 1992.

The morning of December 23, 2004 Mr. Wesson received a letter from Mr. McLaren of Asanté Partners. The letter confirmed that Novoste believed that a merger with ONI was an attractive opportunity and proposed a transaction whereby Novoste would acquire ONI for a combination of cash and stock.

On December 31, 2004, ONI engaged First Albany to assist ONI senior management in evaluating and negotiating a potential transaction with Novoste.

A regular meeting of the ONI board of directors was held telephonically on January 4, 2005. The board had a lengthy discussion regarding possible venture financing sources for ONI and the potential for a business combination with Novoste. The ONI board discussed the competitive dynamics affecting Novoste s business, the anticipated costs and benefits of merging with a public company, and the economic considerations of pursuing a strategic transaction with Novoste. The ONI board was supportive of ONI senior management having continued discussions with Mr. Novak with the goal of developing a common understanding of the rationale and acceptable terms of a potential transaction. The ONI board then authorized ONI senior management to deliver a letter of intent to Novoste.

On January 5, 2005, ONI delivered a proposed letter of intent to Mr. Novak. ONI proposed a transaction in which ONI would merge with a subsidiary of Novoste in exchange for Novoste common stock. The letter of intent included an exclusivity period and confidentiality provisions.

Our board of directors met on January 7, 2005. Representatives from Hogan & Hartson L.L.P., our legal counsel, and Asanté Partners were present at the meeting. Both the potential ONI transaction and the status of negotiations with the European company were discussed and reviewed by the board and its advisors.

The representatives from Hogan & Hartson L.L.P. discussed with the board the fiduciary duties and responsibilities of our board members with respect to the board s analysis of the potential transactions being discussed.

35

Table of Contents

Mr. McLaren of Asanté Partners reviewed with the board the proposal being made by ONI. Mr. McLaren advised the board that the proposed transaction would entail Novoste acquiring ONI by a merger pursuant to which ONI would become a wholly owned subsidiary of Novoste and all outstanding ONI equity securities would be converted into the right to receive shares of our common stock. Based upon the preliminary anticipated valuations of ONI and Novoste, Mr. McLaren indicated that it was expected that the shareholders of ONI would own more than a majority of our outstanding common stock immediately after the merger. At the meeting, Mr. Brian Pasdach of Asanté Partners reviewed with our board a summary of the financial data of ONI.

Mr. McLaren reviewed for the board the current proposal from the European company, advising the board that it had not yet conducted due diligence of Novoste and that discussions had not been completed regarding certain elements of the proposal. The board, after review and discussion of the two alternatives, authorized management to proceed with the negotiation and analysis of both proposals.

On January 10, 2005, senior management from ONI and Novoste continued their discussions by telephone concerning the structure of a possible transaction, the time required to complete such a transaction and the need for a Novoste shareholder vote. The parties discussed due diligence items, preparation and filing of a proxy statement and the schedule for completing the audit of ONI s financial statements for 2004.

On January 18, 2005, the board of directors of ONI held a telephonic meeting in order to update the board on recent discussions with senior management of Novoste. The board discussed some of the due diligence being conducted by Novoste and authorized ONI management to provide Novoste with additional financial and market information.

On January 20, 2005, the board of directors of ONI held a telephonic meeting to continue discussions of the terms of a possible transaction with Novoste. The board discussed the aspects of a potential term loan from Novoste as part of the transaction. The board supported senior management s recommendation to continue exploring the possibility of a transaction with Novoste.

On January 24, 2005, representatives from First Albany and Asanté Partners held discussions regarding the timing of a possible transaction and the exclusivity of negotiations between Novoste and ONI. First Albany expressed ONI s concern that the uncertainty and the extended time necessary to solicit a Novoste shareholder vote would make it more difficult to raise capital from other sources if a transaction with Novoste did not receive shareholder approval. First Albany proposed that Novoste provide a bridge loan to address ONI s concerns and the parties discussed potential terms of such a loan. After these discussions, Asanté Partners discussed the possibility and potential terms of a bridge loan to ONI with Novoste senior management and forwarded draft terms to First Albany. Thereafter, ONI senior management drafted a revised letter of intent to be delivered to Novoste.

On January 24, 25, and 26, 2005, management of the European company conducted a due diligence review of our operations at our facility in Norcross, Georgia. The due diligence efforts involved an extensive review of information prepared by us in response to the European company s due diligence requests, along with meetings and discussions with our management and employees.

After these due diligence efforts, discussions continued between our and the European company s financial advisors regarding a potential transaction. Pursuant to these discussions and negotiations, the European company presented a revised proposal to us which provided for a tender offer at a cash price of \$0.60 per share of our common stock. We subsequently provided additional information to the European company to support a higher valuation for our common stock and the European company, after consideration of this information, increased its offer to a price of \$0.75 per share of our common stock.

On January 26, 2005 the board of directors of ONI held a regularly scheduled meeting. At the meeting, ONI senior management presented the board with an update on three possible equity financing opportunities and an update on the discussions with management of Novoste. The ONI board of directors discussed the relative valuations they expected ONI would receive from each type of financing transaction and discussed the amount, interest rate and security that would be acceptable in connection with a bridge loan from Novoste. The ONI board of directors encouraged ONI senior management to continue to explore potential venture sources as well as a possible transaction with Novoste.

36

Table of Contents

In January 2005, we filed a Current Report on Form 8-K with the Securities and Exchange Commission to disclose that as part of our review of potential strategic alternatives, we had received inquiries from and had engaged in discussions with several companies potentially interested in a merger or business combination with us. We also disclosed that if a suitable transaction resolving our future on acceptable terms did not become available in the near term, we would need to consider other alternatives, which could include a shut down of our operations, and liquidation and dissolution.

On February 3, 2005, ONI delivered a revised letter of intent to Novoste. During the next week, ONI and Novoste, through their counsel, negotiated the terms of the letter of intent.

On February 11, 2005, the ONI board of directors met to discuss the revised letter of intent. At this meeting, ONI senior management again presented the strategic rationale and the financial implications of the proposed transaction. First Albany gave a presentation concerning the terms of the letter of intent, including the proposal that Novoste would provide ONI with a bridge loan at the time of signing of the merger agreement. After some discussion, the ONI board authorized management to enter into the letter of intent with changes to the provisions concerning the bridge loan and the liabilities associated with Novoste s wind-down plan. After the board meeting, the members of the ONI board not affiliated with Galen Partners met in executive session to discuss negotiations with the holders of ONI s Series A preferred stock in connection with soliciting their consent to a strategic transaction with Novoste and their waiver of certain preemptive rights and preferences. After a lengthy discussion, the group authorized Mr. Douglas Feick, a director of ONI unaffiliated with Galen Partners, to negotiate an exchange ratio with the holders of the Series A preferred stock which would be applicable in a Novoste transaction and which would fairly compensate the holders of ONI s Series A preferred stock for waiving their rights and preferences. Mr. Feick was a partner with Sage Hill Partners, an institutional investor in ONI which as of June 30, 2005 held approximately 193,798 shares, or approximately 2%, of the outstanding ONI Series A preferred stock.

Our board of directors met on February 12, 2005. The board s advisors, Hogan & Hartson L.L.P. and Asanté Partners, were present at the meeting. Mr. Novak advised the board of management s belief that the European company s per share price proposal was inadequate and also expressed concerns regarding the Europeans company s ability to complete a transaction on terms acceptable to us and in a timely manner. In addition, Mr. Novak advised the board that in the course of discussions between Mr. McLaren and the financial advisors to the European company, Mr. McLaren had been informed that any revised offer from the European company would not be substantially higher than the one that had been most recently presented.

Management and Asanté Partners then discussed with the board the proposed ONI transaction. Mr. Novak described and discussed with the board the current proposal from ONI and the anticipated schedule for completing a transaction with ONI. He also reported to the board that a market research organization with whom we have worked in the past had been engaged to conduct a market survey relating to ONI s current dedicated-purpose magnetic resonance imaging system, the OrthOne, and physicians—satisfaction with that system. The market research firm had also assisted ONI in evaluating its follow-on product and assessing the market potential for this new product. In addition, Mr. Novak also explained to the board that Mr. Robert Wood, our then Vice President, Sales and Marketing, would engage in discussions with ONI sales and marketing personnel as part of our due diligence review of ONI. After further discussion of the ONI proposal with our management and the board—s advisors, the board authorized Mr. Novak to enter into a letter of intent with ONI and to proceed with further due diligence efforts to determine the merits of the proposed transaction. Promptly after the meeting, we entered into a non-binding letter of intent with ONI regarding the proposed transaction. The letter of intent provided a basic description of the economic terms of the proposed transaction and included both confidentiality and exclusivity provisions. The term of exclusive dealings was initially set to expire upon the earlier of March 6, 2005 or the mutual written agreement of Novoste and ONI not to proceed with negotiations.

On February 14, 15, and 16, 2005, ONI management and its advisors conducted due diligence at our headquarters in Norcross, Georgia. The ONI due diligence team reviewed the information prepared by us in response to ONI s due diligence requests, toured our facilities and met with employees and management.

37

Table of Contents

Our board of directors met on February 21, 2005. The board discussed the current status of our VBT business and determined that the VBT business was no longer viable. The board authorized management to undertake a staged wind-down of the VBT business. The board determined that this decision was necessary to preserve our cash resources. The board also authorized a further reduction in our workforce. We filed a Current Report on Form 8-K with the SEC to report these developments.

On February 22, 23, and 24, 2005, members of our management and representatives from Hogan & Hartson L.L.P. and Asanté Partners conducted business, financial and accounting due diligence at ONI s corporate headquarters in Wilmington, Massachusetts. The due diligence efforts included a review of, and related discussions with ONI management regarding, ONI s financial statements and business plan, a tour of its manufacturing and administrative facilities and discussions with ONI employees and management. In addition, on February 23, 2005, Mr. Novak and representatives from Asanté Partners attended the American Academy of Orthopedic Surgeons trade show with representatives of ONI s sales team and talked to trade show participants about ONI and its product.

On February 25, 2005 counsel to ONI circulated the first draft of the merger agreement to us. On February 26, 2005, our senior management, counsel and financial advisor held teleconferences in which we discussed a number of business terms in the initial draft of the merger agreement, including, among other things, provisions regarding the payment of break-up fees in certain circumstances, the termination rights and no-shop obligations of the parties and provisions regarding the merger exchange ratios. On February 27, 2005, our counsel orally provided our first response to the draft merger agreement to ONI s counsel, and conveyed our positions on these business terms. During the week of February 28, 2005, our senior management and financial advisor communicated our comments regarding these issues to ONI and its financial advisor, and on March 2, 2005, scheduled a face-to-face meeting among Novoste s and ONI s senior management and respective financial and legal advisors for March 3, 2005.

On March 3, 2005, senior management of Novoste and ONI, along with our respective financial and legal advisors, met in the offices of Foley Hoag LLP in Boston, Massachusetts, to discuss these key business terms and review and negotiate the other terms of the proposed transaction and the related documentation. At this meeting, several of these issues were resolved in principle, and the parties agreed that ONI s counsel would circulate a revised draft of certain sections of the merger agreement based on the resolution of several matters discussed at the meeting, while our counsel would prepare comments on the remaining sections of the agreement.

Our board of directors met on March 4, 2005, to receive an update from our management and our legal and financial advisors on the status of the negotiations with ONI. Mr. Novak discussed with the board various issues currently being negotiated, including the valuation of our assets and liabilities, and the anticipated schedule for completing the proposed transaction with ONI. Mr. Novak discussed various valuation issues with the board and the proposed means to determine the percentage of ownership of the combined company by the current Novoste and ONI shareholders at the close of the transaction. Mr. Novak explained to the board that the ownership allocation would be based upon the amount of net cash assets that Novoste has at the time of closing and the number of orders for, and shipments of, ONI s OrthOne systems.

Also on March 4, 2005, the ONI board of directors met to receive an update on the previous day s negotiations with Novoste. Senior management informed the board that progress had been made in negotiating the terms of a potential business combination and that even though there was no agreement on financial terms, it appeared, based on recent discussions with Mr. Novak, that the ONI valuation would be based on an initial estimate of more than \$20,000,000. Mr. Kwolyk stressed to the board that there were still significant due diligence items under review, including contingent liabilities associated with the wind-down plan of the VBT business. The ONI board then authorized ONI s senior management, financial and legal advisors to negotiate definitive transaction documents to be presented to the board.

Table of Contents

On March 4, 2005, ONI and Novoste executed a letter agreement extending the exclusivity period in the letter of intent until March 16, 2005.

On March 8, 2005, counsel to ONI circulated a revised draft of certain sections of the draft merger agreement, and our counsel provided written comments on the remaining sections of the draft agreement. On March 11, 2005 and March 14, 2005, counsel to ONI responded with revised drafts of the proposed merger agreement. The negotiations surrounding the early drafts of the documents focused on several matters including the mechanism for determining the respective valuations of ONI and Novoste at closing and the resulting merger exchange ratios, the termination and non-solicitation provisions.

At a regular meeting of the ONI board of directors on March 17, 2005, ONI senior management updated the board on the results of ONI s due diligence review of Novoste. There was lengthy discussion regarding the detail of the Novoste wind-down plan for the VBT business and the adjustment mechanisms provided in the proposed merger agreement for the ONI and the Novoste valuations.

On March 23, 2005, counsel for Novoste circulated a revised draft of the merger agreement, an updated wind-down plan for the VBT business and a draft of a preliminary calculation statement under which Novoste and ONI would agree to a mechanism and process for determining our net cash assets at closing, including stipulated dollar values for several of our assets and liabilities.

Senior management of Novoste and ONI, along with our respective financial and legal advisors, met again on April 1, 2005 at the offices of Hogan & Hartson L.L.P. in Washington, D.C. During the course of the discussions and negotiations, various issues were resolved with regard to the merger agreement, including assigning valuation amounts for certain of our identified assets and liabilities, the methodology to be utilized to determine ONI s valuation and the establishment of valuation collars and termination rights for determining the respective ownership interests of the parties at the time of the transaction s closing. After the meeting, a revised draft merger agreement was prepared and distributed to the parties. Over the next four weeks, representatives of the two companies and their respective advisers negotiated the final terms of the merger agreement, our loan to ONI, ONI s promissory note to us, the stock purchase warrant to allow us to acquire shares of ONI s preferred stock and the voting agreement to be signed by our executive officers and directors. The parties also completed their due diligence analyses during this period. On May 5, 2005, attorneys for ONI and Novoste finalized the documentation concerning the respective valuations of the two companies. Following these negotiations, the management of the two companies agreed to recommend the transaction to their respective boards of directors.

The ONI board of directors met on May 11, 2005 and reviewed the proposed transaction. At that meeting, ONI s senior management and financial and legal advisors reviewed the terms and financial implications of the transaction and the exchange ratio, or consideration, to be received by the holders of ONI s common stock, preferred stock, stock purchase warrants and stock options. In addition, management provided their views of the transaction. Following extensive discussion and review of the transaction, the ONI board voted unanimously to approve the merger agreement.

On May 11, 2005, our board of directors met to review and consider the merger agreement, the proposed loan and the other transaction documents. The board received a presentation from Hogan & Hartson L.L.P. regarding the fiduciary duties and responsibilities of the board in connection with the transaction. Hogan & Hartson L.L.P. provided the board with a detailed review of the material terms and conditions of the merger agreement and related transaction documents. The board received a presentation and review of the ONI transaction by our senior management, including a summary of the due diligence performed by us on ONI and its business. Asanté Partners presented the results of its financial and valuation analysis of ONI and the proposed transaction.

39

Table of Contents

After discussion of the information presented, the board requested that our management arrange for a presentation to the board by ONI s senior management on May 13, 2005. Additionally the board was briefed by our management of the receipt on May 10, 2005 of a proposal by a third party to acquire all of our outstanding common stock by tender offer. Among other things, the proposal required a 30-day due diligence period, a minimum tender condition of 80% of our outstanding common stock in the tender offer and a 90-day exclusivity period. The proposal stated a tender offer price of \$0.90 cash per share. After discussing this development, the board authorized Mr. Novak to respond to the proposal and seek agreement on certain terms more favorable to our shareholders, including an increase in the per share purchase price to \$1.00, a reduction in the minimum tender condition to 50.1%, a break-up fee provision, reduced due diligence and exclusivity periods, and an agreement to commence the tender offer within nine days.

On May 12, 2005, the third party suitor responded to Mr. Novak s request and indicated that it was unwilling to increase its proposed purchase price, reduce the 30-day due diligence period, commence the tender offer by the requested date, or pay a break-up fee if the third party did not commence the tender offer. The third party suitor indicated that it would only commence the tender offer after completion of its due diligence review and the negotiation of a definitive merger agreement.

On May 13, 2005, ONI s senior management made a presentation to our board regarding, among other things, ONI s business, its product, its strategy and business plan, its competitors and the potential market for its product. During this meeting, our board questioned ONI s senior management on these various matters. After completion of the presentation, Mr. Novak updated the board on the third-party tender offer proposal. After discussion and due consideration, the board determined that the tender offer proposal contained too many contingencies and uncertainties to warrant further consideration and that the proposed merger with ONI provided more certainty of completion of a transaction.

On May 16, 2005, our board reconvened to consider the proposed merger agreement and loan to ONI. Mr. Novak updated the board on his recent discussions with various members of ONI management and its board of directors. Asanté Partners presented the final results of its financial and valuation analyses of ONI and the proposed transaction and delivered to the board its oral opinion, subsequently confirmed in writing, that as of that date, the merger consideration to be paid by Novoste in connection with the ONI merger was fair to Novoste from a financial point of view.

The board discussed the information presented by our management and financial advisors. After discussion and due consideration, the board unanimously concluded (with Mr. Shapiro recused from the matters) that the transaction with ONI was in the best interests of Novoste and its shareholders and approved the merger agreement and related agreements, including the loan to ONI in the amount of \$3 million.

On May 17, 2005, significant holders of ONI Series A preferred stock entered into a stockholders agreement with ONI in which they waived certain pre-emptive rights in connection with the merger and agreed to terminate other rights and preferences conditioned upon the closing of a merger with Novoste.

On May 17, 2005, the ONI board of directors executed a unanimous written consent directing the senior management of ONI to seek shareholder approval of the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated therein. On the same day, acting by written consent, the ONI shareholders voted to adopt the merger agreement and the related transactions. The holders of the ONI Series A preferred stock also voted to amend the ONI charter to eliminate provisions relating to the ONI Series A preferred stock dividends, conditioned on the closing of a merger with Novoste.

On May 18, 2005, we and ONI executed the merger agreement and related transaction documents, including the promissory note and stock purchase warrant, and, on May 19, 2005, we transferred to ONI the loan amount of \$3 million.

Recommendation of our Board of Directors and Reasons for the Merger

At a meeting on May 16, 2005, our board of directors unanimously (with one director recused from the matters) determined that the merger and the merger agreement are advisable, fair to and in the best interests of our shareholders, approved the merger agreement, the share issuance and the two amendments to our articles of incorporation, and recommended that you vote in favor of the share issuance and the two amendments.

In reaching its determination to approve the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby and to recommend that our shareholders approve proposals 1, 2 and 3, our board identified several potential benefits for us and our shareholders, including:

the combination with ONI would result in a combined company with a viable business product;

the combination affords our existing shareholders an opportunity for future value that the board believes is currently unavailable given our existing technology;

the potential for growth in ONI s specific business market segment of providing dedicated-purpose, high-field, extremity MRI systems; and

the commitment of ONI to complete the merger on an expedited basis.

Our board consulted with our management, as well as our financial advisor and legal counsel in reaching its decision to approve the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby. The factors that the Novoste board considered include:

the benefits described above;

historical information concerning ONI s and our respective businesses, financial performance, financial condition, operations and management;

our management s view of ONI s and our current business prospects;

our management s view of the financial condition, results of operations and businesses of ONI and Novoste before and after giving effect to the merger and information regarding the merger s potential effect on our shareholder value;

reports from our management and legal, financial and accounting advisors regarding the results of the due diligence investigation of ONI:

presentations by ONI management regarding ONI s business, its technology, its product, its operations and its business plan;

the opinion of our financial advisor, Asanté Partners, as to the fairness to us, from a financial point of view, of the consideration to be paid in the merger;

our board s belief that the terms of the merger agreement are fair and reasonable;

the terms and conditions of the merger agreement, including the conditions to closing, the termination fee payable to us under certain circumstances, and our ability to terminate the merger agreement for a superior proposal;

that the merger consideration consists of shares of our common stock and does not require the use of cash except for cash paid for fractional shares or upon the exercise of dissenters rights by ONI s shareholders;

the qualification of the merger as a tax-free transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes;

the provisions of the merger agreement for determining the composition of the board of directors of the combined company, and the fact that we will initially appoint four of the nine directors on the board and that Mr. Novak will be a nominee of ONI;

41

Table of Contents

that the merger is the culmination of a search for a strategic transaction that began over a year ago; and

the lack of other future business opportunities for us following the implementation of our wind-down of our VBT business.

Our board of directors also identified and considered various potentially negative factors in its deliberations concerning the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including:

the limited operating history of ONI;

the risks related to the immediate and substantial dilution of the equity interests and voting power of our shareholders upon the share issuance and completion of the merger;

the limited public company experience of ONI management;

the risks related to the ability of ONI s current shareholders to significantly influence our business after the share issuance and completion of the merger;

the risk that the combined company may be unable to raise additional capital in the future;

the risk of future competition in ONI s business segment;

the risk that ONI may be unable to successfully implement its business strategy and growth plan; and

certain of the risks described above under Risk Factors beginning on page 13.

After due consideration, our board concluded that the potential benefits of the merger to our shareholders outweighed the risks associated with the merger.

Although not exhaustive, this discussion of the information and factors considered by our board comprises the material factors considered. In view of the wide variety of factors considered in connection with the board sevaluation of the merger and related transactions, our board did not quantify or otherwise assign relative weights to the factors described. Rather, our board made its determination based on the totality of the information it considered. Our board cannot assure you that any of the expected results, opportunities or other benefits described in this section will be achieved as a result of the merger.

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR PROPOSAL 1.

42

Opinion of our Financial Advisor

Our board of directors retained Asanté Partners in April 2004 to act as our investment banking and strategic financial advisor to assist us in our efforts to implement strategic and financial alternatives. In that role, Asanté Partners has acted as our financial advisor in connection with the merger. At a meeting of our board on May 16, 2005 Asanté Partners rendered its oral opinion, subsequently confirmed in writing on May 16, 2005, that as of that date, and subject to and based on the various assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered and qualifications and limitations of the review set forth therein, the merger consideration was fair to Novoste from a financial point of view.

The full text of the opinion of Asanté Partners, dated May 16, 2005, which states, among other things, the assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered and limitations on the review undertaken by Asanté Partners, is attached as *Annex B* to this proxy statement. You should read this opinion carefully and in its entirety. This summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the opinion.

The Asanté Partners opinion was directed to our board and addressed only the fairness, as of the date of the opinion, from a financial point of view to Novoste of the merger consideration.

The opinion of Asanté Partners did not address our underlying business decision to proceed with or effect the merger, the merits of the merger as compared to other alternatives potentially available to us or the relative effects of any alternative transaction in which we might engage, nor did it constitute a recommendation to any holder of shares of our common stock as to how such holder should vote with respect to the merger or any other matter. Asanté Partners was not asked to, nor did it, offer any opinion as to any term of the merger agreement or the form of the merger, other than as to the fairness, from a financial point of view, as of the date of the opinion, of the merger consideration to Novoste. In rendering its opinion, Asanté Partners assumed, with our board s consent, that each party to the merger agreement would comply with all the material terms of the merger agreement.

In arriving at its opinion, Asanté Partners, among other things:

reviewed a draft of the merger agreement dated May 9, 2005, including certain exhibits thereto;

reviewed publicly available information relating to Novoste including: the Annual Reports to Shareholders and Annual Reports on Form 10-K of Novoste for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 and the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003 and the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Novoste for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, and current reports on Form 8-K of Novoste;

reviewed certain information prepared by or for ONI management, including, a Private Placement Memorandum, dated August 11, 2002; the audited financial statements of ONI for the three fiscal years ended December 31, 2004; internal unaudited financial statements of ONI for the three months ended March 31, 2005; orders and shipments for ONI products as of March 31, 2005 and a prospect list of potential orders dated May 5, 2005; presentations prepared by ONI management dated February 22, 2005 regarding ONI s business and its 5-year financial projections through fiscal 2009;

reviewed and discussed with representatives of a market research organization an evaluation of the orthopedic MRI imaging equipment market prepared by that organization, dated February 25, 2004;

discussed with senior management of Novoste and ONI their respective companies historical and current operations, financial condition, strategic objectives and future prospects (including Novoste s proposed wind-down plan);

reviewed a financial due diligence review of ONI prepared by an outside accounting firm on behalf of Novoste and dated March 7, 2005;

reviewed the historical prices and trading volumes of the common stock of Novoste;

visited the headquarters of Novoste and ONI;

43

Table of Contents

reviewed the pro forma impact of the merger on Novoste;

participated in discussions and negotiations among representatives of Novoste and ONI and their respective legal and financial advisors:

reviewed certain financial data for Novoste and ONI and compared such information with similar information for certain publicly traded companies which it deemed comparable;

reviewed certain mergers and acquisitions of businesses which it deemed comparable;

solicited interest from other parties in merging with or acquiring Novoste or its assets or in licensing products to Novoste; and

performed such other analyses and investigations and considered such other factors as it deemed appropriate.

In preparing its opinion, Asanté Partners assumed and relied on the accuracy and completeness of all information supplied or otherwise made available to it, discussed with or reviewed by or for it, or that was publicly available. Asanté Partners did not assume any responsibility for independently verifying such information or undertake an independent evaluation or appraisal of any of the assets or liabilities of Novoste or ONI, nor did Asanté Partners evaluate the solvency or fair value of Novoste or ONI under any U.S. state, U.S. federal or any other applicable laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency or similar matters. In addition, Asanté Partners did not assume any obligation to conduct any physical inspection of the properties or facilities of Novoste or ONI. With respect to the financial forecast information furnished to or discussed with Asanté Partners by Novoste or ONI, Asanté Partners assumed that all this information had been reasonably prepared and reflected the best currently available estimates and judgments of the management of Novoste or ONI, as applicable, as to the expected future financial performance of Novoste or ONI, as the case may be. With respect to legal or regulatory matters, Asanté Partners relied on the advice of Novoste s legal and regulatory advisors. Asanté Partners also assumed that the final form of the merger agreement would be substantially similar to the last draft that it reviewed.

We believe that the final form of the merger agreement was not substantially different from the draft reviewed by Asanté Partners.

Asanté Partners opinion was necessarily based upon market, economic and other conditions as they existed and could be evaluated on, and on the information made available to Asanté Partners as of, the date of its opinion. Asanté Partners has no obligation to update, revise or reaffirm its opinion. Asanté Partners assumed that, in the course of obtaining the necessary consents or approvals (contractual or otherwise) for the proposed merger, no restrictions would be imposed that would have a material adverse effect on the contemplated benefits of the proposed merger.

Financial Analyses

At a May 11, 2005 meeting of the Novoste board of directors, and in connection with preparing its opinion for the board, Asanté Partners made a presentation of certain financial analyses of the proposed merger.

The following is a summary of the material analyses contained in the presentation that was delivered to our board of directors. Some of the summaries of financial analyses include information presented in tabular format. In order to understand fully the financial analyses performed by Asanté Partners, the tables must be read together with the accompanying text of each summary. The tables alone do not constitute a complete description of the financial analyses, including the methodologies and assumptions underlying the analyses, and if viewed in isolation could create a misleading or incomplete view of the financial analyses performed by Asanté Partners.

The fact that any specific analysis has been referred to in the summary below and in this proxy statement is not meant to indicate that such analysis was given more weight than any other analysis; in reaching its conclusion, Asanté Partners arrived at its ultimate opinion based on the results of all analyses undertaken by it

44

and assessed as a whole and believes the totality of the factors considered by Asanté Partners in connection with its opinion operated collectively to support its determinations as to the fairness of the merger consideration from a financial point of view. Asanté Partners did not draw, in isolation, conclusions from or with regard to any one factor or method of analysis.

In arriving at its opinion, Asanté Partners made its determination as to the fairness, from a financial point of view, as of the date of the opinion, of the merger consideration to Novoste on the basis of the multiple financial and comparative analyses described below. The following summary is not a complete description of all of the analyses performed and factors considered by Asanté Partners in connection with its opinion, but rather is a summary of the material financial analyses performed and factors considered by Asanté Partners. The preparation of a fairness opinion is a complex process involving subjective judgments and is not necessarily susceptible to partial analysis. With respect to the analysis of publicly traded companies and the analyses of transactions summarized below, such analyses reflect selected companies and transactions, and not necessarily all companies or transactions, that may be considered relevant in evaluating Novoste, ONI or the merger. In addition, no company or transaction used as a comparison is either identical or directly comparable to Novoste, ONI or the merger. These analyses involve complex considerations and judgments concerning financial and operating characteristics and other factors that could affect the public trading or acquisition values of the companies concerned.

The estimates of future performance of Novoste and ONI provided by the management of both Novoste and ONI in or underlying Asanté Partners analyses are not necessarily indicative of future results or values, which may be significantly more or less favorable than those estimates. In performing its analyses, Asanté Partners considered industry performance, general business and economic conditions and other matters, many of which are beyond our or ONI s control. Estimates of the financial value of companies do not purport to be appraisals or reflect the prices at which companies actually may be sold.

The merger consideration was determined through negotiation between Novoste and ONI and the decision to enter into the merger was solely that of the respective boards of ONI and Novoste. The opinion and financial analyses of Asanté Partners were only one of many factors considered by Novoste s board in its evaluation of the merger and should not be viewed as determinative of the views of Novoste s board or management with respect to the merger or the merger consideration.

Asanté Partners assessed the value of the merger consideration by assessing the value of ONI and the combined company resulting from the merger using several methodologies, including an analysis at various prices, an analysis of future stock prices, a comparable company analysis using valuation multiples from selected publicly traded companies, a comparable transactions analysis using valuation multiples from selected transactions and certain discounted cash flow analyses, each of which is described in more detail in the summaries set forth below. Each of these methodologies was used to generate imputed valuation ranges that were then compared to the merger consideration.

Because the merger consideration is subject to variation based upon the amount of cash held by Novoste and the performance of ONI, Asanté Partners analyzed a range of possible outcomes. Asanté Partners performed certain analyses under each of three possible scenarios that were based on three sets of financial projections:

a case, referred to as the Base Case, which assumes steady revenue growth and cost growth through 2009;

a more positive case, referred to as the Upside Case, which assumes higher revenue growth and higher cost increases; and

a more negative case, referred to as the Downside Case, which assumes lower revenue growth and lower cost increases.

All three of these cases were based upon projections and estimates developed by ONI s and Novoste s management.

45

In addition, Asanté Partners generated a range of possible pro forma ownership totals of the combined company by the Novoste shareholders after the merger by assuming our net cash assets would range from \$10 million to \$17 million and ONI s orders and shipments from January 1, 2005 through May 31, 2005 would range from 16 to 44. Asanté Partners viewed the resulting pro forma ownership totals and, based on projections by the management of both Novoste and ONI, selected two totals it deemed most likely to occur a scenario under which Novoste shareholders would own 38.5% of the resulting company after the merger, referred to as the 38.5% Outcome, and a scenario under which Novoste shareholders would own 45% of the resulting company after the merger, referred to as the 45% Outcome. The 38.5% Outcome and 45% Outcome were then used for certain analyses as described below.

Analysis at Various Prices. In order to derive a range of implied equity value multiples for ONI, Asanté Partners performed certain analyses, based on historical information and projections provided by the management of both Novoste and ONI. Assuming share prices of \$0.80 to \$1.00 per share of Novoste common stock, Asanté Partners calculated the implied total enterprise value (on a fully diluted basis) of the merger, assuming the 38.5% Outcome and 16.3 million Novoste shares currently outstanding. Asanté Partners then calculated the ratio of the implied total equity value to (i) 2004 revenues and (ii) estimated 2005 revenues for each of the Base Case, the Upside Case and the Downside Case. The following table presents the results of Asanté Partners analysis based on prices of \$0.80, \$0.90 and \$1.00 per share (dollar amounts in millions, except for purchase price per share):

	\$0.80 per share	\$0.90 per share	\$1.00 per share
Total Enterprise Value as Multiple of:			
2004 Revenue	2.2x	2.4x	2.7x
2005 Revenue (estimated):			
Base Case	1.2x	1.3x	1.5x
Upside Case	1.0x	1.1x	1.2x
Downside Case	1.8x	2.0x	2.3x

Present Value of Future Stock Prices. Asanté Partners also analyzed the level at which the combined company s common stock might trade in the future, after the merger, based on projections by the management of both Novoste and ONI and then-current market conditions. These prices are referred to as the future stock prices, which were then discounted five years to January 1, 2005 at assumed discount rates of 30%, 35% and 40%. These discount rates were based on Asanté Partners judgment of the risks inherent in ONI s business and the industry in general. Estimated future stock prices were calculated based on (i) 2009 estimated revenue multiples ranging from 1.5x to 2.5x and (ii) 2009 stock price to earnings ratios, or P/E Ratios, ranging from 25.0x to 35.0x. Asanté Partners also assumed 16.3 million Novoste shares currently outstanding and a 35% tax rate. Asanté Partners calculated future stock prices for each of the Base Case, the Upside Case and the Downside Case under the 38.5% Outcome and the 45% Outcome.

Asanté Partners arrived at the following results under the 38.5% Outcome based on a range of multiples of 1.5x to 2.5x for estimated 2009 revenues and 25.0x to 35.0x for estimated 2009 P/E multiples. In the Base Case, this analysis implied an equity value range for the combined company s common stock of between \$0.66 and \$1.63 per share. In the Upside Case, this analysis implied an equity value range for the combined company s common stock of between \$1.06 and \$5.42 per share. In the Downside Case, this analysis implied an equity value range for the resulting company s common stock of between \$0.27 and \$1.27 per share. Asanté Partners compared these results to the price per share of our common stock before the announcement of the merger, which was \$0.86 per share.

For the 45% Outcome, Asanté Partners observed the following results based on a range of multiples of 1.5x to 2.5x for estimated 2009 revenues and 25.0x to 35.0x for estimated 2009 P/E multiples. In the Base Case, this analysis implied an equity value range for the combined company s common stock of between \$0.77 and \$1.92 per share. In the Upside Case, this analysis implied an equity value range for the combined company s common

Table of Contents

stock of between \$1.25 and \$6.33 per share. In the Downside Case, this analysis implied an equity value range for the combined company s common stock of between \$0.32 and \$1.50 per share. Asanté Partners compared these results to the price per share of Novoste s common stock before the announcement of the merger, which was \$0.86 per share.

Comparable Companies Analysis. In order to derive a range of implied values for ONI, Asanté Partners reviewed certain financial information of the following publicly traded companies that it deemed comparable to ONI:

CTI Molecular Imaging, Inc. Hologic, Inc.

Intermagnetics General Corporation Analogic Corporation

SonoSite, Inc. Schick Technologies Inc.

Fonar Corporation Digiral Corporation

Imaging Diagnostic Systems Inc. Fischer Imaging Corporation

Del Global Technologies Corp. DOBI Medical International Inc.

Asanté Partners selected this group from companies that are publicly traded medical imaging companies. No company used in the comparable companies analysis was identical to ONI. Asanté Partners performed this analysis to understand the range of multiples of revenue, earnings before interest and taxes, or EBIT, earnings and growth of these comparable companies based upon market prices.

Asanté Partners calculated certain financial ratios of these comparable companies based on the most recent publicly available information and consensus estimates of the Institutional Brokers Estimate System, including the multiples of:

enterprise value (calculated as equity value, plus debt less cash and investments) to the comparable company s revenues for the trailing twelve months ended March 31, 2005 and estimated revenues for the calendar year 2005;

enterprise value to EBIT of the comparable company for the trailing twelve months ended March 31, 2005 and estimated EBIT for the calendar year 2005;

P/E Ratios for the comparable companies using estimated earnings for the calendar years 2005 and 2006; and

The P/E Ratios for the calendar year 2005 for the comparable companies as a multiple of their projected long-term earnings per share growth rate.

In evaluating the multiples for the peer group, Asanté Partners made judgments and assumptions with regard to industry performance, general business, economic, market and financial conditions and other matters, many of which are beyond the control of Novoste and ONI. These other matters include the impact of competition on the business of ONI and the industry generally, industry growth and the absence of any material adverse change in the financial condition and prospects of ONI or in the industry or financial markets in general. Mathematical analysis, such as determining the average or median, is not in itself a meaningful method of using comparable company data.

Asanté Partners then compared the multiples derived from the selected companies with corresponding multiples for ONI based on the analysis at various prices described above. This analysis indicated the following implied mean and median enterprise value and stock price multiples for the selected companies, as compared to the multiples implied for ONI based on the analysis at various prices:

	-	Implied Multiples of Comparable Companies	
	Mean	Median	
Enterprise Values as Multiple of:			
Revenues			
Trailing Twelve Months ending 3/31/05	2.1x	1.8x	
2005 Estimated	2.3x	2.6x	
		Multiples for	
	ONI from	Multiples for in Analysis at its Prices (1)	
	ONI from	n Analysis at	
2004 Revenue	ONI from Variou	m Analysis at us Prices (1)	
2004 Revenue 2005 Revenue	ONI fron Variou Mean	Median	
	ONI fron Variou Mean	Median	
2005 Revenue	ONI from Variou Mean 2.4x	Median 2.4x	

⁽¹⁾ Assumes 38.5% outcome and 16.3 million Novoste shares outstanding. These multiples are the mean and median multiples derived from the analysis at various prices, which observed revenue multiples based on assumed Novoste stock prices ranging from \$0.80 to \$1.00. Please see the section above entitled Analysis at Various Prices for more information on the assumptions underlying this analysis.

Comparable Transactions Analysis. Using publicly available information, Asanté Partners reviewed the multiples exhibited and control premiums paid in certain change of control transactions involving companies deemed comparable to ONI by Asanté Partners. The review focused on transactions announced between 2000 and 2004 involving medical equipment manufacturers where the transaction value was approximately \$200 million or less. Asanté Partners identified 15 transactions worth between \$7.1 million and \$200.7 million involving these comparable companies in which transaction multiples were available. Below is a list of these transactions:

Date	Acquiror	Target
June 2004	CTI Molecular Imaging, Inc.	Concorde Microsystems Inc.
May 2004	Intermagnetics General Corporation	MRI Devices Corporation
January 2004	OSI Systems, Inc.	Spacelabs Medical (unit of Instrumentarium Corp.)
December 2003	Intermagnetics General Corporation.	Invivo Corporation
September 2003	Dräger Medical AG & Co. KGaA	Air-Shields (unit of Hillenbrand Industries, Inc.)
April 2003	Invivo Corporation	Medical Data Electronics, Inc. (subsidiary of Viasys Healthcare, Inc.)
January 2003	Ferraris Group Plc	Del Mar Medical Systems LLC
December 2002	Quinton Cardiology Systems, Inc.	Spacelabs Burdick, Inc. (subsidiary of Instrumentarium Corp.)
March 2002	Instrumentarium Corp.	Spacelabs Medical Inc.
December 2001	Respironics, Inc.	Novametrix Medical Systems Inc.
September 2001	GE Medical Systems (unit of General Electric Co.)	Imatron, Inc.
July 2001	GE Medical Systems (unit of General Electric Co.)	Kretztechnik AG (subsidiary of Medison Co., Ltd.)
October 2000	The Cooper Companies, Inc.	MedaSonics, Inc.
August 2000	GE Medical Systems (unit of General Electric Co.)	ELGEMS Ltd. (50% stake held by Elscint, Ltd.)
August 2000	Hologic, Inc.	Trex Medical Corp. (U.S. assets)

Asanté Partners performed this analysis to understand the range of multiples of revenue of these comparable transactions and estimate the comparable value of ONI.

The analysis showed that the average multiple of trailing twelve months revenue for the comparable companies exhibited in the change of control transactions listed above as of date of the announcement of the transactions was 1.2x, the median multiple was 0.8x and the high and low multiples were 2.7x and 0.3x, respectively. Asanté Partners utilized these selected multiples after comparing the current market conditions to the market conditions in existence at the time of the comparable transactions, the size and diversification of operations of the comparable companies involved in the transactions and current trends in change of control transactions involving comparable companies. Asanté Partners then compared the implied multiples derived from the selected transactions with the multiples for ONI implied by the analysis at various prices described above:

Implied Multiples for ONI from Analysis at Various Prices (1)

	Mean	Median	High	Low
2004 Revenue: 2005 Revenue:	2.4x	2.4x	2.7x	2.2x
Base Case	1.3x	1.3x	1.5x	1.2x
Upside Case	1.1x	1.1x	1.2x	1.0x
Downside Case	2.0x	2.0x	2.3x	1.8x

(1) Assumes 38.5% outcome and 16.3 million Novoste shares outstanding. These multiples are derived from the analysis at various prices, which observed revenue multiples based on assumed Novoste stock prices ranging from \$0.80 to \$1.00. Please see the section above entitled Analysis at Various Prices for more information on the assumptions underlying this analysis.

Discounted Cash Flow Methodology 38.5% Outcome. Using the 38.5% Outcome, Asanté Partners performed a discounted cash flow analysis of the combined company after the merger based upon each of the Base Case, the Upside Case and the Downside Case.

Utilizing projections provided by the management of both Novoste and ONI, Asanté Partners estimated ONI s annual unlevered free cash flows for the five years ending December 31, 2009. Based in part on current public market valuations, Asanté Partners assumed a range of terminal revenue multiples from 1.5x to 2.5x to calculate the value of ONI s terminal cash flows. Asanté Partners calculated the estimated present value of the annual unlevered free cash flows and terminal cash flows using a range of discount rates from 30% to 40% based on past transactions within the industry and Asanté Partners judgment of the risk inherent in ONI s business and the industry in general. Based on this analysis, Asanté Partners calculated ONI s equity value from the Base Case to be \$16.0 to \$53.6 million, from the Upside Case to be \$42.5 to \$104.7 million and from the Downside Case to be \$4.0 to \$31.8 million.

Asanté Partners then derived estimates of the combined company s annual unlevered free cash flows for the five years ending December 31, 2009, with pro forma adjustments to reflect the addition of our net cash assets (estimated to be \$12.9 million for purposes of this analysis) to ONI s cash flows in the combined company after the merger. Asanté Partners observed a range of equity values for the combined company ranging from \$28.9 million to \$66.5 million for the Base Case, with resulting pro forma values per share of our common stock of \$0.68 to \$1.57 per share (assuming 42.4 million shares outstanding after the completion of the merger and 16.3 million shares of our common stock outstanding before the merger). These values compare to the price per share of our common stock before the announcement of the merger, which was \$0.86 per share.

Discounted Cash Flow Methodology 45% Outcome. Asanté Partners also performed a similar discounted cash flow analysis of the combined company under the 45% Outcome utilizing the Base Case. Using the Novoste and ONI management projections contained in the Base Case, Asanté Partners estimated ONI s annual unlevered free cash flows for the five years ending December 31, 2009. Based in part on current public market valuations, Asanté Partners assumed a range of terminal revenue multiples from 1.5x to 2.5x to calculate the value of ONI s terminal cash flows. Asanté Partners calculated the estimated present value of the annual unlevered free cash flows and terminal cash flows using a range of

discount rates from 30% to 40% based on past transactions within

50

Table of Contents

the industry and Asanté Partners judgment of the risk inherent in ONI s business and the industry in general. Based on this analysis, Asanté Partners calculated ONI s equity value from the Base Case to be \$16.0 to \$53.6 million.

Asanté Partners then derived estimates of the combined company s annual unlevered free cash flows for the five years ending December 31, 2009, with pro forma adjustments to reflect the addition of our net cash assets (estimated to be \$15.0 million for purposes of this analysis) to ONI s cash flows in the combined company after the merger. Asanté Partners observed a range of equity values for the combined company ranging from \$31.0 million to \$68.6 million for the Base Case, with resulting pro forma values per share of our common stock of \$0.85 to \$1.89 per share (assuming 36.3 million shares outstanding after the completion of the merger and 16.3 million shares of our common stock outstanding before the merger). These values compare to the price per share of our common stock before the announcement of the merger, which was \$0.86 per share.

While discounted cash flow analysis is a widely accepted and practiced valuation methodology, it relies on a number of assumptions including growth rates, terminal multiples and discount rates. The valuation derived from the discounted cash flow analysis is not necessarily indicative of ONI s present or future value or results, which could be significantly more or less favorable than such valuation.

Miscellaneous. Under the terms of its engagement, Novoste has agreed to pay Asanté Partners for its financial advisory services aggregate fees, including the fee for its fairness opinion, of \$270,000, which have already been paid, and a transaction fee of \$750,000, payable at the closing. Novoste also has agreed to reimburse Asanté Partners for expenses reasonably incurred in performing its services, including fees and expenses of its legal counsel, and to indemnify it and its related persons against liabilities, including liabilities under the federal securities laws, arising out of their engagement.

As described above, the opinion of Asanté Partners was one of many factors taken into consideration by our board in making its determination to approve the merger agreement. The foregoing summary does not purport to be a complete description of the analyses performed by Asanté Partners.

Novoste selected Asanté Partners as its financial advisor because Asanté Partners is a recognized investment banking firm specializing in the healthcare and medical equipment industry, including the segments in which Novoste and ONI operate, with substantial experience in similar transactions. Asanté Partners is continually engaged in the valuation of businesses and their securities in connection with mergers and acquisitions, strategic alliances, competitive bids and private placements. Asanté Partners is currently providing financial advisory services to Novoste and may continue to do so and has received, and may receive, fees for the rendering of such services.

51

TERMS OF THE MERGER AGREEMENT

The following is a summary of selected provisions of the merger agreement. While we believe this description covers the material terms of the merger agreement, it may not contain all of the information that is important to you and it is qualified in its entirety by reference to the merger agreement. The merger agreement is attached as Annex A to this proxy statement and is considered part of this document. We urge you to carefully read the merger agreement in its entirety for a more complete understanding of the merger.

Structure of the Transaction

The merger agreement provides that ONIA Acquisition Corp., our wholly owned subsidiary, will merge with and into ONI, and ONI will be the surviving entity and become our wholly owned subsidiary.

Merger Consideration

Conversion of Securities

The merger agreement provides that, at the effective time of the merger, each share of ONI common stock and each share of ONI Series A preferred stock, except for dissenting shares, will be converted into the right to receive such number of shares of our common stock as is equal to a specified common stock exchange ratio and Series A exchange ratio, respectively.

The merger agreement further provides that, at the effective time of the merger, the outstanding and unexercised options and warrants to purchase shares of ONI common stock (whether or not vested) will be assumed by us and be converted and become options and warrants to acquire shares of our common stock. Each ONI option and warrant will be exercisable for a number of shares of our common stock equal to the number of shares of ONI common stock issuable under such option or warrant immediately before the merger, multiplied by the common stock exchange ratio. The per share exercise price under each option or warrant will equal the per share exercise price of the ONI common stock under such option or warrant before the merger, divided by the common stock exchange ratio. The outstanding ONI options and warrants will be factored into the calculation of the exchange ratio, even if they are not exercised before the closing.

As further described below, we anticipate that completion of the merger will result in the current holders of ONI s equity securities owning a majority of our common stock.

Determination of Merger Consideration

The total number of shares of our common stock issuable to the holders of ONI s capital stock and the holders of ONI options and warrants if the merger is completed will equal:

the total Novoste effective time shares, which is the number of shares of our common stock outstanding at the time of the merger, *plus* the number of shares of our common stock issuable upon exercise of options outstanding at the time of the merger held by our continuing directors or with an exercise price per share of \$2.89 or less;

multiplied by

the ONI valuation, which is explained below; and

divided by

the Novoste valuation, which is explained below.

As of the record date, we had 16,334,780 shares of our common stock outstanding and 141,000 shares of our common stock issuable upon exercise of options meeting the criteria described above.

52

Table of Contents

The ONI Valuation

The merger agreement provides that the ONI valuation will be \$20,000,000, subject to adjustment depending on the number of orders for OrthOne systems between January 1, 2005 and May 31, 2005 that are accompanied by a payment of at least 10% of the purchase price and that meet certain other standard requirements, and the number of shipments of OrthOne systems for which ONI recognized revenue under GAAP during this same period. Based upon these provisions of the merger agreement, the ONI valuation has now been set at \$20,000,000.

The Novoste Valuation

The merger agreement provides that the Novoste valuation will equal the amount of our net cash assets at closing, namely, the difference between the total value of our assets and our liabilities, as set forth on a statement agreed to by the parties at the closing. This statement will set forth our assets and liabilities at closing on a line-by-line basis, and will be in a form and will apply the same methodologies and principles, and stipulating the same dollar values, that have been agreed to by us and ONI. If we and ONI fail to agree on the final statement and the amount of our net cash assets within a specified period of time, each party will have the right to terminate the merger agreement.

The main categories of assets that will be taken into account, to the extent they are applicable, in determining the amount of our net cash assets at the closing are:

our unencumbered cash and cash equivalents;

the principal and interest outstanding under the loan we extended to ONI;

certain of our fixed assets;

our realizable accounts receivable; and

our projected revenue through August 2005.

The main categories of liabilities that will be taken into account, to the extent they are applicable, in determining the amount of our net cash assets at closing are:

operating costs associated with the continued implementation and execution of the wind-down plan after the closing;

costs and liabilities associated with the decommissioning of the AEA line of business and termination of related contractual relationships;

severance and change in control payments;
liabilities associated with pending litigation;
costs associated with termination of operations in foreign countries;
costs associated with the purchase of post-closing insurance for our directors and officers; and
our unpaid transaction expenses.

If the amount of our net cash assets at closing is between \$11,750,000 and \$13,250,000, the Novoste valuation will be fixed at \$12,500,000. If the amount of our net cash assets is less than \$11,750,000, then the Novoste valuation will be the actual amount of the Novoste net cash assets. If the amount of our net cash assets is less than \$10,000,000, ONI will have the right to either terminate the merger agreement or accept a Novoste valuation of \$10,000,000. If the amount of our net cash assets is greater than \$13,250,000 but less than the ONI

53

Table of Contents

valuation, then the Novoste valuation will be the actual amount of our net cash assets. If the amount of our net cash assets is equal to or greater than the ONI valuation, the Novoste valuation will equal the ONI valuation minus one dollar; however, we will have the right to pay a dividend to our shareholders in the amount, if any, by which the amount of our net cash assets exceeds the ONI valuation.

As of the date of this proxy statement, our board of directors believes that the amount of our net cash assets at the closing will be approximately \$12,500,000. Based on 16,334,780 shares of our common stock outstanding on the record date, and assuming that the value of our net cash assets at closing provides for a Novoste valuation of \$12,500,000, we currently expect to issue an aggregate of 22,720,304 shares of our common stock and to assume options and warrants to purchase an aggregate of 3,640,944 shares of our common stock if the merger is completed. Based on these assumptions, the current holders of ONI s equity securities would own approximately 58.2% of the issued and outstanding shares of our common stock immediately after the completion of the merger, as well as options and warrants to purchase additional shares. The number of shares issuable to the holders of ONI capital stock, options and warrants, and such holders combined ownership of our common stock, would increase if the amount of our net cash assets at closing is greater than \$13,250,000.

Fractional Shares

No fractional shares of our common stock will be issued at closing in exchange for shares of ONI capital stock. We will pay cash to ONI s shareholders in lieu of fractional shares.

Dissenters and Appraisal Rights

Our shareholders do not have any dissenters or appraisal rights in connection with the merger.

Holders of ONI capital stock who demand and perfect appraisal rights in accordance with the Delaware General Corporation Law, and who do not withdraw or lose such appraisal or dissenters—rights before the closing, will not have their shares converted into our common stock. Instead, such holders of ONI capital stock will receive such consideration as may be judicially determined to be due to them with respect to such shares.

If the holders of 10% or more of the outstanding ONI capital stock (determined as if all shares of ONI Series A preferred stock had converted into ONI common stock) demand appraisal rights, we will not be obligated to complete the merger.

Effective Time of the Merger

The merger will become effective upon the filing of a certificate of merger and other appropriate documents with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law. The certificate of merger will be filed as soon as practicable on or after the date of closing.

Board of Directors of the Combined Company

The merger agreement provides that immediately after the merger, our board of directors will consist of nine directors, five of whom have been designated by ONI and four of whom have been or will be designated by us. One of the five ONI designees is Alfred J. Novak, who is currently our chief executive officer and one of our directors and who will resign from his management position following the merger. One of the four Novoste designees is Stephen I. Shapiro, who is currently a director of both Novoste and ONI.

We have designated Judy Lindstrom, Stephen I. Shapiro and Charles E. Larsen as three of our appointed directors, and we will designate a fourth appointed director before the merger is completed. ONI has designated the following persons as its five appointed directors: Srini Conjeevaram, David Hable, Robert L. Kwolyk, Alfred J. Novak and Bruce F. Wesson. As a result, since Mr. Novak has been designated by ONI as one of its appointed directors, it is expected that four of the current seven members of our board of directors will remain as directors immediately after the closing of the merger. On the date of closing, in accordance with the merger agreement, we

54

Table of Contents

will deliver resignations from J. Stephen Holmes, Thomas D. Weldon and William E. Whitmer, and our board will increase the size of the board from seven to nine persons and appoint the four ONI designated appointees and our remaining designated appointee. We and ONI currently anticipate that the board of directors of the combined company will make the following appointments after the merger is completed:

- Mr. Hable to serve as Chairman of the Board of Directors;
- Ms. Lindstrom to serve as Chairperson of our Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee; and
- Mr. Shapiro to serve as Chairman of our Compensation Committee.

We also expect that our fourth designated director appointee, who has not yet been determined, will be appointed by the board to serve as Chairman of our Audit Committee. We intend to seek to appoint an individual who will be independent for purposes of current listing standards of the Nasdaq Stock Market and Section 10A(m)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and who will qualify as an audit committee financial expert, as that term is defined in Item 401(h) of Regulation S-K.

Executive Officers of the Combined Company

The merger agreement provides that on the date of closing, we will deliver to ONI written resignations and releases from each of our executive officers. As a result, Mr. Novak will cease to serve as our President and Chief Executive Officer, Subhash Sarda will cease to serve as our Chief Financial Officer and Daniel Hall will cease to serve as our Vice President, Corporate Secretary and General Counsel. The merger agreement does not provide who will be appointed as our executive officers following the merger. We and ONI currently expect that after the merger is completed, Mr. Kwolyk will serve as our President and Chief Executive Officer, Darlene Deptula-Hicks will serve as our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Dr. Peter B. Roemer will serve as our Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Officer and Ron Ramsey will serve as our Vice President of Sales.

Representations and Warranties

The merger agreement contains various representations and warranties of Novoste, ONI and Merger Sub. The representations and warranties are generally reciprocal, such that Novoste and ONI are making substantially similar representations with respect to most matters.

These representations and warranties have been made solely for the benefit of the parties to the merger agreement and are not intended to be relied on by any other person. You should rely on the disclosure in this proxy statement rather than the representations and warranties in the merger agreement.

In addition, these representations and warranties are qualified by specific disclosures made to the other parties in connection with the merger agreement, will not survive completion of the merger and cannot be the basis for any claims under the merger agreement after the merger is completed. Moreover, they are subject to the materiality standards contained in the merger agreement, which may differ from what you may regard as material, and are made only as of the date of the merger agreement or such other date as is specified in the merger agreement.

Conduct of Business Before the Closing of the Merger

During the period between the signing of the merger agreement and closing, we agreed to conduct our operations solely as in accordance with our wind-down plan. The merger agreement provides that we may also engage in one or more asset sale transactions.

In addition, during this period, we and ONI agreed to refrain from taking specified actions without the prior written consent of the other party. See the merger agreement, which is attached to this proxy statement as Annex A, for further information.

Indemnification and Insurance of Current Directors and Officers

The merger agreement provides that after the merger, we and ONI will be obligated to honor our respective obligations under the existing indemnification agreements with our respective directors and executive officers. In addition, the merger agreement provides that, for a period of six years after the merger, our articles of

55

Table of Contents

incorporation and bylaws, and the certificate of incorporation and bylaws of ONI, may not be amended or otherwise modified in any manner adverse to the rights of any person who served as an officer or director of Novoste or ONI before the merger. During this six-year period, we are obligated to maintain in effect our existing officers and directors liability insurance policies (or substantially similar policies), with respect to claims arising from facts or events that occurred at or before the merger.

We expect to pay the premiums for this insurance coverage before the closing of the merger; if we do not, the premiums will reduce our net cash assets at the closing of the merger.

Agreement Not to Solicit Other Offers

In the merger agreement, subject to the exceptions described below, we agreed that during the term of the agreement, we will not, and we will cause our directors, officers, employees, agents and representatives not to, directly or indirectly:

solicit, initiate, knowingly encourage or facilitate, or furnish non-public information in furtherance of, any inquiries or the making of any proposal with respect to any Novoste competing transaction, which is explained below;

negotiate, explore or otherwise engage in any discussions with any person (other than ONI) with respect to any Novoste competing transaction; or

enter into any agreement, arrangement or understanding requiring us to abandon, terminate or fail to consummate the merger or any other transaction contemplated by the merger agreement.

As used in the merger agreement, a Novoste competing transaction means any of the following:

any recapitalization, merger, consolidation or other business combination or financing involving Novoste or Merger Sub;

the acquisition of any capital stock of Novoste or Merger Sub or 5% or more of the assets of Novoste or any of its subsidiaries;

any acquisition by Novoste or Merger Sub of any material assets or capital stock of any person;

any liquidation of Novoste or Merger Sub; or

any combination of the foregoing.

However, the merger agreement provides that we and our board of directors may furnish information to, or enter into discussions or negotiations with, any person that makes a bona fide written proposal for a Novoste competing transaction which was not invited, initiated, solicited or knowingly encouraged, directly or indirectly, by us, if:

our board of directors determines, after consultation with our financial advisor, that the person has submitted a Novoste competing transaction proposal that has a reasonable likelihood of resulting in a Novoste superior proposal, which is explained below, and determines, after consultation with our outside legal counsel, that such action is required in order for our board of directors to comply with its fiduciary duties under applicable law; and

we promptly informs ONI in writing of the identity of the potential acquirer and the material terms of the proposed transaction.

We also agreed to inform ONI promptly of any related developments, discussions and negotiations with respect to any Novoste competing transaction.

56

Table of Contents

As used in the merger agreement, a Novoste superior proposal means any bona fide written proposal made by a potential acquirer to enter into a Novoste competing transaction, if as a result:

our shareholders would beneficially own less than 50% of the voting stock, common stock and participating stock of the combined entity; or

the transaction will result in the sale, transfer or other disposition of all or substantially all of our assets;

in each case where our board determines in its good faith judgment, based among other things on the advice of our financial advisor, that the transaction would result in a transaction more favorable to our shareholders from a financial point of view than the merger. In making this determination, our board must take into account all relevant factors, including any material contingencies for the transaction, whether the transaction is reasonably capable of being completed, and any proposed changes to the merger agreement that ONI may propose in response to the transaction. A Novoste competing transaction proposal will not be a Novoste superior proposal unless any required financing is committed or our board reasonably concludes that the financing is likely to be obtained on a timely basis.

In addition, the merger agreement also provides that our board of directors will not:

withdraw or modify, or publicly propose to withdraw or modify, in a manner adverse to ONI, the approval by our board of the merger agreement and the merger, the issuance of Novoste common stock under the merger agreement, the amendment to our articles of incorporation to increase our authorized common stock, and the amendment to our articles of incorporation to change our name;

withdraw or modify, or publicly propose to withdraw or modify, in a manner adverse to ONI, the recommendation by our board to our shareholders to vote in favor of the share issuance proposal, the share increase proposal, and the name change proposal;

approve or recommend, or propose publicly to approve or recommend, any proposal for a Novoste competing transaction;

cause us to enter into, or approve or recommend, or propose publicly to approve or recommend, or execute any letter of intent or any agreement relating to any Novoste competing transaction proposal, or agree to do any of the foregoing; or

submit any Novoste competing transaction proposal at any meeting of our shareholders for purposes of voting upon approval or adoption of the proposal.

However, the merger agreement provides that, before the adoption of the proposals described in this proxy statement, our board of directors may withdraw, amend or modify the approvals and recommendations described above if:

our board determines in good faith, after consultation with our outside legal counsel, that the action is required for our board to comply with its fiduciary obligations to our shareholders; and

our board provides ONI with at least five business days prior notice of its intention to do so.

If the reason that our board of directors intends to withdraw, amend or modify its approvals and recommendations is that it has determined that a Novoste competing transaction proposal is a Novoste superior proposal, then during the five business days following the notice to ONI, we will review any counter-proposal submitted by ONI to determine whether the counter-proposal is at least as favorable to our shareholders as the Novoste superior proposal from a financial point of view. If our board determines that it is, then we and ONI will amend the merger agreement so that the Novoste competing transaction proposal is no longer a Novoste superior transaction proposal.

ONI has agreed to be bound by substantially the same non-solicitation provisions.

57

Loan to ONI

Concurrent with the execution of the merger agreement, we extended to ONI an 18-month senior unsecured loan in the principal amount of \$3,000,000, bearing interest at a rate of 8% per year. Principal and interest on the loan will be due in November 2006. Under certain circumstances in which ONI terminates the merger agreement, repayment of the loan will accelerate at the time of termination. The amount of our net cash assets at closing will include the principal and interest outstanding under the loan at such time.

Warrant to Purchase ONI Series A Preferred Stock

In connection with the \$3,000,000 loan, ONI granted to us a warrant to purchase up to 2,325,581 shares of ONI Series A preferred stock (which is convertible into ONI common stock), at an exercise price of \$1.29 per share. We can exercise the warrant either by paying cash or by surrendering the promissory note that evidences the loan. We may not exercise the warrant unless there is an event of default under the promissory note or the merger agreement is terminated. The warrant will expire upon completion of the merger or otherwise in November 2006. Upon termination of the merger agreement under some circumstances, the warrant will automatically terminate. For further discussion, see Termination of the Merger Agreement below.

Conditions to Complete the Merger

The obligations of each party to complete the merger are subject to certain conditions, including:

the approval by our shareholders of the share issuance and the two amendments to our articles of incorporation;

no government orders or restraints seeking to restrain or prohibit the completion of the merger; and

that no more than 10% of the outstanding ONI capital stock (determined as if all shares of ONI Series A preferred stock had converted into ONI common stock) have demanded appraisal rights.

The obligations of ONI to complete the merger are subject to certain conditions, including:

the accuracy of our representations and warranties and performance of covenants and agreements by us;

the resignations of our non-continuing directors and releases and waivers of liability from Messrs. Novak, Hall and Sarda;

the absence of any material adverse effect on us;

the partial waivers by certain of our officers of change of control payments;

ONI s receipt of a legal opinion from counsel to Novoste;

ONI s receipt of a representation letter of Novoste regarding certain tax matters; and the receipt of all required Novoste consents.

Our obligations to complete the merger are subject to certain conditions, including:

the accuracy of ONI s representations and warranties and performance of covenants and agreements by ONI; the absence of any material adverse effect on ONI;

our receipt of a legal opinion from counsel to ONI;

Table of Contents

our receipt of all required ONI consents; and

the receipt of certification of ONI regarding ONI not being a U.S. real property holding corporation.

If the law permits, conditions to the completion of the merger may be waived by either ONI or us, as applicable.

Termination of the Merger Agreement

The merger agreement may be terminated at any time before the closing of the merger, either before or after the requisite approvals by our shareholders, by mutual written consent of the parties.

In addition, either we or ONI may terminate the merger agreement if:

the merger is not consummated on or before September 30, 2005, but this termination right is not available to a party whose action or failure to act breaches the merger agreement and is a principal cause of the merger not being completed by such date;

a governmental entity shall have issued an order, decree or ruling or taken any other action having the effect of prohibiting the merger;

the share issuance proposal or the share increase proposal is not approved by our shareholders;

the other party materially breaches any representation, warranty or covenant contained in the merger agreement and such breach is not cured within 30 days following written notice of such breach;

we or ONI receives and enters into an agreement with respect to a Novoste superior proposal or ONI superior proposal, as applicable; or

a dispute regarding the amount of our net cash assets at closing arises and cannot be resolved by the parties.

ONI may terminate the agreement if the amount of our net cash assets at closing is less than \$10,000,000, or if any of the following ONI triggering events occurs:

our board of directors or a committee thereof withdraws or modifies in any manner adverse to ONI its recommendation in favor of the approval of the share issuance and the two amendments to our articles of incorporation;

we failed to include in this proxy statement our board of directors recommendation in favor of the foregoing proposals, or our board of directors fails to publicly reaffirm that recommendation within 10 days of a request by ONI to do so;

our board of directors or a committee thereof approves or recommends a Novoste competing transaction;

we breach our non-solicitation obligations; or

a third-party tender or exchange offer for our common stock commences and our board of directors fails to send a statement to our shareholders within 10 days recommending rejection of the offer.

We may terminate the agreement if any of the following Novoste triggering events occurs:

the ONI board of directors or a committee thereof withdraws or modifies in any manner adverse to us its recommendation in favor of the adoption of the merger agreement and the merger;

59

Table of Contents

the ONI board of directors fails to publicly reaffirm that recommendation within 10 days of a request by us to do so;

the ONI board of directors or a committee thereof approves or recommends an ONI competing transaction;

ONI breaches its non-solicitation obligations; or

a third-party tender or exchange offer for securities of ONI commences and ONI s board of directors fails to send a statement to its shareholders within 10 days recommending rejection of the offer.

Fees and Expenses

Generally, each party will pay its own fees and expenses incurred in connection with the merger agreement. However, the termination of the merger agreement under certain circumstances will result in either a termination of the ONI warrant or in an obligation to pay a fee.

The ONI warrant will automatically terminate if:

either we or ONI terminates the merger agreement, because either the share issuance proposal or the share increase proposal is not approved by our shareholders, and, within 12 months, we enter into an agreement to engage in a Novoste competing transaction;

ONI terminates the merger agreement because an ONI trigger event occurs;

ONI terminates the merger agreement because we materially breach a representation, warranty or covenant in the merger agreement and the breach is not cured within 30 days after written notice of the breach; or

we terminate the merger agreement to enter into an agreement with respect to a Novoste superior proposal.

ONI will be obligated to pay us a termination fee of \$500,000 if:

we terminate the merger agreement because a Novoste triggering event occurs; or

ONI terminates the merger agreement to enter into an agreement with respect to an ONI superior proposal.

If we terminate the merger agreement because ONI materially breaches a representation, warranty or covenant in the merger agreement and the breach is not cured within 30 days after written notice of the breach, ONI will be obligated to pay us the fees and expenses we incurred in connection with the merger agreement, up to a maximum of \$500,000.

ONI Board and Shareholder Approval

The board of directors of ONI has adopted a resolution approving the merger agreement and the merger and declaring them advisable. When ONI signed the merger agreement, certain shareholders of ONI representing a majority of the voting power of ONI s capital stock signed written consents approving and adopting the merger agreement and the merger. In these written consents, the shareholders also waived their rights to dissent from the merger and seek appraisal of the shares of ONI capital stock they own.

60

RELATED AGREEMENTS

Novoste Voting Agreements

Concurrent with the execution of the merger agreement, our directors and executive officers entered into voting agreements (including irrevocable proxies) in which, among other things, each of them agreed to vote in favor of the share issuance and the two amendments to our articles of incorporation.

MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE MERGER

We expect the merger to qualify as a tax-free reorganization under Section 368 of the Internal Revenue Code. We expect that there will be no material federal income tax consequences from the merger for our continuing shareholders.

61

INTERESTS OF CERTAIN NOVOSTE AND ONI PERSONS IN THE MERGER

Change in Control Payments

In May 2003, we entered into amended and restated termination agreements with the following executive officers: Alfred J. Novak, Andrew M. Green, Daniel G. Hall, Adam G. Lowe, Subhash C. Sarda, Susan D. Smith, Robert N. Wood, Jr., Gordon Snyder and Jeanne Marie Leahy. Each of the termination agreements provides for benefits in the event of a termination of the employment of the applicable executive officer after a change in control of Novoste. Each of the termination agreements had an initial term from the date of execution of the termination agreements through December 31, 2003. Each of the termination agreements is automatically extended each January 1 for a one-year term, unless notice not to extend the agreement is given not later than 12 months before such January 1. Each of the agreements has been extended through December 31, 2005. If a change in control (as defined in the termination agreement) occurs during the term, each termination agreement extends for 24 months even if such notice not to extend is given. Each executive officer who has entered into a termination agreement has agreed that following the termination of employment, if any, of such executive officer, he or she will be subject to a one-year non-compete and non-solicitation agreement with us.

Under the terms of each termination agreement, upon a change in control of Novoste and the subsequent termination of the employment of the applicable executive officer by us without cause or by the employee for good reason, the executive officer will receive benefits including the following:

a severance payment equal to three times (or, in the case of executive officers who have served for two or less full years as an executive officer of Novoste, two times) his or her annual salary and bonus, as calculated pursuant to the terms of the termination agreement;

a pro-rata portion of his or her target bonus for the year in which the change in control occurs;

total health care benefits for 18 months;

the use of office space or outplacement services for six months; and

reimbursement of specified legal fees and expenses.

In the event that any payments made by us to an executive officer in connection with the change in control would be subject to the excise tax imposed under Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code, we are obligated to make whole the executive officer with respect to such excise tax.

On May 18, 2005, we entered into amendments to the termination agreements with each of these executive officers. Each amendment provides that in the case of a change in control of Novoste involving ONI or certain other parties, but only in such cases, the severance payment payable to the applicable executive officer currently equal to three times annual salary and bonus will be reduced as follows:

to 1.75 times annualized salary (as calculated pursuant to the terms of the amended and restated termination agreements and the termination agreement amendments) for executive officers other than Alfred J. Novak, our President and Chief Executive Officer; and

to two times salary and performance bonus (as calculated pursuant to the terms of his amended and restated termination agreement and his termination agreement amendment) for Mr. Novak.

Our board of directors has determined that completion of the merger will constitute a change in control under the termination agreements, as amended. The employment of Ms. Smith, Ms. Leahy and Messrs. Green, Lowe, Wood and Snyder has been terminated. In addition, under the terms of the merger agreement, Messrs. Novak, Hall and Sarda will be resigning their employment positions as of the closing. As a result, the completion

62

of the merger will result in change in control payments being due to each of these executive officers, in the following amounts:

	Termination Tayment		
Name	Due A	Due After Merger	
Alfred J. Novak	\$	989,912	
Daniel G. Hall	\$	341,250	
Subhash C. Sarda	\$	315,000	
Andrew M. Green	\$	131,250	
Jeanne Marie Leahy	\$	75,000	
Adam G. Lowe	\$	136,500	
Susan D. Smith	\$	123,750	
Gordon Snyder	\$	84,375	
Robert N. Wood, Jr.	\$	176,250	

Termination Payment

Stock Option Waivers

In connection with the merger agreement, each of Messrs. Novak, Hall and Sarda executed a waiver providing that all of his Novoste stock options will terminate automatically upon the completion of the merger.

Board Compensation

As discussed in the section entitled Approval of Issuance of Shares in the ONI Merger Terms of the Merger Agreement Board of Directors of the Combined Company, Ms. Lindstrom and Messrs. Novak, Larsen and Shapiro will remain as our directors after the completion of the merger. We and ONI anticipate that after the completion of the merger, Mr. Novak and our additional board appointee will each receive a restricted grant of 40,000 shares of our common stock, and Ms. Lindstrom and Messrs. Larsen and Shapiro, as well as ONI s four additional appointees to the combined company board, will each receive a restricted grant of 20,000 shares of our common stock. It is currently anticipated that non-employee directors of the combined company will continue to receive annual restricted grants of not less than 20,000 shares of our common stock as compensation for board service.

In addition, we and ONI anticipate that non-employee members of the combined company board will receive the following compensation:

Annual Retainer:	
Chairman of the board	\$ 144,000
Chairman of the audit committee	\$ 20,000
Board Meeting Attendance Fees (in-person):	
Non-employee directors	\$ 2,000
Non-employee directors attending by telephone	\$ 500
Telephonic Board Meeting Attendance Fees	\$ 1,000
Committee Meeting Attendance Fees:	
Chair	\$ 1,500
Committee member	\$ 1,000

Telephonic Committee Meeting Attendance Fees:	
Chair	\$ 1,000
Committee member	\$ 500

Agreement with David Hable

We and ONI have agreed to retain Mr. Hable as the Chairman of our board of directors after the merger. If Mr. Hable remains Chairman of the board of directors, we expect that he will receive approximately \$12,000 per month as a retainer. Mr. Hable is expected to spend up to three days per week working with the combined company in his capacity as Chairman.

PRO FORMA SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF NOVOSTE AFTER THE MERGER

The following table provides information, after giving pro forma effect to the merger, with respect to the anticipated beneficial ownership of our common stock by:

each person expected to be a director or executive officer of the combined company;

all such directors and executive officers as a group; and

each person expected to be the beneficial owner of more than five percent of our common stock anticipated to be outstanding after the merger (based on such person s current beneficial ownership of Novoste or ONI equity securities).

The information in this table assumes that the value of our net cash assets at closing provides for a Novoste valuation of \$12,500,000. The exchange ratios at which holders of ONI equity securities will have their ONI equity securities converted into Novoste equity securities will vary from the ratios assumed in this table if the amount of our net cash assets at closing is greater than \$13,250,000 or less than \$11,750,000. For a further description of how these exchange ratios will be determined at closing, see Approval of Issuance of Shares in the ONI Merger Terms of the Merger Agreement Merger Consideration.

Beneficial ownership is determined under the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and generally includes voting or dispositive power over the securities. The percentage of beneficial ownership is based on the assumption that there will be 39,255,084 shares of our common stock outstanding after the merger, representing the sum of 16,334,780 shares of Novoste common stock currently outstanding as of the record date, 15,855,278 shares of Novoste common stock expected to be issued to the holders of ONI s outstanding series A preferred stock, 6,865,026 shares of Novoste common stock expected to be issued to the holders of ONI s outstanding common stock, and 200,000 restricted shares of Novoste common stock expected to be granted to the non-employee directors of the combined company after completion of the merger. Shares of our common stock and ONI s common stock subject to options and warrants that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of July 15, 2005, the record date, are considered outstanding and beneficially owned by the person holding the options and warrants for the purpose of computing the pro forma percentage ownership of that person but are not treated as outstanding for the purpose of computing the pro forma percentage ownership of any other person.

		Options and	Total Beneficial	
Name	Shares	Warrants	Ownership	Percentage
Principal shareholders of the combined company				
Galen Partners IV, LP and affiliated entities (1)	12,161,806	34,731	12,196,537	31.0%
Steel Partners II, L.P. and affiliated entities (2)	2,433,207		2,433,207	6.2%
Directors and executive officers of the combined company				
Srini Conjeevaram (3) (4)	12,161,806	34,731	12,196,537	31.0%
Bruce F. Wesson (4) (5)	12,161,806	34,731	12,196,537	31.0%
Robert L. Kwolyk	868,286	239,241	1,107,527	2.8%
Peter B. Roemer	868,286	200,655	1,068,941	2.7%
Charles E. Larsen (4)	331,161	35,000	366,161	*
Darlene M. Deptula-Hicks		212,232	212,232	*
Ron D. Ramsey		92,617	92,617	*

Stephen I. Shapiro (4)	24,213	52,365	76,578	*
Judy Lindstrom (4)	20,000	35,000	55,000	*
David Hable (4)	20,000	26,048	46,048	*
Alfred J. Novak (6)	40,000		40,000	*
Additional Novoste board appointee (7)	40,000		40,000	*
All directors and executive officers as a group (12 persons)	14,373,752	927,889	15,301,641	38.1%

Table of Contents

- (1) Represents shares issuable upon conversion of 6,143,646 shares of ONI Series A preferred stock held by Galen Partners IV, LP, 846,749 shares held by Galen Partners International IV, LP, and 2,962 shares held by Galen Employee Fund IV, LP and shares issuable upon exercise of stock options to purchase 30,000 shares of ONI common stock held by Galen Investment Advisory Group. Also includes 20,000 restricted shares of our common stock to be granted to each of Mr. Conjeevaram and Mr. Wesson, in their capacities as non-employee directors of the combined company, after completion of the merger. The address of Galen Partners IV, LP is 610 Fifth Avenue, 5th Floor, New York, New York 10020.
- (2) Information obtained from a Schedule 13D/A filed with the SEC by Steel Partners II, L.P. and Steel Partners, L.L.C. on April 15, 2005. The Schedule 13D/A discloses that Steel Partners has sole power to vote or direct the vote of and to dispose of or to direct the disposition of all these shares. As the sole executive officer and managing member of Steel Partners, L.L.C., Warren G. Lichtenstein may be deemed to beneficially own all of these shares. The address of Steel Partners 590 Madison Avenue, 32nd Floor, New York, New York 10022.
- (3) Includes 12,196,537 shares beneficially owned by Galen Partners IV, LP, as described in note 1. As general partner of Galen Partners IV, LP, Galen Partners International IV, LP, and Galen Employee Fund IV, LP, Mr. Conjeevaram may be deemed to share voting and investment power for the shares held by the foregoing funds. Mr. Conjeevaram disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares held by funds affiliated with Galen Partners IV, LP except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein.
- (4) Includes 20,000 restricted shares of Novoste common stock to be granted to the director after completion of the merger.
- (5) Includes 12,196,537 shares beneficially owned by Galen Partners IV, LP, as described in note 1. As managing director of Galen Partners IV, LP, Galen Partners International IV, LP, and Galen Employee Fund IV, LP, Mr. Wesson may be deemed to share voting and investment power for the shares held by the foregoing funds. Mr. Wesson disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares held by funds affiliated with Galen Partners IV, LP except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein.
- (6) Includes 40,000 restricted shares of our common stock to be granted to Mr. Novak after completion of the merger, and reflects the cancellation of options to purchase 394,350 shares of our common stock that will automatically terminate at the closing of the merger.
- (7) Additional board member to be designated by us before the merger is completed. Includes 40,000 restricted shares of Novoste common stock to be granted to this board member after completion of the merger.

65

BUSINESS OF NOVOSTE

Overview

Because of the rapid acceptance of drug-eluting stents in the medical community and their success in reducing in-stent restenosis since their introduction into the U.S. market in April 2003, our revenues have experienced a substantial and sustained decline. We believe that if we were to continue operating our VBT business, our sales of those products would continue to substantially decline in 2005 as compared to 2004, resulting in a further significant reduction in our revenues and corporate assets.

As a result, on February 22, 2005, we announced that our board of directors had determined that our VBT business, which is our only business line, was no longer viable and, as a result, the board had authorized a staged wind-down of our business. On that date, we also announced that, pursuant to the first stage of our wind-down plan, we would reduce our U.S. workforce in the first quarter of 2005 by 52 employees, from 81 employees. Additionally, we notified all 16 of our employees outside the U.S. that they would be terminated in accordance with their contracts and the relevant country s employment regulations in an effort to further reduce our costs. We currently have 26 employees, 2 of whom are employed outside the U.S. Our board determined that this decision was necessary to preserve our cash resources and arose as a result of the continuing decline in revenue for our VBT products.

As previously disclosed, we have been actively seeking new product opportunities, as well as a merger, business combination or other disposition of our business or assets, due to the continuing challenges facing our VBT business. As part of our ongoing review of potential options, we retained an investment banking and strategic advisor, Asanté Partners, in April 2004, to assist us in our efforts to identify and implement strategic and financial alternatives. As discussed elsewhere in this proxy statement, on May 18, 2005, we entered into the merger agreement with ONI. If the merger is not completed, we will need to consider other alternatives, which could include liquidation and dissolution.

If we were to liquidate and dissolve, we cannot predict when or if we would be able to make a distribution to our shareholders. However, if one or more cash distributions were made after dissolution, we expect that the amount distributed after dissolution would be significantly lower than prices at which our common stock has traded in the recent past, and there can be no assurance that the amount would equal the prices at which our common stock may trade in the future. Any distributions after dissolution would be reduced by cash expenditures during the staged wind-down of our business, by expenses incurred in pursuing the merger with ONI and other strategic alternatives, and by the ultimate amounts paid in settlement of our liabilities. Before authorizing any distribution to shareholders after dissolution, our board of directors would be required to make adequate provision to satisfy known and unknown claims against us, and our liability for those claims may extend for a substantial period of time in the future. As a result, there can be no assurance that we would have sufficient cash available to make any distributions to shareholders after dissolution. If we were to have sufficient remaining cash to make distributions, a substantial period may elapse after dissolution before we would be able to make any such distribution to shareholders, and such distribution, if any, may be made in more than one installment over an extended period of time.

Background

We developed the Beta-Cath System, a hand-held device to deliver beta, a low penetration radiation, to the site of a treated blockage in a coronary artery to inhibit restenosis. Restenosis, the renarrowing of a previously treated artery, is the major limitation of percutaneous transluminal coronary angioplasty or PTCA, a procedure used by interventional cardiologists to open blocked coronary arteries. Coronary stents, metal tubes or coils permanently deployed at a blockage in a coronary artery, were developed to reduce the incidence of restenosis, however restenosis still occurs in some of the patients who receive bare metal stents. In August 1998, we qualified to apply CE marking to the Beta-Cath

System. CE marking is a regulatory approval and is a requirement to sell our device in most of the European Union. We commenced the active marketing of our device

66

Table of Contents

in the European Union in January 1999. On November 3, 2000, we received U.S. marketing approval from the FDA for the Beta-Cath System (30-millimeter source train) for use in patients suffering from in-stent restenosis, a condition in which previously placed coronary stents become clogged with new tissue growth. We received additional approvals from the FDA for the Beta-Cath System with a 40-millimeter source train during 2001 and the 60-millimeter source train and smaller, next generation 3.5 F catheter and source train in early 2002. As described above, in February 2005, we announced that our board of directors had determined that our VBT business is no longer viable, and as a result, the board had authorized a staged wind-down of our business. See Overview.

Novoste Corporation is a Florida corporation. We were incorporated in 1987 and remained dormant until May 22, 1992, at which time we began operations. We have had our principal operations in the United States and sales and distribution in Western Europe, Canada, Asia and South America. Before the implementation of the staged wind-down of our business, we marketed our products through a direct sales force in the United States and a combination of direct sales representatives and independent distributors in markets outside the United States. All of our revenues have primarily been generated from the marketing of the Beta-Cath System, but beginning in 2003, we started to sell and distribute stents on a limited basis in Europe pursuant to a distribution agreement with Orbus Medical Technologies, Inc. In February 2005, Novoste and Orbus mutually agreed to terminate the distribution agreement.

Industry Overview

Coronary Artery Disease. Coronary artery disease is the leading cause of death in the United States. It is generally characterized by the progressive accumulation of plaque as a result of the deposit of cholesterol and other fatty materials on the walls of the arteries. The accumulation of plaque leads to a narrowing of the interior passage, or lumen, of the arteries, thereby reducing blood flow to the heart muscle. When blood flow to the heart muscle becomes insufficient, oxygen supply is restricted and a heart attack and death may result. Depending on the severity of the disease and other variables, patients will be treated either surgically with coronary artery bypass graft surgery or less invasively with a percutaneous transluminal coronary angioplasty, or PTCA, procedure.

Coronary Artery Bypass Graft Surgery. Coronary artery bypass graft surgery, or CABG, was introduced as a treatment for coronary artery disease in the 1950 s. CABG is a highly invasive, open surgical procedure in which blood vessel grafts are used to bypass the site of a blocked artery, thereby restoring blood flow. CABG is generally the primary treatment for severe coronary artery disease involving multiple vessels. In addition, CABG is often a treatment of last resort for patients who have undergone other less invasive procedures like PTCA, but require revascularization. However, CABG has significant limitations, including medical complications such as stroke, multiple organ dysfunction, inflammatory response, respiratory failure and post-operative bleeding, each of which may result in death. In addition, CABG is a very expensive procedure and requires a long recovery period. Several new minimally invasive surgical techniques, which have been commercialized, attempt to lessen the cost and trauma of CABG procedures while maintaining efficacy.

Percutaneous Transluminal Coronary Angioplasty. Since its introduction in the late 1970s, PTCA has emerged as the principal, less invasive alternative to CABG. PTCA is a procedure performed in cardiac catheterization labs, commonly referred to as cath labs, by an interventional cardiologist. During PTCA, a guide wire is inserted into a blood vessel through a puncture in the leg (or arm, in some cases) and guided through the vasculature to a diseased site in the coronary artery. A balloon-tipped catheter is then guided over the wire to the deposit of plaque or lesion occluding the artery. After the balloon is positioned across the lesion inside the vessel, the balloon is inflated and deflated several times. Frequently, successively larger balloons are inflated at the lesion site, requiring the use of multiple balloon catheters. The inflation of the balloon typically results in injury to the arterial wall, thereby expanding the arterial lumen and increasing blood flow. However, the inflation of the balloon typically results in injury to the arterial wall. The length of stay and recuperation period for PTCA procedures is substantially less than those required for CABG.

Table of Contents

Though PTCA grew rapidly as a highly effective, less invasive therapy to treat coronary artery disease, the principal limitation of PTCA was the high rate of restenosis, the renarrowing of a treated artery, which often required reintervention. Studies have indicated that, within six months after PTCA, between 30% and 50% of PTCA patients experience restenosis.

Pathology of Restenosis. Restenosis is typically defined as the renarrowing of a treated coronary artery within six months after a revascularization procedure, such as PTCA, to less than 50% of its normal size. Restenosis is a vascular response to the arterial trauma caused by PTCA. Due to multiple mechanisms controlling vascular repair, restenosis may occur within a short period after a revascularization procedure or may develop over the course of months or years.

Restenosis that occurs within a day of a revascularization procedure is usually attributed to elastic recoil (acute loss of diameter) of the artery. Restenosis also may result from hyperplasia, which is the excessive proliferation of cells at the treatment site, or from vascular remodeling of the arterial segment, which is a slow contraction of a vessel wall. Hyperplasia is a physiological response to injury, similar to scarring, which occurs in wound healing. Vascular remodeling is a contraction of the vessel caused by a thickening of the artery wall. In response to an arterial injury from revascularization, the body initiates a biochemical response to repair the injured site and protect it from further harm. This response will include a signal to adjacent cells of the arterial wall to multiply. Often this cell proliferation goes unchecked, resulting in a much thicker and inelastic arterial wall and in reduced blood flow. Hyperplasia and vascular remodeling are the primary causes of restenosis.

Coronary Stenting. Coronary stents are expandable, implantable metal devices permanently deployed at a lesion site. Stents maintain increased lumen diameter by mechanically supporting the diseased site in a coronary artery. Of all the non-surgical treatments seeking to improve upon PTCA, stents have been the most successful in improving the outcome immediately following the procedure and reducing the incidence of restenosis. In a typical stent procedure, the artery is pre-dilated at the lesion site with a balloon catheter, and the stent is delivered to the site of the lesion and deployed with the use of a second balloon catheter that expands the stent and firmly positions it in place. This positioning may be followed by a third expansion, using a high-pressure balloon to fully deploy and secure the stent. Once placed, stents exert radial force against the walls of the coronary artery to enable the artery to remain open and functional.

Studies have concluded that the rate of restenosis in patients receiving coronary stents following PTCA is approximately 30% lower than in patients treated only by PTCA. Since their commercial introduction in the United States in 1994, the use of stents has grown rapidly.

Despite their rapid adoption, stents have certain drawbacks. The use of stents increases the cost of a PTCA procedure, especially when, as is often the case, two or more stents are used. In addition, studies have shown that restenosis still occurs in approximately 15% to 20% of the patients who receive bare metal stents following PTCA. This is commonly referred to as in-stent restenosis. Studies have shown that patients with in-stent restenosis often experience recurrent restenosis and, as a result, are prone to multiple revascularization procedures. Stents are also permanent implants that may result in unforeseen, long-term adverse effects, and cannot be used in cases where the coronary arteries are too tortuous or too narrow. Further, stents appear to be effective in reducing the frequency of restenosis resulting from elastic recoil and vascular remodeling, but they increase the degree of hyperplasia.

Vascular Brachytherapy vs. Drug Coated Stents. Vascular brachytherapy is the delivery of radiation within blood vessels. Studies conducted by us and other companies using radiation to treat in-stent restenosis led to FDA approval and the subsequent introduction of vascular brachytherapy, or VBT, devices in 2000 and 2001. These devices, which deliver a dose of radiation to the site of restenosis, have proven to reduce in-stent restenosis, but stents are continually being developed to make the occurrences of restenosis less frequent. The newest innovation is a drug eluting stent (DES). This is a product that utilizes a standard stent platform, but with a polymer coating and a therapeutic drug attached to the polymer. The drug elutes off the polymer over time and

68

Table of Contents

into the vessel, reducing the incidence of restenosis by over half, as compared to a bare metal stent, or BMS. Johnson & Johnson received FDA approval for its Cypher DES in April 2003 and, by the end of 2003, captured approximately 60% of the U.S. stent market. In March 2004 Boston Scientific Corporation received FDA approval for its DES product, Taxus. We believe that DES will be the mainstay for interventional cardiologists particularly in the U.S. because of its success against restenosis in both trials and clinical practice. We also believe that the overall number of DES procedures will continue to grow significantly in the future, resulting in a substantial decline in the use of VBT products, and in connection therewith, our board of directors has determined that our VBT business is no longer viable and we have, therefore, announced a staged wind-down of our business.

Our Business Strategy

As described elsewhere in this proxy statement, we announced on February 22, 2005 that our board of directors had determined that our VBT business is no longer viable and, as a result, the board had authorized a staged wind-down of our business. Our board of directors determined that this decision was necessary to preserve our cash resources.

As previously disclosed, we have been actively seeking new product opportunities, as well as a merger, business combination or other disposition of our business or assets, because of the continuing challenges facing our VBT business. As part of our ongoing review of potential options, we retained an investment banking and strategic advisor, Asanté Partners, in April 2004, to assist us in our efforts to identify and implement strategic and financial alternatives. As discussed elsewhere in this proxy statement, on May 18, 2005, we entered into the merger agreement with ONI. If the merger is not completed, we will need to consider other alternatives, which could include liquidation and dissolution.

Product Development and Clinical Trials

In connection with the wind-down of our business operations, we have ceased our ongoing product development and clinical trial activities except as required by regulatory agencies.

Research and development expenses, which include the cost of clinical trials, for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were approximately \$4,633,000, \$11,986,000 and \$13,300,000, respectively. During these years, we continued to collect data for post-approval studies in the United States required by the FDA upon original approval of the Beta-Cath System and the 40mm version of the Beta-Cath System, as well as for European clinical trials that evaluated the 60mm Beta-Cath System and the 40mm Beta-Cath 3.5F System. The data obtained from these European trials were used in regulatory submissions to obtain commercial approval of these configurations of the Beta-Cath System.

In addition to the studies mentioned above, two clinical trials were undertaken to evaluate a vascular brachytherapy system, the Corona System, developed by our product development team to treat peripheral indications: the MOBILE Trial, which evaluated VBT in the treatment of in-stent restenosis in lesions of superficial femoral artery, or SFA, and popliteal arteries, and the BRAVO Trial, which studied the use of VBT in improving continuous venous outflow in stenosed hemodialysis grafts. Neither of these trials indicated that the use of VBT would provide a significant patient benefit.

All post-approval studies that were initiated with the Beta-Cath System have been completed, with data reported to the FDA, and all trial sites are closed. The MOBILE Trial is considered completed at this time, as all trial sites have been closed and the Final Report has been issued to the

FDA and the sites. The BRAVO Trial is in the process of closure, and it is anticipated that the Final Report will be issued to the FDA and to the trial sites by July 31, 2005. Therefore, in connection with the wind-down of our VBT business operations, all of our clinical trial commitments, in the U.S. and outside the U.S., should be met in the third quarter of 2005.

69

Sales and Marketing

In connection with the wind-down of our VBT business, we have substantially ceased our sales and marketing activities as part of the staged wind-down of the business and are meeting customer product requests based on demand for VBT product.

Manufacturing, Sources of Supply and Scale-Up

While we ceased manufacturing catheters as of March 1, 2005, we continue to supply catheters from inventory, and continue to service transfer devices and radiation source trains. Our manufacturing operations were required to comply with the FDA s quality system regulations, which included an inspection of our manufacturing facilities, before pre-market approval of the Beta-Cath System. In addition, certain international markets have quality assurance and manufacturing requirements that may be more or less rigorous than those in the United States. Specifically, we are subject to the compliance requirements of ISO 9001 certification and CE mark directives in order to produce products for sale in Europe. We received ISO 9001/ISO 46001 certification from our European Notified Body in April 1998. We are subject to periodic inspections by regulatory authorities to ensure such compliance. See Government Regulation below. In the past as part of our manufacturing operations, which we have discontinued, we conducted quality audits of suppliers and required that all suppliers of components be in compliance with our requirements and the FDA s quality system regulations.

Beta Radiation Source Train Suppliers

Beginning in 1996, we contracted with BEBIG Isotopentechnik und Unweltdiagnostik GmbH, or Bebig, a German corporation, to equip a production site for the production of radioactive sealed Strontium-90 seed trains.

On June 20, 2001, we entered into a new manufacturing and supply agreement with Bebig to manufacture and supply us with radioactive sealed Strontium-90 seed trains. During each calendar year under the four-year contract, we guaranteed minimum annual payments to Bebig in varying amounts. All product purchases are credited against the annual guaranteed payment. If we did not purchase product to exceed the annual guaranteed payment, the deficiency was due and payable to Bebig within thirty days after the end of each one-year contract period. The final purchase commitment of \$250,000 was paid in the first quarter of 2005 and was fully accrued as of December 31, 2004. Our obligation of \$250,000 to reimburse Bebig for expenses associated with decommissioning the production line has been fulfilled.

On October 14, 1999, we signed a development and manufacturing supply agreement with AEA Technologies WSA GmbH for a second source of radioactive supply and for the development of a smaller diameter radiation source. The agreement provided for the construction of a production line to be finished in two phases. The first phase, the development phase, was completed in February 2002 and the second phase was completed in October 2002. The completion of the first phase provided us with access to a limited supply of the smaller diameter radiation source trains by using the development equipment to produce the smaller diameter radiation source trains. We paid the cost of this production line as construction progressed. Depreciation of the production line began when the equipment was placed into service, in October 2002. In addition, the agreement provides for joint ownership of all intellectual property arising from the development work and that AEA may manufacture vascular brachytherapy sources only for us. Annual minimum purchase commitments and pricing guidelines were established extending to 2006. During 2004, we did not reach the minimum purchase commitment level for product and incurred an expense in cost of sales of \$695,000 for this shortfall. On March 9, 2005, we provided the required 18-month notification to terminate the contract in September 2006 and accrued the balance of the estimated minimum payment obligations, recording a total liability of \$1,324,000 as of March 31, 2005. At the termination of the agreement, we are obligated for costs associated with decommissioning the production facility and \$621,000 has been accrued for this purpose and it is expensed in cost of sales. Both of these estimated amounts are subject to negotiation and settlement with AEA.

Patents and Proprietary Technology

Our policy is to protect our proprietary position by, among other methods, filing United States and foreign patent applications. We were issued United States patent no. 5,683,345 on November 4, 1997, no. 5,899,882 on

70

Table of Contents

May 4, 1999, no. 6,013,020 on January 11, 2000, no. 6,261,219 on July 17, 2001 and no. 6,306,074 on October 23, 2001, all of which relate to both or either the Beta-Cath System with an over-the-wire catheter or the Beta-Cath System with a rapid exchange catheter. We also have several additional United States applications pending covering aspects of our Beta-Cath System. With respect to the above identified United States patents and our other pending United States patent applications, we have filed counterpart applications in Europe and certain other regions or countries.

Like other firms that engage in the development of medical devices, we must address issues and risks relating to patents and trade secrets. United States patent nos. 5,683,345; 5,899,882; 6,013,020; 6,261,219 and 6,306,074 may not offer any protection to us because competitors may be able to design functionally equivalent devices that do not infringe these patents. Any of the patents may also be reexamined, invalidated or circumvented. In addition, claims under our other pending applications may not be allowed, or if allowed, may not offer any protection or may be reexamined, invalidated or circumvented. In addition, competitors may have or may obtain patents that will prevent, limit or interfere with our ability to make, use or sell our products in either the United States or international markets.

On June 9, 2003, Calmedica, LLC, a California limited liability corporation, filed suit against us and one of our customers, Rush-Presbyterian St. Luke s Medical Center in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois, Eastern Division, alleging that we and Rush infringe certain patents owned by Calmedica and that we induce infringement of the method claims of the patents-in-suit by our customers, such as Rush.

We retained counsel and initiated a vigorous defense of the Calmedica suit. In response to our initial motions, the court in Illinois severed the claims against us and Rush, stayed the proceedings against Rush and transferred the case against us to the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Georgia.

We have been aware of the patents owned by Calmedica, which are the subject of this litigation, since early in the development of the Beta-Cath System. The patents were reviewed by both in-house employees and outside counsel and we believe that our products do not infringe the Calmedica patents. While our counsel and we believe that Calmedica is not likely to be successful on the merits, defense of the cases may require the expenditure of significant time and resources.

The medical device industry has been characterized by extensive litigation regarding patents and other intellectual property rights. Companies in the medical device industry have employed intellectual property litigation to gain a competitive advantage. There can be no assurance that we will not become subject to other patent-infringement claims or litigation or interference proceedings declared by the United States Patent and Trademark Office to determine the priority of inventions. The defense and prosecution of intellectual property suits, or interference proceedings and related legal and administrative proceedings are both costly and time-consuming. Litigation may be necessary to enforce our patents, to protect our trade secrets or know-how or to determine the enforceability, scope and validity of the proprietary rights of others. Litigation or interference proceedings result in substantial expense to us and significant diversion of effort by our personnel. An adverse determination in litigation or interference proceedings to which we may become a party could subject us to significant liabilities to third parties.

We have developed certain of our patents and proprietary rights relating to the Beta-Cath System in conjunction with Emory University Hospital, a leader in the research of intravascular radiation therapy. To obtain the exclusive rights to commercialize the Beta-Cath System for the treatment of restenosis, we entered into a license agreement with Emory. Under this agreement, Emory assigned to us all of Emory s rights to one United States patent application and exclusively licensed to us its rights under another United States application and related technology. Emory made no representation or warranty with respect to its ownership of the assigned patent application, and made only limited representations as to its ownership of the licensed patent application and related technology. Under the agreement Emory is entitled to royalty payments based upon net sales of the

Table of Contents

Beta-Cath System. The term of the agreement runs through the later of the date the last patent covered by the agreement expires or January 2016, unless earlier terminated as provided in the agreement. Any inventions developed jointly by our personnel and Emory during the term of the license agreement are owned jointly by Emory and us. If Emory terminates the agreement as a result of our failure to pay royalties or any other breach of our obligations under the agreement, our rights to use jointly owned patents, including the United States patent no. 5,899,882, would become non-exclusive and we would have no rights to use future patents owned exclusively by Emory. In addition, if we breach our obligations under the license agreement, we could be required by Emory to cooperate in licensing the pending jointly-owned United States patent application and our foreign counterparts to third parties so that they would be able to commercialize and sell the Beta-Cath System.

All of the physicians on staff at Emory, who were involved in the development of the Beta-Cath System, have assigned their rights in the technology, if any, to Emory and/or us.

We obtain confidentiality and invention assignment agreements in connection with employment, consulting and advisory relationships. These agreements generally provide that all confidential information developed or made known to the individual by us during the course of the individual s relationship with us will be kept confidential and not disclosed to third parties, except in specific circumstances. There can be no assurance, however, that these agreements will provide meaningful protection or adequate remedies for us in the event of unauthorized use, transfer or disclosure of such information or inventions.

Furthermore, our competitors may independently develop substantially equivalent proprietary information and techniques, or otherwise gain access to our proprietary technology, and we may not be able to meaningfully protect our rights in unpatented proprietary technology.

Government Regulation

United States

Our Beta-Cath System is regulated in the United States as a medical device. The manufacture and sale of medical devices intended for commercial distribution are subject to extensive governmental regulations in the United States. Medical devices are regulated in the United States by the FDA under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, and generally require pre-market clearance or pre-market approval before commercial distribution. In addition, certain material changes or modifications to medical devices also are subject to FDA review and clearance or approval. The FDA regulates the clinical testing, manufacture, packaging, labeling, storage, distribution and promotion of medical devices. Noncompliance with applicable requirements can result in, among other things, fines, injunctions, civil penalties, recall or seizure of products, total or partial suspension of production, failure of the government to grant pre-market clearance or pre-market approval for devices, withdrawal of marketing approvals, recommendation by the FDA that we not be permitted to enter into government contracts, and criminal prosecution. The FDA also has the authority to request repair, replacement or refund of the cost of any device manufactured or distributed. In the United States, medical devices are classified into one of three classes (Class I, II or III) on the basis of the controls deemed necessary by the FDA to reasonably assure their safety and effectiveness. Under FDA regulations, Class I devices are subject to general controls (for example, labeling, pre-market notification and adherence to good manufacturing practices or quality systems regulations) and Class II devices are subject to general and special controls (for example, performance standards, post-market surveillance, patient registries, and FDA guidelines). Class III is the most stringent regulatory category for medical devices. Generally, Class III devices are those that must receive pre-market approval by the FDA after evaluation of their safety and effectiveness (for example, life-sustaining, life-supporting or implantable devices, or new devices that have not been found substantially equivalent to other Class II legally marketed devices). The Beta-Cath System is a Class III device, which required the FDA s pre-market approval before its commercialization, which occurred in November 2000.

Any products we manufacture or distribute pursuant to FDA approvals are subject to pervasive and continuing regulation by the FDA, including record-keeping requirements and reporting of adverse experiences

72

Table of Contents

with the use of the device. Device manufacturers are required to register their establishments and list their devices with the FDA and certain state agencies, and are subject to periodic inspections by the FDA and those state agencies. The Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act requires device manufacturers to comply with good manufacturing practices regulations, called the quality systems regulations, or QSR. The QSR require that medical device manufacturers comply with various quality control requirements pertaining to design controls, purchasing contracts, organization and personnel; device and manufacturing process design; buildings, environmental control, cleaning and sanitation; equipment and calibration of equipment; medical device components; manufacturing specifications and processes; reprocessing of devices; labeling and packaging; in-process and finished device inspection and acceptance; device failure investigations; and record keeping requirements including complaint files. The FDA enforces these requirements through periodic inspections of medical device manufacturing facilities. In addition, a set of regulations known as the medical device reporting, or MDR, regulations obligates manufacturers to inform the FDA whenever information reasonably suggests that one of its devices may have caused or contributed to a death or serious injury, or when one of its devices malfunctions and, if the malfunction were to recur, the device would be likely to cause or contribute to a death or serious injury.

Labeling and promotional activities are also subject to scrutiny by the FDA. Among other things, labeling violates the law if it is false or misleading in any respect or it fails to contain adequate directions for use. Moreover, any labeling claims that exceed the representations approved by the FDA will violate the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act.

Our product advertising is also subject to regulation by the Federal Trade Commission under the Federal Trade Commission Act, which prohibits unfair methods of competition and unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce, including the dissemination of any false or misleading advertisement pertaining to medical devices. Under the Federal Trade Commission s substantiation doctrine, an advertiser is required to have a reasonable basis for all product claims at the time claims are first used in advertising or other promotions. What constitutes a reasonable basis may depend on the context of the claim and the level of substantiation expressly or impliedly claimed in the advertising.

Our business involves the import, export, manufacture, distribution, use and storage of Strontium-90 (Strontium/Yttrium), the beta-emitting radioisotope utilized in the Beta-Cath System s radiation source train. Accordingly, manufacture, distribution, use and disposal of the radioactive material used in the Beta-Cath System in the United States is subject to federal, state and/or local rules relating to radioactive material. The State of Georgia Department of Natural Resources (Georgia DNR) issued a sealed source and device registration certificate for our Beta-Cath System on August 4, 2000, allowing it to be listed on the Nuclear Regulatory Commission s Sealed Source and Device Registry. The Georgia DNR authorized us to commercially distribute our radiation sources to licensed recipients in the United States with the issuance of a license allowing the manufacturing and distribution of the Beta-Cath System. In addition, we must comply with NRC, Georgia DNR and United States Department of Transportation regulations on the labeling and packaging requirements for shipment of radiation sources to hospitals or other users of the Beta-Cath System.

Hospitals in the United States are required to have radiation licenses to hold, handle and use radiation. Many of the hospitals and/or physicians in the United States are required to amend their radiation licenses to include Strontium-90 before receiving and using our Beta-Cath System. Depending on the state in which the hospital is located, its license amendment will be processed by the responsible department in states that have agreed to such arrangements, or by the NRC. Obtaining any of the foregoing radiation-related approvals and licenses can be complicated and time consuming.

We are also subject to numerous federal, state and local laws relating to such matters as safe working conditions, manufacturing practices, environmental protection, fire-hazard control and disposal of hazardous or potentially hazardous substances. We may be required to incur significant costs to comply with such laws and regulations now or in the future and such laws or regulations could have a material adverse effect on us.

Table of Contents

International

We qualified to apply the CE mark to the Beta-Cath System in August 1998, which allows us to sell the device in the 25 countries of the European Union, or EU, and Switzerland. Although the medical devices directive is intended to ensure free movement within the EU of medical devices that bear the CE marking, many countries in the EU have imposed additional requirements, such as labeling in the national language and notification of placing the device on the market. In addition, regulatory authorities in European countries can demand evidence on which conformity assessments for CE-marked devices are based, and in certain circumstances can prohibit the marketing of products that bear the CE marking. Many European countries maintain systems to control the purchase and reimbursement of medical equipment under national health care programs, and the CE marking does not affect these systems.

On February 22, 2005, we announced that our board of directors had determined that our VBT business, which is our only business line, was no longer viable and, as a result, the board had authorized a staged wind-down of our business. On that date, we notified all 16 of our employees outside the U.S. that they would be terminated in accordance with their contracts and the relevant country s employment regulations in an effort to further reduce our costs. We expect that all of our international operations will be discontinued in the near term in connection with our wind-down.

Product Liability and Insurance

Our business entails the risk of product liability claims. Although we have not experienced any product liability claims to date, such claims could be asserted and we may not have sufficient resources to satisfy any liability resulting from such claims. We maintain product liability insurance with coverage of an annual aggregate maximum of \$11,000,000. Product liability claims could exceed such insurance coverage limits, such insurance may not continue to be available on commercially reasonable terms, or at all, and a product liability claim could have a material adverse effect on us.

Employees and Consultants

During 2004, we engaged in a restructuring of our management organization and significantly reduced our work force. As of December 31, 2004 we directly employed 98 full-time individuals.

On February 22, 2005, we announced that our board of directors had determined that our VBT business, which is our only business line, was no longer viable and, as a result, the board had authorized a staged wind-down of our business. On that date, we also announced that, pursuant to the first stage of our wind-down plan, we would reduce our U.S. workforce in the first quarter of 2005 by 52 employees, from 81 employees. Additionally, we notified all 16 of our employees outside the U.S. that they would be terminated in accordance with their contracts and the relevant country s employment regulations in an effort to further reduce our costs.

We currently have 26 employees, two of whom are employed outside the U.S.

74

MARKET FOR NOVOSTE S COMMON STOCK

Our common stock has been traded on the Nasdaq National Market (Nasdaq symbol: NOVT) since May 1996. The number of record holders of our common stock on the record date was 85, excluding beneficial owners of shares that are registered in nominee or street name. We have not paid any cash dividends since our inception.

The range of high and low closing sale prices for our common stock for each quarterly period listed below is as follows:

Quarter Ended	High	Low
Year Ended December 31, 2003		
March 31, 2003	\$ 9.08	\$ 6.83
June 30, 2003	\$ 9.02	\$ 6.01
September 30, 2003	\$ 5.62	\$ 4.03
December 31, 2003	\$ 5.39	\$ 4.30
Year Ended December 31, 2004		
March 31, 2004	\$ 5.70	\$ 3.11
June 30, 2004	\$ 3.47	\$ 2.48
September 30, 2004	\$ 2.93	\$ 1.55
December 31, 2004	\$ 1.76	\$ 1.29
Year Ended December 31, 2005		
March 31, 2005	\$ 1.61	\$ 0.85
June 30, 2005	\$ 0.98	\$ 0.82
September 30, 2005 (through August 3, 2005)	\$ 0.98	\$ 0.87

On August 3, 2005, the last reported sale price for our common stock was \$0.92.

On April 21, 2005, we received a notice from the Nasdaq Stock Market indicating that we were not in compliance with the Nasdaq Stock Market s requirements for continued listing because, for the previous 30 consecutive business days, the bid price of our common stock had closed below the minimum \$1.00 per share requirement for continued inclusion under Nasdaq Marketplace Rule 4450(a)(5). We have until October 18, 2005, to achieve compliance with the minimum requirements for continued listing. If we do not regain compliance with the minimum requirements for continued listing by October 18, 2005, the Nasdaq staff will provide us with written notification that our common stock will be delisted from the Nasdaq National Market.

In addition, we have been preliminarily informed by Nasdaq staff that our merger with ONI will constitute a change of control transaction, or reverse merger, requiring us to meet Nasdaq s initial listing requirements at the time of closing. These requirements include that our shareholder equity immediately after the merger exceeds \$30 million, and that our common stock satisfies a \$5 per share minimum bid price immediately after closing. We have determined that our shareholder equity immediately after the merger would not satisfy this requirement. As a result, if we are unable to convince Nasdaq staff that the merger does not constitute a reverse merger, we anticipate that our common stock will be unable to remain listed on the Nasdaq National Market after the merger.

If we are unable to retain the listing of our common stock on the Nasdaq National Market, we and ONI intend to attempt to obtain a new listing on the Nasdaq SmallCap Market or American Stock Exchange. If we are unsuccessful, we may seek to have our stock quoted on the NASD s OTC Bulletin Board, which is an inter-dealer, over-the-counter market that provides significantly less liquidity than the Nasdaq National Market, Nasdaq SmallCap Market or American Stock Exchange. For a further description, see Approval of Issuance of Shares in the ONI Merger Continued Listing of our Common Stock on Nasdaq and Risk Factors Risks Related to the Combined Company.

SELECTED HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA OF NOVOSTE

The selected consolidated financial data shown below for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, have been taken or derived from our audited financial statements included in this proxy statement. The selected consolidated financial data shown below for the fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, and as of March 31, 2005, have been taken or derived from our unaudited financial statements included in this proxy statement. In the opinion of management, the unaudited financial statements contain all adjustments (all of which were considered normal and recurring) necessary to present fairly the results of the interim periods. Operating results for the three months ended March 31, 2005 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the entire year ending December 31, 2005. The selected consolidated financial data shown below for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, and as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, have been derived from our financial statements for those years, which are not included in this proxy statement. The selected consolidated financial data shown below should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes of Novoste and with Novoste Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included elsewhere in this proxy statement.

	Three Months Ended March 31		Year Ended Decemb			oer 31	
	2005 (1)	2004	2004	2003	2002	2001	2000
			(In thousands, except per share amounts)				
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:							
Net sales	\$ 3,413	\$ 7,025	\$ 23,268	\$ 62,901	\$ 69,030	\$ 69,908	\$ 6,530
Costs and expenses:							
Cost of sales	4,118	3,953	16,111	24,315	27,313	19,164	4,258
Impairment and related charges			9,349		6,900		
Research and development	434	2,475	4,633	11,986	13,300	12,756	17,119
Sales and marketing	2,702	3,489	12,558	19,485	26,875	35,868	15,651
General and administrative	2,878	1,800	8,036	8,237	8,335	9,324	6,321
Loss from operations	(6,719)	(4,692)	(27,419)	(1,122)	(13,693)	(7,204)	(36,819)
Other income	165	78	498	254	642	2,095	3,746
Net loss	\$ (6,554)	\$ (4,614)	\$ (26,921)	\$ (868)	\$ (13,051)	\$ (5,109)	\$ (33,073)
Basic and diluted net loss per share	\$ (0.40)	\$ (0.28)	\$ (1.65)	\$ (0.05)	\$ (0.80)	\$ (0.32)	\$ (2.13)
Weighted average shares outstanding	16,335	16,331	16,333	16,313	16,268	16,152	15,157

	At March 21	At December 31						
	March 31, 2005 (1)	,		2002	2001	2000		
			(In thousands)					
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:								
Working capital	\$ 19,618	\$ 25,753	\$ 39,364	\$ 30,496	\$ 40,482	\$ 53,742		
Total assets	27,043	33,702	61,407	67,520	82,911	77,073		
Long-term liabilities				5	203	401		
Accumulated deficit	(168,777)	(162,223)	(135,302)	(134,434)	(121,384)	(116,275)		
Total shareholders equity	19,806	26,454	53,244	52,765	64,728	67,042		

(1) On February 22, 2005, we announced that our board of directors had determined that our vascular brachytherapy business, which is our only business line, is no longer viable and, as a result, had authorized a staged wind-down of the business. As described in the notes to our financial statements, assets have been stated at estimated net realizable and accruals have been recorded to reflect the business assumptions of the wind-down in accordance with FAS 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.

76

NOVOSTE MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Novoste commenced operations as a medical device company in May 1992. Since 1994, we have devoted substantially all of our efforts to developing the Beta-Cath System. We commenced the active marketing of the Beta-Cath System in Europe in January 1999 for use in patients suffering from in-stent restenosis, a condition in which coronary stents become clogged with new tissue growth. On November 3, 2000, we received U.S. marketing approval for the 30-millimeter Beta-Cath System from the FDA and subsequently shipped the first commercial system on November 27, 2000. The number of commercial sites in the U.S. grew to approximately 400 by 2003, before declining to approximately 250 at December 31, 2004, and to 200 at June 30, 2005.

Since our inception through June 30, 2001 we experienced significant losses in each period due to product development and clinical trial costs and, beginning in 2000, due to the costs of launching the Beta-Cath System in the U.S. Beginning in 2001, losses began to decline as revenue increased and development costs and clinical trials began to decrease. However, we have not been able to maintain consistent profitability as we have experienced competitive pressures from other vascular brachytherapy products and alternative products such as drug-eluting stents. In particular, since the introduction of drug-eluting stents in April 2003, we have seen a wider acceptance of that product in the medical community and a decline in sales of our VBT products.

Fiscal year 2003 was a challenging year as we relaunched a redesigned 3.5F diameter catheter system in January, saw the introduction of drug-eluting stents in April, and saw the curtailment of a clinical trial in July, all of which adversely affected our financial performance. Fiscal year 2004 was equally challenging, as the drug-eluting stents proved to be more effective than anticipated and our revenue declined significantly, \$23,268,000 as compared to \$62,901,000 for the fiscal year 2003. To address the decline, in March 2004, we announced a reduction in force to take an additional 87 positions out of the work force. On April 22, 2004, we concluded an asset purchase agreement with Guidant Corporation, pursuant to which we acquired information regarding Guidant s vascular brachytherapy business, including the customer list of Guidant for the United States and Canada, as well as a five-year non-compete agreement. As a result, we became the sole provider of coronary brachytherapy products (see Notes 7 and 13 to consolidated financial statements). As noted below, we began an aggressive cost reduction program at the end of the first quarter of 2004 and initiated restructuring of operations in the United States in order to bring expenses in line with lower revenues. During the second quarter of 2004, we consolidated U.S. operations into a single building, with the expectation of significantly lowering fixed costs for facilities. In the third quarter of 2004, we saw the benefit of the Guidant transaction as approximately 80 customers were added or reinstated, billings for servicing transfer devices increased and our net rate of decline in catheter sales slowed. However, we have sustained losses for the past 6 fiscal quarters. We anticipate that we will incur additional losses in future periods and that we will continue to have negative cash flow from operations for the foreseeable future. We also expect that these losses and the negative cash flow will constitute a material use of our cash resources in 2005. At the end of 2004, we concluded that the stream of funds to be generated by the Beta-Cath product line would not be sufficient to cover the carrying value of long-lived assets and recorded an impairment charge of \$9,349,000 to reduce these assets to fair value.

As a result, we had a net loss for the year ended December 31, 2004 of \$26,921,000, or \$1.65 per share, with an accumulated deficit of approximately \$162,223,000.

The net loss for the quarter ended March 31, 2005 was \$6,554,000 on revenues of \$3,413,000. The loss in the quarter includes a charge of \$2,401,000 for employment termination costs, as well as other wind-down related costs, and \$1,324,000 to recognize the estimated remaining minimum purchase commitments due to a supplier. Offsetting these charges is a favorable effect on cost of sales from the elimination of depreciation and amortization expense due to reductions and write-offs of capitalized assets resulting from impairments and other write-downs recorded in the last 6 months. We expect continued losses as operations wind down and revenues continue to decline while we review potential options.

Table of Contents

On February 22, 2005, we announced that our board of directors had determined that our VBT business, which is our only business line, is no longer viable, and as a result, the board had authorized a staged wind-down of our business. Following the announcement, we commenced the first stage of the wind-down and terminated employment of approximately 50 employees. Further reductions in employees and other cost reduction measures are being implemented on a regular basis.

As previously disclosed, we have been actively seeking new product opportunities, as well as a merger, business combination or other disposition of our business or assets, due to the continuing challenges facing our VBT business. As part of our ongoing review of potential options, we retained an investment banking and strategic advisor, Asanté Partners, in April 2004, to assist us in our efforts to identify and implement strategic and financial alternatives. As discussed elsewhere in this proxy statement, on May 18, 2005, we entered into the merger agreement with ONI. If the merger is not completed, we will need to consider other alternatives, which could include liquidation and dissolution.

If we were to liquidate and dissolve, we cannot predict when or if we would be able to make a distribution to our shareholders. However, if one or more cash distributions were made after dissolution, we expect that the amount distributed after dissolution could be significantly lower than the prices at which our common stock has traded in the recent past, and there can be no assurance that such amount would equal the prices at which our common stock could trade in the future. Any distributions after dissolution would be reduced by cash expenditures during the staged wind-down of our business, and by the ultimate amounts paid in settlement of our liabilities. Before authorizing any distribution to shareholders after dissolution, our board of directors would need to make adequate provision to satisfy known and unknown claims against us, and our liability for such claims may extend for a substantial period of time in the future. As a result, there can be no assurance that we would have sufficient cash available to make any distributions to shareholders after dissolution. If we were to have sufficient remaining cash, a substantial period may elapse after dissolution before we would be able to make any such distribution to shareholders, and such distribution, if any, may be made in more than one installment over an extended period of time.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of our financial statements requires that we adopt and follow certain accounting policies. Certain amounts presented in the financial statements have been determined based upon estimates and assumptions. Although we believe that our estimates and assumptions are reasonable, actual results will differ and could be material.

We have included below a discussion of the critical accounting policies that we believe are affected by our more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our financial statements, how we apply such policies and how results differing from our estimates and assumptions would affect the amounts presented in our financial statements. Other accounting policies also have a significant effect on our financial statements, and some of these policies also require the use of estimates and assumptions.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the sale of products is recorded when an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred and services have been rendered, the seller s price is fixed and determinable and collectability is reasonably assured. We earn revenue from sales of catheters and stents, and from service agreements for the use of radiation source trains and transfer devices included in the Beta-Cath System.

We use distributors in countries where the distributors experience and knowledge of local radiation and medical device regulatory issues is considered beneficial by our management. Under the distributor

78

Table of Contents

arrangements, there are generally no purchase commitments and no provisions for cancellation of purchases. Novoste or the distributor may cancel the distributor agreements at any time.

Revenue from sales of catheters directly to hospitals is recognized upon shipment after the hospital has received a Beta-Cath System and completed all licensing and other requirements to use the system. We recognize revenue from sales of catheters and stents at the time of shipment. We sell our catheters with no right of return except in cases of product defect or shipping errors.

We retain ownership of the radiation source trains and transfer devices and enters into a service agreement with its customers. Revenue recognition begins when an agreement has been executed, the system has been shipped, and all licensing and other requirements to use the system have been completed. The revenue is recognized ratably over the term of the agreement. Under the terms of the agreement signed with customers located in the United States, replacement and servicing of the radiation source train and transfer device is required at six-month intervals or twelve-month intervals, depending on the model of the device. This replacement and servicing cost is included in cost of sales as incurred. No other post-sale obligations exist.

Radiation and Transfer Devices and Amortization of Costs

We have invested significant resources to acquire radiation source trains and transfer devices that make up the Beta-Cath System and offers multiple treatment options using either the standard length or the XL version of the 3.5F catheter, which can accommodate a 30mm, 40mm or 60mm radiation source train.

We retain ownership of the radiation source trains and transfer devices that are used by customers. The costs to acquire, test and assemble these assets are recorded as incurred. We have determined that based upon the manufacturer s data, the estimated economic life for radiation source trains is more than one year, and transfer devices is three years. Accordingly, we classify these assets as long-term assets. Depreciation of the costs of these assets is included in cost of sales and is recognized over their estimated economic lives using the straight-line method. Depreciation begins at the time the Beta-Cath System is placed into service. Valuation reserves are recorded for the balance of unamortized costs of transfer devices and radiation source trains that are on hand but not available for use by a customer.

During the fourth quarter of 2004, we evaluated the recoverability of the carrying value for radiation devices and other assets to determine if an impairment charge was necessary. We performed this evaluation in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 144, *Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets*. Based on this evaluation, we determined that the radiation devices were impaired with no fair value due to their specialized nature and recorded an impairment charge bringing their net book value to zero. Subsequent to December 31, 2004, no depreciation was recorded.

Asset Impairment

We evaluate the carrying value of long-lived assets in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 144 whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is determined based on the carrying value of an asset exceeding the future undiscounted net cash flow expected to be generated by the asset. If an asset is not recoverable, impairment is measured by the excess of the carrying value of the asset over the fair value of the asset.

During the fourth quarter of 2004, we updated an economic study regarding the value of all long-lived assets supporting the VBT business. The impairment analysis was based on expected future net cash flows to be generated by the assets during their remaining service lives, using undiscounted cash flows. Because we only have one product line, all enterprise-wide, long-lived assets were included. The study concluded that the assets were impaired, and the carrying value of all long-lived assets was reduced and expensed in the functions where the assets were used. At December 31, 2004, all of the specialized assets relating to the Beta-Cath product line

Table of Contents

were considered to have zero fair value due to their specialized nature and lack of alternative uses. Property and equipment, much of which is more versatile in nature, was reduced to estimated net realizable value. At March 31, 2005, the carrying value of all long-lived assets is recorded at their estimated net realizable value.

Assets Held for Sale

Following the announcement of a staged wind-down, we committed to a plan for the sale of certain assets in accordance with the wind-down plan. The plan includes actively identifying and seeking buyers for these assets. In accordance with the provision of SFAS 144, assets held for sale are stated at estimated net realizable value and depreciation on these assets has been suspended (see also Note 6 to the unaudited consolidated financial statements).

Employment Termination Costs

As part of the wind-down plan, we have provided incentives to certain of our employees to remain with us to manage the wind-down. To receive these incentive payments, they are required to remain with us until their employment is terminated. We account for these termination benefits in accordance with SFAS 146, *Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities* (see also Note 15 to the unaudited consolidated financial statements).

Stock-Based Compensation

We use the intrinsic value method for valuing our awards of stock options and restricted stock and recording the related compensation expense, if any, in accordance with APB No. 25, *Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees*, and related interpretations. We grant stock options generally for a fixed number of shares to employees, directors, consultants and independent contractors with an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the shares at the date of grant. Compensation expense (expense reduction) is recognized for increases (decreases) in the estimated fair value of common stock for any stock options with variable terms. No compensation expense is recognized for stock option grants to employees for which the terms are fixed and the exercise price is equal to the fair market value of the shares at the date of the grant.

We account for equity instruments issued to non-employees in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and as amended by SFAS 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Transition and Disclosure, and Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments that Are Issued to Other than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services.

Any compensation expense related to grants that do not vest immediately is amortized over the vesting period of the stock options using the straight-line method as that method most closely approximates the way in which the option holder vests in those options.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for the estimated losses resulting from the inability of our customers to make required payments. Most of our customers are hospitals located in the U.S.; however, some are distributors of our products in foreign countries or hospitals located in Europe. The amount recorded in the allowances is based primarily on management s evaluation of the financial condition of the customers. If the financial condition of any of the customers deteriorates, additional allowances may be required. Actual losses from uncollectible accounts are charged against the allowance when it is determined that the account cannot be collected.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value on a first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis. Provisions are recorded for excess or obsolete inventory equal to the cost of the inventory. Shelf-life expiration or replacement products in the marketplace may cause product obsolescence. If actual product demand and market conditions are

80

less favorable than those projected by management, additional provisions might be required which would negatively impact operating profits. Novoste evaluates the adequacy of these provisions quarterly.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Comparison of Quarters Ended March 31, 2005 and 2004

Net Sales and Gross Margin

Net sales and gross margin consisted of the following (in thousands):

	Three M	Three Months Ended March 31		
			Increase	
	2005	2004	(decrease)	
Net sales:				
United States	\$ 2,323	\$ 5,959	(61.0%)	
Rest of world	1,090	1,066	2.3%	
Total net sales	3,413	7,025	(51.4%)	
Cost of sales	4,118	3,953	4.2%	
Gross margin (loss)	\$ (705)	\$ 3,072	(123.0%)	

Net sales decreased 51% in the first quarter from the same period in the prior year. This decrease is due to the effectiveness of drug-coated stents in reducing in-stent restenosis during the early months following the implant of the stents, thus reducing the demand for Novoste's products. The completion of the Guidant transaction in the second quarter of 2004 had a positive effect in the United States on the first quarter of 2005, with revenue from radiation devices increasing 700% above the first quarter of 2004 due to the addition of former Guidant customers and existing customers who paid for service contracts. Catheter revenue in the United States for the quarter ended March 31, 2005 was down 79% from the same period in the prior year. Rest of World sales have increased slightly because drug-eluting stents are not as prevalent within the European medical community and several former Guidant customers converted to the Beth-Cath system. We expect revenue from all sources to decline as the wind-down proceeds into the completion phase.

In the quarter ended March 31, 2005, cost of sales increased approximately 4.2% from the same period of the prior year due to an accrual of \$1,324,000 to recognize the estimated remaining minimum purchase commitments due to a supplier. Absent this accrual, costs would have declined 29% from the significant reduction in revenues and the corresponding reduction of costs variable to sales. However, the reduction in total costs was not proportionate to the decline in revenues due to the relatively high fixed costs associated with the manufacturing and service operations. During the fourth quarter of 2004, we recorded an impairment charge, which reduced all long-lived assets to net realizable value (see Note 14 to the unaudited consolidated financial statements). This action has a favorable effect on cost of sales, eliminating approximately \$1,000,000 of depreciation and amortization cost per quarter. However, cost of sales for the quarter ended March 31, 2005 includes increases of

\$761,000 for reserves for slow moving and excessive inventory and \$275,000 for minimum payments to AEA for contractual obligations under the AEA Supply Agreement compared to the quarter ended March 31, 2004.

The 123% decline in gross margin for the first quarter of 2005 was a result of the revenue decline coupled with relatively high fixed costs associated with manufacturing and service operations. With the elimination of depreciation and amortization associated with long lived assets, which are now fully expensed as a result of the impairment charges, and the cost reductions associated with the wind-down plan being implemented, we expect gross margin to remain relatively constant as a percentage of revenue, but to decline in dollar terms due to a further decline in sales.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses consisted of the following (in thousands):

Three Months Ended March 31		
	Increase	

			Increase
	2005	2004	(decrease)
Operating expenses:			
Research and development	\$ 434	\$ 2,475	(82.5%)
Sales and marketing	2,702	3,489	(22.6%)
General and administrative	2,878	1,800	59.9%
Total operating expenses	\$ 6,014	\$ 7,764	(22.5%)

At the end of the first quarter of 2004, we implemented a reduction in force, eliminating 84 positions across all functions. This reduction lowered annual operating costs by approximately \$6,000,000. During the first quarter of 2004, approximately 59 of the individuals left Novoste, with the remaining individuals leaving during the second and third quarters. As part of the wind-down plan announced in February 2005, approximately 50 additional positions were eliminated in the first quarter 2005. Employment termination costs of \$2,023,000 are included in the operating costs for the three months ended March 31, 2005.

The 83% decrease in research and development expenses for the first quarter of 2005, compared to the same period of the prior year, is in the area of clinical trials and product development. All clinical trials and product development activity have been discontinued and the only activity is post-procedure monitoring. The internal product development staff was released with the reduction in force in March 2004, and development efforts using outside firms have been suspended. We expect costs of this area to decline as the monitoring of closed clinical trials is completed.

The 23% decrease in sales and marketing expense for the first quarter ended March 31, 2005, compared to the same period of the prior year, is due to reduced sales and marketing personnel, and to significantly lower variable expenses related to lower revenues, principally commissions and travel expenses. All sales and marketing positions in the U.S. were eliminated in February 2005. We expect these expenses to decline, as sales personnel in Europe will exit the Company over the next several months.

The 60% increase during the first quarter of 2005, compared to the same period of the prior year, for general and administrative expenses is due to employment termination costs (see Note 15 to the unaudited consolidated financial statements) and professional fees associated with the evaluation of strategic alternatives.

Other Income and Expenses

Other income for the first quarter of 2005 was \$165,000 compared to \$78,000 for the same period in the prior year. This net increase for the three months ended March 31, 2005 arose primarily from slightly higher interest rates and a shift to slightly longer maturities, which enjoy higher returns.

Net Loss

Net loss consisted of the following (in thousands, except per share amounts):

	Three 1	Three Months Ended M		
	2005	2004	Increase (decrease)	
Net loss	\$ (6,554)	\$ (4,614)	\$ (1,940)	
Net loss per share basic and diluted	\$ (0.40)	\$ (0.28)	\$ (0.12)	

The increase in net loss of \$(0.12) per share for the first quarter ended March 31, 2005, compared to the same period of 2004, was the net result of significantly lower revenues, the accrued estimated remaining minimum purchase commitments due to a supplier and the impact of employment termination costs and other expenses related to the evaluation of strategic alternatives and the wind-down of the VBT business. Net loss in the first quarter ended March 31, 2005 was positively effected by the elimination of depreciation and amortization expense along with the lower overhead cost structure resulting from the cost reduction initiatives implemented in earlier periods, and that are ongoing. During execution of the wind-down plan, we expect to continue to incur net losses.

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

Net Sales and Gross Margin

Net sales, cost of sales, and gross margin are comprised of the following (in thousands):

	Year	Year Ended December 31		
	2004	2003	Increase (decrease)	
Net sales:				
United States	\$ 19,391	\$ 57,915	(66.5%)	
Rest of world	3,877	4,986	(22.2%)	
Total net sales	23,268	62,901	(63.0%)	
Cost of sales	16,111	24,315	(33.7%)	
Impairment charge	7,630			
Gross margin	\$ (473)	\$ 38,586	(101.2%)	

Both the U.S. and international VBT markets were negatively affected by the introduction of drug-eluting stents. The international market, however, did not decline as much because drug-eluting stents are not as predominant in PTCA procedures outside the United States.

Net sales decreased 63% to \$23,268,000 for the year ending December 31, 2004, from \$62,901,000 for the year ending December 31, 2003. Catheter unit volume in the U.S. declined 70% as drug-eluting stents have proven to be very effective in reducing in-stent restenosis. However, unit volume decline outside the U.S. was limited to 33% for the reasons mentioned above. The volume decline in the U.S. was somewhat offset by a 112% increase in revenue from service and lease agreements for radiation devices which was facilitated by the transaction with Guidant in April 2004 that made us the sole source of VBT technology and provided a stronger marketing position from which to bill for these services. By comparison, our 2003 revenues also included \$2,150,000 of revenue recognition when 3.5F catheters were exchanged for 5.0F catheters. (For discussion of the recall of our 3.5F catheters, see Note 1 to our consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K.) We expect that VBT usage and, correspondingly, sales of our VBT products will continue to decline in 2005, resulting in a future reduction in our revenues. In addition, given the Company announcement in February 2005 that our VBT business is no longer viable, and that the Company has announced a staged wind-down of the business, it is expected that revenues will be significantly reduced in 2005.

Stent revenue declined in Europe due to the presence of heavy competition from larger companies and with the introduction of DES. The sale of stents will be discontinued by the Company in the first quarter of 2005.

Cost of sales for 2004 declined due to much lower unit volume and lower radiation device amortization as the 5.0F and many 3.5F radiation devices completed their amortizable life. Cost of sales does not decrease proportionally to sales due to higher fixed costs associated with excessive production and service capacity. In addition, \$190,000 was recorded in 2004 related to royalty payments to Guidant in connection with purchase of

83

their customer list, and \$695,000 in stand-by fees were paid to our supplier of radiation source trains (AEA) for maintaining their production facility in the absence of demand from the Company. Cost of sales also increased \$7,630,000 as a result of the impairment (and related write-down in the carrying value) of the long-lived assets related to the production process.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses are comprised of the following (in thousands):

	Ye	Year Ended December 31		
	2004	2003	Increase (decrease)	
Operating expenses:				
Research and development	\$ 4,633	\$ 11,986	(61.3%)	
Sales and marketing	12,558	19,485	(35.6%)	
General and administrative	8,036	8,237	(2.4%)	
Restructuring and impairment charge	1,719			
Total operating expenses	\$ 26,946	\$ 39,708	(32.1%)	

Research and Development Expenses. The 61% decline in research and development costs is due to reduced activity in product development and clinical trials. Clinical expenses declined by more than \$4,018,000 due to the cessation of clinical trials and reduction of personnel. The product development department costs declined by \$3,400,000 as in-house development was suspended and the technical staff reduced, being replaced by a modest outsourced development effort.

Sales and Marketing Expenses. Costs have declined mainly due to lower revenues and the variable costs associated with revenue and staffing levels, such as commissions, travel, marketing incentives and trade show participation. Costs for the U.S. sales force declined \$6,300,000 as field sales personnel was reduced from 57 to 19. Other factors include fewer trade show activities and less travel than in 2003, when the 3.5F catheter system was relaunched, and a smaller in-house sales and marketing group supporting a reduced field personnel.

General and Administrative Expenses. The 2.4% net decline in 2004 was attributed to cost reduction initiatives including lower headcount and reduced legal fees associated with patent filings, offset by the compliance costs of Sarbanes-Oxley Section 404, investment banking fees, and retention payments for key employees.

Impairment Charge. This charge primarily relates to the unamortized portion of the customer list purchased from Guidant in April 2004. The list is part of the enterprise-wide group of long-lived assets, which are impaired due to insufficient discounted projected cash flow to recover their carrying value (see Note 15 to consolidated financial statements).

Other Income

Other income is as follows (in thousands):

ember 31	Year Ended December 31		
Increase			
(decrease)	2003	2004	
96.1%	\$ 254	\$ 498	

The increase is primarily attributable to the increase in interest income as a result of higher interest rates compared to 2003, a shift to longer maturity investments which enjoy a higher interest rate, and to proceeds from the sale of assets which occurred when the company consolidated U.S. operations into a single building.

Net Loss

Net loss and per share results are as follows (in thousands, except per share):

	Year	Year Ended December 31		
	2004	2003	Increase (decrease)	
Net loss	\$ (26,921)	\$ (868)	\$ (26,053)	
Net loss per share basic and diluted	\$ (1.65)	\$ (0.05)	\$ (1.60)	

The increase in net loss is due to the rapid decline in revenues and the Company s inability to reduce costs proportionally. In addition, \$9,349,000, or approximately 36% of the total, is the result of the impairment charge that reduced the carrying value of long-lived assets to fair value.

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

Net Sales and Gross Margin

Net sales, cost of sales, and gross margin are comprised of the following (in thousands):

	Yea	Year Ended December 31		
	2003	2002	Increase (decrease)	
Net sales:				
United States	\$ 57,915	\$ 64,746	(10.6%)	
Rest of world	4,986	4,284	16.4%	
Total net sales	62,901	69,030	(8.9%)	
Cost of sales	24,315	27,313	(11.0%)	
Impairment charge		6,900	(100.0%)	
Gross margin	\$ 38,586	\$ 34,817	10.8%	

Net sales declined 8.9% to \$62,901,000 for the year ended December 31, 2003, from \$69,030,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002. The revenue decline is due to a 12% reduction in the sales of catheters and a 73% reduction in lease revenue for radiation devices. The decline in catheters was the result of lower utilization of VBT in treating coronary patients attributable to the introduction of drug-eluting stents into the U.S. market in April 2003. The decline in lease revenue was attributed to competitive pressure to renew leases at considerably lower costs to the customer.

Both the U.S. and international markets were affected by the conditions described above. The international market, however, was helped by the sale of stents, a new product licensed for sale beginning in January 2003. The sale of stents contributed \$620,000, or 13%, to our international revenues.

Cost of sales for 2003 returned to a level more in line with historical results as compared to 2002, which was unusually high due to the \$6,900,000 impairment charge, or 10% of sales. (For a discussion of this impairment charge, see Note 1 to the Novoste's Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements). Excluding the impairment charge, cost as a percent of sales declined due to lower manufacturing and service costs resulting from reengineering our production function, absence of the cost of replacement catheters associated with the recall of the 3.5F catheters during third quarter of 2002, and lower amortization cost of radiation devices as the older units became fully depreciated. As such, 2003 gross margin on an absolute basis was lower than 2002 (excluding the impairment charge of \$6,900,000) due to lower revenues, but higher as a percent of revenue, as a result of the cost reduction actions taken above.

85

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses are comprised of the following (in thousands):

	Yea	Year Ended December 31		
	2003	2002	Increase (decrease)	
Operating expenses:				
Research and development	\$ 11,986	\$ 13,300	(9.9%)	
Sale and marketing	19,485	26,875	(27.5%)	
General and administrative	8,237	8,335	(1.2%)	
Restructuring and impairment charge				
Total operating expenses	\$ 39,708	\$ 48,510	(18.1%)	

Research and Development Expenses. The decline was mainly due to lower engineering and operating costs of \$1,800,000 from restructuring of the engineering and product development functions. This decline was offset by an increase of \$540,000 for clinical studies on potential new products.

Sales and Marketing Expenses. Costs declined mainly due to lower revenues and the variable costs associated with revenue, such as commissions, travel, marketing incentives and trade show participation. Costs for the U.S. sales force declined \$3,954,000. Other factors include fewer trade show activities than in 2002, when the 3.5F catheter system was introduced, and additional marketing costs decline of \$1,497,000. The closing of the sales office in Brussels in March 2002 and a reduced number of field personnel lowered expense by \$1,274,000 in Europe.

General and Administrative Expenses. The decline of 1.2% was attributed to the completion of a computer systems upgrade project and to ongoing cost reduction efforts in 2003.

Other Income

Other income is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31		
2003	2002	Increase
		(decrease)

Total other income	\$ 254	\$ 642	(60.4%)

The decrease in other income is primarily attributable to the decrease in interest income as a result of the low interest rate environment in 2003.

Net loss

Net loss and per share results are as follows (in thousands, except per share):

	Yea	r Ended Decem	er 31	
	2003	2002	Increase (decrease)	
Net loss	\$ (868)	\$ (13,051)	\$ 12,183	
Net loss per share basic and diluted	\$ (0.05)	\$ (0.80)	\$ 0.75	

The loss was moderated due to no repeat of the impairment charge of 2002, the recognition of \$2,150,000 in catheter revenue when the 3.5F product exchange was completed, and cost reduction efforts.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Flows for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2005

Operating

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities consisted of the following (in thousands):

	Three Mor	
	2005	2004
Cash flows from operating activities:		
Net loss	\$ (6,554)	\$ (4,614)
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment		637
Amortization of capitalized disposal costs	33	33
Depreciation of radiation and transfer devices		1,099
Other non cash items	72	(29)
Net change in operating assets and liabilities	2,122	513
Net cash used in operating activities	\$ (4,327)	\$ (2,361)

The net loss in the first three months of 2005 consumed \$4,357,000 of cash to fund operating activities. This compares to \$2,361,000 of cash used in the same period of 2004. The changes in operating assets and liabilities are consistent with the decline in business volume. Depreciation of property and equipment has been eliminated as all assets are considered to be impaired and held for sale. Included in the change in operating assets for the first three months of 2005 was \$930,000 generated from a reduction in receivables, compared to \$2,361,000 for the same period of 2004. Receivables are being collected faster than they are replaced by declining billing. Inventory declined due to the suspension of production in the face of declining demand, and increase of inventory reserves associated with surplus materials. Funds were generated by the collection of receivables and an increase in accrued expenses and accounts payables of \$593,000 during the quarter ended March 31, 2005. The increase in accrued expenses was due to the recording of minimum payment obligations arising from the AEA agreement. During the quarter ended March 31, 2004, accounts payables and accrued expenses declined \$1,893,000 as business declined. Uncarned revenue related to the billing of service agreements (see Note 7 to the unaudited consolidated financial statements) decreased by \$568,000 in the first quarter of 2005, due to the declining VBT activity.

Investing

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities consisted of the following (in thousands):

	Three Mon Marc	
	2005	2004
Cash flows from investing activities:		
Maturity/sale of short-term investments	\$ 7,158	\$ 3,504
Purchase of short-term investments	(1,283)	(2,035)
Purchase of property and equipment, net		(152)
Purchase of radiation and transfer devices		(573)
Net cash provided by investing activities	\$ 5,875	\$ 744

Investments have been liquidated to fund losses in operations. No cash was used to purchase property and equipment in the three months ended March 31, 2005, as compared to the same period of 2004, primarily due to lower revenue and the implementation of the wind-down plan. Also, no cash was used to purchase radiation source trains and transfer devices compared to the same period in the prior year due to the declining VBT business. This decrease in purchases is due to the existence of radiation source train inventory levels that will be adequate to meet the needs of Novoste for the foreseeable future.

Financing

During the quarter ended March 31, 2005, we had no proceeds from the issuance of its common stock as a result of option exercises, compared to \$7,000 in the first quarter of 2004 when employees exercised stock options.

In August 2001, the Company obtained a \$10 million revolving line of credit, which was extended by agreement from time to time. On May 27, 2004, we replaced previous borrowing arrangements with a one-year agreement, which provided a \$5,000,000 revolving line of credit and the availability of letters of credit. On December 22, 2004, in view of declining business needs, we terminated the borrowing agreement with the financial institution and no obligations related to the agreement exist at March 31, 2005. At March 31, 2005, we had \$75,000 in outstanding letters of credit, which are secured by a certificate of deposit.

Cash Flows for the Year Ended December 31, 2004

During the year ended December 31, 2004, our cash and cash equivalents decreased to \$19,082,000 from \$33,177,000 at the end of 2003. Of this decrease of \$14,095,000, there was \$6,300,000 used to fund operating activities, and net cash used in investing activities was \$7,876,000.

Operating activities

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities consisted of the following (in thousands):

	Year 1	Year Ended December		
	2004	2003	2002	
Cash flows from operating activities:				
Net loss	\$ (26,921)	\$ (868)	\$ (13,051)	
Depreciation and amortization of property, equipment and intangibles	3,706	3,295	3,125	
Depreciation of radiation and transfer devices	4,124	8,606	9,241	
Impairment charge	9,349		5,065	
Other non cash items	(168)	(265)	758	
Accounts receivable	3,502	2,043	9,326	
Inventory	1,248	1,521	(85)	
Prepaid expenses and other current assets	(290)	508	36	
Other assets	508	890	(285)	
Accounts payable	(33)	(753)	(2,033)	
Accrued expenses	(2,658)	(3,527)	(1,001)	
Unearned revenue	1,723	(2,258)	(387)	
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	\$ (5,910)	\$ 9,192	\$ 10,709	

The cash trend in 2004 is consistent with patterns expected of a declining business. Working capital is generating funds as inventory and receivables decline. Non-cash items such as depreciation charges mitigate losses, as capital assets are not replaced.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, a loss due to the decline in revenue could not be offset by the contraction of working capital and non-cash items, and \$6,300,000 in cash was used to fund operations. The declines in receivables generated \$3,502,000, as collections occurred faster than revenue replaced them. Inventory declined as the reduced business volume eliminated the need for replacing items sold and used in

service. The most significant use of working capital is the pay-down of accruals and payables. Depreciation on radiation devices is declining because many of the devices have reached their depreciable life and are not being replaced. Depreciation on property and equipment is also declining because many of the production assets purchased when the company began commercial operations in 1999 and 2000 have reached their depreciable life. For 2004, amortization increased due to the customer list acquired from Guidant in April, which was being amortized over 2 years. In addition, during 2004 the Company recorded an impairment charge of \$9,349,000 on long-lived assets including property and equipment, radiation and transfer devices, and other assets (see Note 15 to consolidated financial statements).

The years 2003 and 2002 generated operating cash, as revenues were not declining and there were significant non-cash charges such as depreciation and amortization of radiation and transfer devices acquired in earlier years.

88

Investing activities

Net cash used by investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2004, was \$7,876,000 of which \$3,753,000 was shifted to longer term maturities of available-for-sale securities to improve yields; \$517,000 was used for purchase of property and equipment, with most of this expenditure related to leasehold improvements incurred with the consolidation of U.S. operations into one location; \$2,500,000 was used to purchase the customer list from Guidant; and \$1,106,000 was used for the purchase of additional radiation and transfer devices, but at a lower level than 2003, because the number of customer sites declined and transfer device returns from closed sites were adequate to meet service needs.

Financing activities

Our financing activities include the purchase of treasury stock, equity offerings and borrowings and repayments of capital leases. The only financing activity in 2004 was the receipt by us of \$15,000 from the exercise of stock options and sales of our common stock to employees under the stock purchase program. Prior year financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2003 provided \$476,000 net from the issuance of common stock offset by the purchase of treasury stock and repayment of capital lease obligations.

Liquidity

Our principal source of liquidity at March 31, 2005, consisted of cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments of \$24,662,000, compared to \$29,060,000 at December 31, 2004.

During the remainder of 2005, we expect to allocate resources to implement the VBT wind-down plan including funding contractual obligations, and advisory services including accounting and legal matters related to evaluation of our strategic options. We expect that our existing cash reserves will be sufficient to fund any cash used by operations and to meet our liquidity and spending needs at least through the end of the wind-down plan, sometime in late 2005.

Our future liquidity and capital requirements will depend upon numerous factors, mainly the risks discussed elsewhere in this proxy statement in the section entitled Risk Factors Risks Related to Novoste.

Commitments

At March 31, 2005, We had commitments to purchase \$2,432,000 of products and services, primarily arising from contractual obligations related to radiation production stand-by fees and decommissioning of the radiation production facility. Of this amount, \$1,913,000 has already been recorded as an accrued expense as of March 31, 2005. The decline in commitments compared to \$10,992,000 at March 31, 2004, is consistent with the trend of our contracting business that requires less replacement of inventories and radiation devices and settlement of other obligations, such as Bebig (see below).

On October 14, 1999, we signed a development and manufacturing supply agreement with AEA for a source of radioactive supply and for the development of a smaller diameter radiation source. The agreement provided for the construction of a production line that was placed into service in October 2002. In addition, the agreement provides for joint ownership of all intellectual property arising from the development work and requires that AEA manufacture vascular brachytherapy sources only for us. The agreement contains minimum payment obligations, which Novoste has accrued \$1,324,000 for the quarter ending March 31, 2005 and expensed in cost of sales, due to the determination that the remaining contractual payments will not likely result in any economic benefit to us (see Note 14 to unaudited consolidated financial statements). On March 9, 2005, we provided the required notification to terminate the contract eighteen months before expiration of the agreement, in September 2006. At the termination of this agreement, Novoste is obligated for the expense of decommissioning the production facility. These expected costs have been accrued and are being expensed in cost of sales in accordance with SFAS 143, *Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations*. The minimum payment obligations and the decommissioning costs are subject to negotiation and settlement with AEA.

On June 20, 2001, we amended our manufacturing and supply agreement with Bebig Isotopen-und Medizintechnik GmbH (Bebig), a German corporation, to manufacture and supply us with radioactive sealed

89

Table of Contents

Strontium-90 seed trains. During each calendar year of the four-year contract, we guaranteed minimum annual payments to Bebig of varying amounts over the term of the agreement and will provide up to \$250,000 for decommission expense of the production facility. All product purchases are credited against the annual guaranteed payment. At March 31, 2005, all purchase obligations had been satisfied and \$150,000 of the obligation for decommissioning remained to be paid. The term of this agreement ended on June 19, 2005 and all Bebig obligations have now been fulfilled.

We have entered into a license agreement with a physician pursuant to which he is entitled to receive a royalty on the net sales of the Beta-Cath System (excluding consideration paid for the radioactive isotope), subject to a maximum aggregate payment of \$5,000,000. Royalty fees earned by the physician were \$22,000 and \$69,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Earned royalties are paid within 60 days following the end of the quarter. As of March 31, 2005, an aggregate amount of \$2,185,000 has been earned under the license agreement and has been expensed as costs of sales.

On January 30, 1996, we entered into a license agreement whereby Emory University assigned its claim to certain technology to us for royalties based on net sales (as defined in the agreement) of products derived from such technology, subject to certain minimum royalties. After the first commercial sale of royalty bearing products by us, which occurred in 1998, minimum royalties were due to Emory University in the following amounts: year 2 after the first commercial sale \$10,000; year 3 \$15,000; year 4 \$25,000; and years 5-10, \$50,000 per year. The royalty agreement term is consistent with the life of the related patent and applies to assignments of the patent technology to a third party. Royalty fees earned by Emory University were \$60,000 and \$142,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2005 and March 31, 2004 respectively, and have been expensed as cost of sales. Earned royalties are paid within 60 days following the end of the quarter.

On April 22, 2004, we signed an asset purchase agreement with Guidant pursuant to which we acquired information regarding Guidant s vascular brachytherapy business, including the customer list of Guidant in the United States and Canada. We paid the sum of \$2,500,000 to Guidant at the signing of the transaction and have agreed to pay 5% on its net sales of all vascular brachytherapy products in the U.S. and Canada, up to an additional payment of \$4,000,000 (see Note 8 to unaudited consolidated financial statements). Under this agreement, Guidant has earned \$98,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2005 and \$287,000 since the execution of the contract.

We have made commitments to the approximately 40 employees who remained at March 31, 2005, to manage the wind-down of the VBT business. Of the \$4,407,000 expected costs for employment termination (see Note 15 to the unaudited consolidated financial statements), approximately \$2,956,000 relate to these commitments, of which \$950,000 has been recorded as an accrued expense as of March 31, 2005 and cover severance pay, outplacement assistance, and retention incentives. These expenses are being accrued over the period of expected employment.

As of December 31, 2004, we had contractual obligations as follows (in thousands):

		Payı	ments due by	period	
	Total	Less than year	1 1-3 years	3-5 years	More than 5 years
ual Obligations					
ses	\$ 414	\$ 369	\$ 45	\$	\$
	1,956	1,311	645		

Total \$2,370 \$ 1,680 \$690 \$

Approximately \$1,735,000 of the purchase obligations listed above relates to purchase contracts denominated in Euros. This amount was derived from converting such purchase obligations by using a December 31, 2004 conversion rate of \$1.36 USD to 1 Euro. As noted above, some of these purchase obligations extend to 2006 and the actual settlement amount may be different from the amount presented based on the conversion rate as of December 31, 2004.

Table of Contents

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We do not maintain any off-balance sheet financing arrangements apart from the operating leases described above.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2004, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 123(R) (revised 2004), *Share Based Payment*. Statement 123(R) addresses the accounting for share-based payment transactions in which an enterprise receives employee services in exchange for (a) equity instruments of the enterprise or (b) liabilities that are based on the fair value of the enterprise is equity instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of such equity instruments. Statement 123(R) requires an entity to recognize the grant-date fair-value of stock options and other equity-based compensation issued to employees in the income statement. The revised Statement generally requires that an entity account for those transactions using the fair-value-based method, and eliminates the intrinsic value method of accounting in APB Opinion No. 25, *Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees*, which was permitted under Statement 123, as originally issued. The revised Statement requires entities to disclose information about the nature of the share-based payment transactions and the effects of those transactions on the financial statements. Statement 123(R) is effective for us after June 15, 2005 (i.e., for our third quarter 2005). All public companies must use either the modified prospective or the modified retrospective transition method. We are currently evaluating the impact of adoption of this pronouncement, which must be adopted by January 1, 2006.

91

INFORMATION ABOUT ONI

BUSINESS OF ONI

Overview

Founded in 1997, ONI develops, manufactures and markets dedicated-purpose magnetic resonance imaging, or MRI, systems. ONI s first product, the OrthOne system, is a compact, high-field 1.0 Tesla MRI system for imaging of extremities. ONI believes that the OrthOne system provides images that are superior in quality to those of low-field extremity systems and similar to those of whole-body systems installed in diagnostic imaging centers or hospitals, but for approximately one-third of the cost of a new whole-body system and a fraction of the size.

The key characteristics of the OrthOne system include its compact size, cost, hospital-grade image quality and suitability for orthopedic applications. ONI believes these characteristics make the OrthOne system suitable for:

Orthopedic practices seeking to improve patient care continuity and generate ancillary revenues by purchasing compact, economical, in-office, high-field MRI systems; and

Diagnostic imaging centers and hospitals seeking to increase MRI scanning capacity and efficiency at reduced capital costs by offloading extremity scans from overburdened whole-body MRI systems onto more compact, dedicated-purpose MRI systems.

ONI is in the process of developing a second dedicated-purpose MRI system intended to address a broader range of applications than the OrthOne system. ONI expects to introduce the new MRI system by the end of 2007.

Industry Background

MRI Technology and Equipment

MRI is a medical diagnostic technique that creates images of the human body using the principles of nuclear magnetic resonance. MRI technology was first presented in 1974, and MRI systems were first used on patients in 1983. Until the invention of MRI, the only methods of acquiring images from inside the human body involved the use of ionizing radiation, radioactive isotopes or ultrasound waves.

MRI involves the use of high-strength magnetic fields to generate computer-processed images of parts of the body, including bones, arteries and veins, from various angles and directions, without surgical intervention and in a relatively short period of time. This versatile, powerful and sensitive tool creates maps of biochemical compounds within various cross-sections of the human body. These maps give basic biomedical and anatomical information that may allow early diagnosis of many diseases.

MRI systems provide equivalent anatomical resolution and superior contrast resolution to that of x-ray and computerized tomography, or CAT or CT, scanners. MRI systems produce functional information similar to that of positron emission tomography, or PET, scanners but with better anatomical detail. MRI images are generally superior to x-ray images because MRI can distinguish variations in soft tissue more accurately.

Currently available MRI systems create images of varying quality, a factor important to many users of MRI systems. The primary indicator of image quality involves the strength, measured in Tesla, of the magnetic field created by the magnet incorporated in the system. MRI systems are generally divided into three categories based on the magnetic field strength they generate. The following table provides information regarding the types of

92

customers for MRI systems of various magnetic strengths and the primary considerations of those customers in purchasing such systems:

_	Magnet Strength	Tesla	Customers	Primary Considerations
	High-field	≥ 1.0	Hospitals, outpatient radiology departments, diagnostic imaging centers and research facilities	Image quality, cost, size and weight
	Mid-field	0.5-0.9	Hospitals, outpatient radiology departments and diagnostic imaging centers	Cost
	Low-field	< 0.5	Diagnostic imaging centers and physician s offices	Cost

All MRI systems are able to distinguish between soft and hard tissue, but soft-tissue differentiation improves as the strength of the magnet increases. High-field systems typically offer faster imaging speed, higher quality images, and a larger number of addressable applications. Because they facilitate faster and more accurate diagnoses, high-field MRI systems are generally more appealing to MRI service providers. Although high-field, whole-body MRI systems are typically the best in terms of imaging speed, image quality and breadth of addressable applications, they are also more expensive. ONI believes that the average selling price of a typical new system generally ranges between \$1,400,000 and \$2,000,000, depending on the strength of the magnet and the other options selected by the customer. High-field, whole-body MRI systems also require large, heavy magnets that generate extensive magnetic fields. As a result, these systems generally require a sizable installation area, reinforced flooring and substantial shielding, all of which can result in considerable facility upgrade costs. Because of these factors, whole-body systems have been sold primarily to diagnostic imaging centers and hospitals that generally have access to more capital and sufficient space. ONI believes the high costs and large space requirements of whole-body systems have resulted in purchase delays by diagnostic imaging centers and hospitals and have strongly discouraged purchases by smaller institutions and orthopedic practices.

The low-field and mid-field categories of MRI systems consist of lower-cost systems, mobile systems and low-field extremity systems. These systems have historically had inferior image quality and have experienced moderate success in selling to hospitals and research facilities. Low-field MRI systems typically target orthopedic practices. Because low-field MRI systems use less powerful magnetic fields, they generally produce lower quality images with longer scanning times.

Because of size, weight, shielding, power supply and space requirements, whole-body MRI systems require site planning and installation services. Prior to installation, customers must conform their sites to the required specifications. Site preparation for any MRI system can take several months. Generally, MRI systems require magnetic shielding to protect bystanders within a specified control zone, as well as radio frequency shielding, or RF shielding, to prevent outside radio waves from interfering with the scanning. In addition, ONI believes that whole-body MRI systems generally require at least 800 square feet of space for the recommended installation. ONI believes orthopedic practices, diagnostic imaging centers and hospitals are looking for opportunities to expand their current offerings of MRI scanning services, but in a manner that minimizes space requirements, initial purchase and installation costs, and ongoing service and maintenance costs.

MRI Equipment Market

A June 2005 article on the state of the radiology industry in *Decisions in Imaging Economics*, an imaging technology journal, reported that in 2003 MRI equipment sales were estimated by a consulting firm to reach \$1.1 billion in 2005. Hospitals and diagnostic imaging centers have been the primary buyers of MRI equipment. These buyers have purchased primarily whole-body systems, either of high-field or lower field strengths. A 2004 report by IMV Medical Information Division, Inc., a marketing research and consulting firm with a subspecialty in medical imaging and therapy markets, estimated that 7,110 MRI systems were installed in the United States at the time of the report (excluding mobile systems), representing 3,400 systems in hospitals and 3,710 systems in non-hospital settings, including diagnostic imaging centers. The report indicated that at the time of the report high-field 1.5 Tesla MRI systems constituted 60% of the installed base of MRI systems (excluding mobile

93

Table of Contents

systems). The report also estimated that in 2003 approximately 24.2 million total MRI scans were performed. ONI believes that approximately 20% of these scans were performed on upper and lower extremities.

ONI believes that, as a result of the substantial expense and siting requirements for whole-body MRI systems, orthopedic practices have purchased relatively few MRI systems, and the systems they have purchased have been primarily low-field systems because of their lower cost and smaller size. The lower field strength of these systems often produces lower-quality images, which tends to limit customer demand. Without on-site, high-quality MRI scanning capability, physician practices have had to refer their patients to radiologists in hospitals or diagnostic imaging centers with high-field MRI systems. This need to refer patients to other physicians outside the practice typically results in the delay of diagnoses, increased patient anxiety, inconvenience to the patient forced to travel on a separate occasion to a different facility, and the loss of revenue by the referring physician.

Hospitals and diagnostic imaging centers face different challenges in providing MRI scanning services. The breadth of diagnostic services that these organizations offer generally requires that they invest in high-field, whole-body MRI systems so that they can provide MRI scans of any part of the human body. These whole-body systems are commonly used to perform all of the organization s MRI scans, even in cases where only a scan of an extremity is needed. During periods of high demand, these systems can become significantly overburdened, leading to delays in diagnoses and inconvenience to patients. Nonetheless, ONI believes that the high investment costs of these whole-body systems make it difficult for hospitals and diagnostic imaging centers to respond quickly to increases in demand for MRI scanning services.

ONI believes that a market opportunity exists for a compact MRI system that offers hospital-quality images at a lower price and that can be installed in an office environment without the same extensive site preparation and space requirements as a whole-body system. ONI further believes that physicians able to offer in-office, high-field MRI scans can enhance practice revenues with ancillary income, accelerate diagnoses, reduce patient anxiety and inconvenience, and commence treatment more seamlessly and at an earlier stage. An affordable, compact, high-field MRI system can address the needs of a variety of market segments:

Orthopedic practices. These practices often have limited budgets and are commonly located in office environments where the reinforcements and shielding necessary for a large, whole-body MRI system are impractical. ONI believes that these practices typically perform scans in a volume that would not make an investment in a whole-body system cost-effective.

Diagnostic imaging centers. These centers require high-quality imaging but try to offer imaging services as cost-effectively as possible.

Hospitals. Hospitals require high-quality imaging and also seek to maximize the efficient use of their often overburdened whole-body MRI systems. Hospitals could benefit from a system that would enable them to increase capacity at a lower cost.

Such a system would make the benefits of diagnostic MRI imaging more widely available to patients by facilitating the migration of MRI scanning from hospitals to physician practices, much in the same way that more compact and economical ultrasound equipment substantially broadened the availability of ultrasound imaging in smaller physician practices.

ONI estimates that, in 2002, there were more than 4,100 orthopedic practices with four or more physicians, 3,400 hospitals and 1,900 diagnostic imaging centers operating in the United States.

Reimbursement

The United States Department of Health and Human Services Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, or CMS, the government agency that administers Medicare and Medicaid, has authorized reimbursement for MRI scans under the terms of the Medicare program. Periodically, CMS adjusts the reimbursement rates for medical procedures, including MRI scans, to reflect the costs incurred by health care providers to perform the procedures. In addition, many private insurance companies have authorized reimbursement for MRI scans.

94

Table of Contents

Certificate of Need

Certain states, particularly in New England, have instituted Certificate of Need requirements to ensure that new healthcare services and facilities are developed only as needed, based on publicly-developed measures of cost effectiveness, quality of care and geographic and financial access to care. In these states, MRIs can be purchased only after complying with the Certificate of Need process, which could prohibit potential customers from purchasing the diagnostic equipment that they seek.

The ONI Solution the OrthOne System

The OrthOne system is a compact, high-field 1.0 Tesla MRI system for imaging of extremities. The OrthOne system provides images that ONI believes are superior in quality to those of low-field extremity systems and similar to those of whole-body systems, but for approximately one-third of the cost and a fraction of the size. The OrthOne is designed for use by orthopedic practices, hospitals and diagnostic imaging centers.

ONI began developing the OrthOne system in mid-1997. ONI obtained clearance from the United States Food and Drug Administration, or the FDA, to market the OrthOne in August 2000 and began to generate revenue from sales in the fourth quarter of 2001. In June 2004, ONI obtained regulatory clearance to market the OrthOne system in the European Union.

The Features of the OrthOne System

The OrthOne system was conceived as an MRI system that would allow orthopedic physicians to perform the majority of their extremity MRI scanning in their own offices. The OrthOne system consists of a proprietary compact design that features a specially designed cylindrical, high-field 1.0 Tesla magnet. The relatively small size of the magnet used in the OrthOne system enabled ONI to design the patient handling system with a movable chair. The chair can be easily adjusted to enable the patient to insert an extremity into the cylindrical magnet. This design provides greater flexibility in orienting the patient for optimal comfort, allowing imaging of hands, wrists, elbows, knees, ankles and feet. ONI believes this flexibility is a major benefit compared to closed, whole-body systems where patients in many cases complain of claustrophobia or discomfort.

The magnet used in the OrthOne system was specifically designed for high performance, compact size and weight, and ease of installation. The OrthOne system produces high resolution images showing relatively fine details in bone structures for joints and high sensitivity for stress fractures. ONI believes the quality of imaging of its OrthOne system derives from the high homogeneity and stability of the OrthOne magnet.

Installation of the OrthOne system is more flexible than that required for whole-body systems. The magnet used in the OrthOne system weighs less than 1,400 pounds, which alleviates the need for reinforced structure at the installation site. Because of its relatively compact size, the control zone protecting bystanders does not need to be greater than approximately 200 square feet. Installation of the OrthOne system typically requires only RF shielding, which is relatively less expensive and less complicated to install than other types of shielding. This relatively minimal shielding further reduces the need for specialized facility requirements and upgrades at the customer site. The OrthOne system uses standard electrical power.

The Advantages of the OrthOne System for Orthopedic Practices

The OrthOne system enables MRI scanning to take place within the offices of many orthopedic practices. ONI believes that its OrthOne system offers a number of key benefits to orthopedic practices, including the following:

Additional source of revenue. ONI believes that in-office scanning can provide an additional source of revenue for the orthopedic practice and dramatically reduce the need for physicians to make outside referrals to obtain MRI diagnostic images for their patients.

95

Table of Contents

More attractive pricing. ONI believes that the costs associated with the initial purchase, site preparation and ongoing maintenance of the OrthOne system are significantly lower than those of new high-field, whole-body MRI systems. ONI currently offers the OrthOne system at a list price of \$495,000, and ONI estimates that installation of the OrthOne system, including site planning and preparation, usually costs less than \$100,000.

Increased patient comfort and convenience. With on-site scanning capability, orthopedic practices have the opportunity to perform scans during the patient s initial office visit, enabling faster diagnoses and treatment, reducing patient anxiety arising from delayed diagnoses and reducing the need for additional visits except in cases where pre-authorization of payment is required. MRI scans using the OrthOne system take less time than a whole-body scan. Moreover, the OrthOne system requires the patient to insert only an extremity into the cylindrical magnet, rather than the patient s entire body, thereby reducing or eliminating the anxiety associated with claustrophobia that some patients experience with whole-body systems.

Compact size and light weight. The OrthOne system is small enough and light enough to be installed in the offices of most physician practices. ONI believes that the larger size of and extensive site preparation required for whole-body MRI systems generally make them impractical for installation in the offices of most orthopedic practices.

Image quality. As a high-field 1.0 Tesla MRI system, ONI believes that the OrthOne system produces images of a quality and clarity comparable to those produced by hospital-grade whole-body MRI systems.

Ease of operation. The operation of the OrthOne system requires relatively little special training, and scans are usually performed by the physician s radiological technologist.

ONI believes that the OrthOne system is attractive to diagnostic imaging centers and hospitals for many of the same reasons. Hospitals and imaging centers can use the OrthOne system as a dedicated-purpose imaging system to handle overflow from their existing whole-body systems, thereby increasing their overall MRI scanning capacity and efficiency at reduced capital costs.

ONI s Strategy

ONI s objective is to become the leading supplier of dedicated-purpose MRI systems to orthopedic practices, hospitals and diagnostic imaging centers. Key elements of ONI s business strategy include:

Target multi-physician orthopedic practices. ONI believes its OrthOne system offers a combination of high image quality, pricing, size, weight and patient comfort that is attractive to orthopedic practices. ONI intends to direct the majority of its sales efforts toward orthopedic practices of four or more physicians, primarily because ONI believes that this segment of the market offers greater revenue opportunities. For these orthopedic practices, the purchase of a whole-body MRI system can be impractical or unprofitable, whereas a smaller, less expensive, dedicated-purpose MRI system can provide the practice with the ability to offer convenient, on-site scanning at a price that can generate incremental profits for the practice.

Continue to market to hospitals and diagnostic imaging centers. ONI also plans to continue to market the OrthOne system to hospitals and diagnostic imaging centers as a cost-effective supplement to existing whole-body MRI systems. ONI believes that the whole-body MRI systems operated by these potential customers are often overburdened with extremity scans, resulting in delays for neurological, thoracic and other scans that can only be performed on a whole-body system. By alleviating the need to use existing whole-body MRI systems for extremity scans, the OrthOne system offers an attractive, lower-cost solution that enables hospitals and diagnostic imaging centers to address their capacity constraints and improve scanning efficiency.